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CORPORATE PROFILE
EE-N

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited is a leading large-scale
industrial group that manufactures building materials and interior
decoration products in mainland China. It is listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock name: China
Lesso, stock code: 2128). China Lesso is one of the constituent
stocks of the Hang Seng Composite Index — MidCap and is covered
by Hong Kong Stock Exchange's Stock Connect. The Group
provides over 10,000 types of quality products, including plastic
pipes piping system, sanitary ware products, integrated kitchens,
systems of doors and windows, decorative plates, fire-fighting
equipment, and sanitary materials, etc. They are widely applied to
fields such as interior decoration, water supply, drainage, power
supply and telecommunications, gas transmission, agriculture,
aquaculture, floor heating and fire services. The Group is positioned
as one of the manufacturers who offer the most comprehensive
range of building materials and interior decoration products in
China.

The Group has 23 advanced production bases in 16 provinces,
namely Guangdong, Guizhou, Sichuan, Hubei, Jiangsu, Anhui,
Zhejiang, Henan, Hebei, Jilin, Shaanxi, Xinjiang, Hainan, Yunnan,
Shandong and Hunan. The Group has established a nationwide
sales network and has also developed long-term strategic
partnerships with 2,193 independent and exclusive first-tier
distributors to provide quality and comprehensive products as well
as professional services for customers.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

Change
2018 2017 L4
For the year ended 31 December HZ12A31HILEE
(RMB’000) (AR®BT )
Revenue A 23,733,517 20,360,000 16.6%
Gross profit E7 6,228,449 5,316,783 17.1%
Finance costs #hE AR 415,403 229,309 81.2%
EBITDA B BT AT R & A 4,409,098 3,830,717 15.1%
Profit before tax B 750 Al g A 3,235,539 2,954,586 9.5%
Profit for the year F N 2,446,224 2,265,807 8.0%
Profit attributable to owners KRBER A
of the Company FEAG & F 2,491,774 2,293,055 8.7%
At 31 December (RMB’000) M®12B318 (AR%Fx)
Total assets BELRE 34,636,277 27,973,625 23.8%
Cash and bank deposits & RIRITIFR 6,451,791 4,452,370 44.9%
Total debts® B EER e 11,731,058 8,319,375 41.0%
Net debt® B FEREY 5,279,267 3,867,005 36.5%
Total equity AR 15,072,865 13,783,491 9.4%
Share information (RMB) BHER(ARYE)
Earnings per share®© BlRER©
- Basic — &R 0.80 0.74 8.1%
- Diluted -8 0.80 0.74 8.1%
Dividend per share (HK cents) B S (BL)
— Interim dividend — R HIRR B 10 -
- Proposed final dividend — R KRR E 20 18
— Total dividend — BB 30 18 66.7%
Equity attributable to owners ERARREA A
of the Company per share i 4.77 4.35 9.7%
Financial ratios FrESEE R
Gearing Ratio (%) BEREE (%) 43.8 37.6
Net debt to equity® (%) B FRE R T (%) 35.0 28.1
Interest cover® (times) A B A R e (1F) 10.61 16.71
Note: MiEE
(a) Represented total borrowings. (a) EIERABEE -
(b) Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. (b) EEBBERRS RIBETTER -
(c) Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the  (c) RAAREBREARBERA 2 EF NGRS MR

Company are set out in note 11 to consolidated financial statements.

(d) Represented net debt divided by total equity.

(e) Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A FEBEHME

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RESULTS EY | AR%TR ARBTr ARETT ARBTn ARETT
REVENUE "ON 23,733517 20,360,000 17,221,062 15,264,401 14,822,772
GROSS PROFIT E 6,228,449 5,316,783 4,581,778 3,937,571 3,800,734
EXPENSES* Xt (3,033,265)  (2,700,377)  (2,188,759)  (1,906,605)  (1,837,384)
FINANCE COSTS BEH A (415,403) (229,309) (107,061) (87,323) (233,071)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR R 3,235,539 2,954,586 2,424,792 2,064,671 1,846,793
Income tax expense MEFHEY (789,315) (688,779) (511,088) (446,221) (306,435)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 2,446,224 2,265,807 1,913,704 1,618,450 1,540,358
Profit attributable to: PATFE(G & M -
Owners of the Company AREHEAA 2,491,774 2,293,055 1,922,027 1,621,117 1,654,024
Non-controlling interests IR (45,550) (27,248) (8,323) (2,667) (13,666)
2,446,224 2,265,807 1,913,704 1,618,450 1,640,358
At 31 December
R12A318
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FINANCIAL POSITION BEMR ARETR AREKTn ARETrE ARETr ARETR
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 19,752,950 15825153 12,136,602 8,416,831 7,204,696
Current assets MEBEE 14,883,327 12,148,472 10,058,684 8,232,292 7,314,832
Total assets BEHAS 34,636,277 27,973,625 22,195,286 16,649,123 14,519,528
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE 6,458,341 6,116,343 935,722 2,406,123 2,159,959
Current liabilities mBEE 13,105,071 8,073,791 9,721,892 4,377,548 3,809,846
Total liabilities BREEHE 19,563,412 14,190,134 10,657,614 6,783,671 5,969,805
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERRE 1,778,256 4,074,681 336,792 3,854,744 3,504,986
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners KREAEBA
of the Company FEfh 2 14,803,329 13,489,915 11,231,509 9,770,885 8,545,459
Non-controlling interests JerlE R 269,536 293,576 306,163 94,567 4,264
Total equity Bnas 15,072,865 13,783,491 11,537,672 9,865,452 8,549,723

Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative #
expenses and other expenses.

BEHERDHAS  THREAXMEMBASMEN -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBES

With 6.6% growth in gross domestic product, China has achieved
the target set at the beginning of the year 2018; however, the
economic growth rate is the lowest in the past 28 years. Various
industries and sectors have therefore been affected by the
economic slowdown. As deepening the progress of the 13th Five-
year Plan, the Chinese government has continued to actively
implement various policies to protect the energy and environment
sectors, and kept investing in a number of large-scale municipal
projects and urban infrastructure projects to boost the economy.
These projects, amongst others, including the “Sponge City"” Plan,
the “Action Plan for Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”
and the “Construction for Underground Pipe Gallery”, have been
carried out gradually to ensure the provision of safe water supplies
and reduce water pollution. This has generated stable demand
for plastic piping system products. Meanwhile, the Chinese
government pressed on with the new mode of urbanisation and
regional economic development, which created a favourable
operating environment for the pipe industry.

As a leading large-scale industrial group producing building
materials and interior decoration products in China, China Lesso
has actively tapped the stable demand for infrastructure and pipes
which resulted from the state’s policies. Despite the fact that the
Chinese economy is facing continuing downside pressure, the
Group has successfully achieved steady growth in various aspects
such as business sales, market expansion and key performance
indicators during the year, owing to its leading position in the
industry and its brand advantage with economies of scale. The
Group’s revenue increased by 16.6% to RMB23,734 million in
2018 from RMB20,360 million in 2017. Gross profit rose by 17.1%
to RMBG6,228 million, and profit attributable to owners of the
Company grew by 8.7% to RMB2,492 million. The Board proposed
a final dividend of HK20 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2018.

During the year, Southern China remained as the main source of
revenue of the Group. The Group continued to reinforce its leading
market position in Southern China, and proactively expanded
its footholds in other regions of the country and enhanced
market penetration, thereby driving up overall sales. The Group
kept striving to optimise the facilities at its existing production
bases, raising the level of automation and upgrading production
technologies and facilities, in a bid to improve its overall operational
efficiency and competitiveness.
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In 2018, the Chinese government was determined to curb property
speculation by intensively promulgating regulatory policies in
real estate market. As a result, the investment sentiment in the
domestic real estate market became conservative and the growth
rate of the industry declined. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics, comparing with the same period of last year, the
growth rate of floor area sold of national commercial housing
dropped by 6.4% while the transaction volume growth rate of
commercial housing decreased by 1.5%. The building materials
and interior decoration products industries continued to capitalise
on the opportunities brought by the intensive implementation of
the national urbanisation policy, but such positive drivers were
impeded by the market environment. Nevertheless, the Group will
continue to enhance its competitiveness and optimise its product
portfolio to meet customers’ demand for quality building materials
and household products. The Group remains confident in the future
development of this business segment and expects to deliver
synergies among its businesses in the long run.

The Chinese government has continued to actively implement
environmental protection policies and encouraged the development
of green industries in recent years. During the year under review,
the Group intensified environmental protection strategies,
continuously invested resources in technological innovation and
development, and established upstream and downstream industrial
chains with the pipe products and fittings as the core; thus
achieving a synergistic effect with the business for plastic piping
systems. The Group strives to become a one-stop environmental
service provider in China, creating a green lifestyle for residents
and fulfilling its corporate social responsibility in a proactive
manner.

The Group began the "Lesso Home"” business from 2017, with
an aim to assist Chinese manufacturers to deliver building
materials, home furnishings and other consumer products to
target customers and consumers around the globe directly, and
subsequently to expand the growth for their brands. The Group
currently has 12 projects at different stages of development in the
United States, Canada, Australia, Thailand, United Arab Emirates
and other countries. In the future, the Group will strive to develop
Lesso Home into the world’'s leading sales platform for building
materials, home furnishings and other consumer products, and
turn its business into a new growth driver for the Group in the long
term.
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
TREMES

Under the complex and uncertain macroeconomic environment in
2018, the Group continued to proactively offer a diverse range of
products by leveraging its brand strength and the extensiveness
of its dealer network, while striving to expand the Lesso Home
business to increase its streams of income. This successfully
brought about a steady increase in the Group's overall revenue.
Moreover, the Group applied different development strategies to
its existing and new businesses, to expand its business scope in
China and overseas markets, and enhance its brand image and
awareness, thus establishing a solid foundation for sustainable
growth in revenue and profitability in the future.

While we expect that the Chinese economy will maintain steady
growth in 2019, it would be clouded by uncertainties over the
global economy. In order to adapt to the ever-changing market
demand, the Group will fully grasp the opportunities arising from
the Chinese government'’s initiatives that are beneficial to the
industry to develop its business of building materials and interior
decoration products as well as the business of environmental
protection, seeking to achieve synergies between such businesses
and aim for sustainable growth. The Group will strive to upgrade
its existing production bases so as to make them automated and
intelligent, thereby enhancing the Group’s production capacity
and efficiency. In addition, the Group will continue to adopt a blue
ocean strategy by expanding the scope of applications of piping
systems to solidify its leading position.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our management and all the staff members for their
commitment and dedication to the Group. The Group will continue
to fulfill its mission of “improving the quality of urban life” by
providing the market with innovative and high-quality building
materials and interior decoration products. At the same time,
we will actively capitalise on the opportunities arising from the
state's policies and infrastructure to drive the Group's business
development in the long term. This will enable us to achieve better
results and create greater value for customers, investors and
Shareholders. China Lesso is determined to scale new heights in
the future!

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERENEEAERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 56, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Company and was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a
director of various companies within the Group. He is primarily
responsible for the Group's overall strategic planning and business
management. Mr. Wong has approximately 22 years of experience
in plastic pipe operations and management. He served as the
chairman in Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to
April 1999 and was awarded “Outstanding Private Entrepreneur of
Shunde” by Shunde People’'s Government of Foshan in 2003. Mr.
Wong has been a permanent honorary president of Foshan Shunde
Longjiang General Chamber of Commerce since 2018. Mr. Wong is
the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zuo
Manlun. Mr. Wong is the founder of a trust which holds the entire
issued share capital of Xi Xi Development and New Fortune, the
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 46, is the chief executive of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies within the Group. He is primarily responsible for
the management of the daily business operations of the Group. Mr.
Zuo has approximately 19 years of experience in the plastic pipe
industry. Mr. Zuo joined the Group in December 1999 and has held
various positions in operation management since joining the Group.
Mr. Zuo is currently a non-executive director of Xingfa Aluminium
Holdings Limited (stock code: 98), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Zuo won several awards including “Outstanding
Worker of the Plastic Industry in the PRC"” by China Plastics
Processing Industry Association in 2009. Mr. Zuo is the brother-
in-law of Mr. Wong Luen Hei and the younger brother of Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 52, is a vice president of the Group
and was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
27 February 2010. She is also a director/supervisor of various
companies within the Group. She is primarily responsible for
procurement control and logistics management of the Group. Ms.
Zuo has approximately 22 years of experience in the plastic pipe
industry. Ms. Zuo served as a director of Shunde Liansu Industrial
from December 1996. In 1999, upon establishing the Group
together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she held various positions in
procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr. Wong Luen Hei and the
elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELESREEABRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 52, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group.
He is primarily responsible for the production and technical
management of the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 22 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop
manager of Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to
November 1999. Mr. Lai joined the Group in December 1999 and
has held various positions in production management since joining
the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 53, is a vice president of the Group
and was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 27 February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/
supervisor of various companies within the Group. Mr. Kong is
primarily responsible for the China’s sales of the Group and has
approximately 25 years of experience in the plastic pipe industry.
Mr. Kong joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in production management and sales since joining the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory
manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from
March 1993 to January 1999 and served as a manager in the
production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from January
1999 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 51, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director of various companies within
the Group. He is primarily responsible for the management and
production of certain companies in the Group. Mr. Chen has
approximately 29 years of experience in the plastic pipe industry.
Mr. Chen joined the Group in December 1999 and has held
various positions in production management and engineering
since joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen
was a manufacturing engineer in the technology department at
Guangdong Province Zhaoging Gaojiang Plastic Products Co.,
Limited from July 1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to September
1999, he was a deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian
Plastic Materials Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in
the production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from
September 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Chen has been a deputy
secretary general of Plastic Pipe Special Committee of China
Plastics Processing Industry Association since 2005. Mr. Chen
obtained a bachelor's degree in polymer chemical from South China
University of Technology in July 1989.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 43, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group.
Dr. Lin is primarily responsible for the research and development
and overseas sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 16
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the
Group in July 2002 and has held various positions in research and
development and overseas sales since joining the Group. Over the
years, Dr. Lin has won various awards including “National May First
Labour Medal” by All-China Federation of Trade Unions in 2006. Dr.
Lin received a doctorate degree in polymer chemical and physics
from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 43, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor
of various companies within the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily
responsible for the overall management of the factories and
production facilities of the Group and has approximately 22 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group
in December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management since joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Huang served as a deputy factory manager at Foshan City
Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from 1996 until 1999 and served
as a deputy manager of the plastic production department of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from June 1999 to November 1999. Mr.
Huang completed a programme of marketing from Hubei University
of Technology from September 2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 47, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a director/general
manager/supervisor of various companies within the Group. Mr.
Luo has approximately 26 years of experience in accounting and
worked at Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March
1996, Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability
from April 1996 to December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng
Accounting Firm from January 2002 to December 2007. Mr. Luo
worked for Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co.,
Limited as a certified public accountant from January 2008 to
April 2016. Mr. Luo is currently an executive director of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (stock code: 98), which is listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Luo is a member of The Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree
in economics from Guangdong University of Business Studies in
June 1993.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELESREEABRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 58, has been re-designated as an executive
director of the Company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Lin was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
Mr. Lin has approximately 24 years of experience in the legal field
and worked as a part-time lawyer at various law firms in the PRC
between 1995 and 2001. In 2001, Mr. Lin practised as a lawyer at
Guangdong Everwin Law Office and became a partner at the firm
in 2004. Since 2013, Mr. Lin has been practising as a lawyer at
Guangdong Yogo Law Firm. Mr. Lin obtained a bachelor's degree
in physics from South China University of Technology in July 1982.
Mr. Lin received a certificate of lawyer qualification in the PRC in
January 1990.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a
barrister of the High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil
and criminal litigation. Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor's degree in
business administration from Hawaii Pacific University in August
1997 and a bachelor’s degree in law from City University of Hong
Kong in November 2001. Mr. Wong received a postgraduate
certificate in laws from City University of Hong Kong in July 2002.

Mr. Cheung Man Yu, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31 December 2012.
Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts with major in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Cheung has over 19 years of experience in financial
management and financial services. Mr. Cheung served as the
chief financial officer and company secretary of Feiyu Technology
International Company Ltd. (stock code: 1022), which is listed on
the Stock Exchange from August 2014 to September 2018. Mr.
Cheung was employed at the audit department of Ernst & Young,
an international accounting firm, from February 2000 to April 2004.
Mr. Cheung was a vice president or director at the respective
investment banking division of BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific)
Limited, UBS AG and J.P. Morgan securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
from April 2004 to March 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Ms. Lan Fang, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 January 2015. Ms. Lan
has been the President of Guangdong Construction and Decoration
Materials Association since March 2008 and the President of
Guangdong Construction and Decoration Design Association since
August 2014. Ms. Lan graduated from Guangdong University
of Technology with a college diploma in June 1996 and then
pursued further studies in the EMBA CEQ training programme
of Sun Yat-sen University and the business management CEO
training programme of Tsinghua University. She worked as the
chairman of the materials committee of Guangzhou Architecture &
Decoration Association from February 1998 to October 2006. Ms.
Lan has accumulated over 21 years of experience with respect
to the administration of social organisation and in the industry of
construction and decoration materials.

Dr. Tao Zhigang, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2015. Dr. Tao
is Professor of Economics and Strategy in the Faculty of Business
and Economics and the director of the Institute for China and
Global Development, the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining
the University of Hong Kong in 1998, he taught at Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology from 1992 to 1998. Dr. Tao
received his B.Sc. in management science from Fudan University
in 1986, and PhD in economics from Princeton University in
1992. Dr. Tao is currently an independent non-executive director
of Huadian Fuxin Energy Corporation Limited (stock code: 816),
which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Tao is senior fellow
at Tsinghua University's National Center for Economic Research,
senior fellow at Tsinghua University's Center for China in the
World Economy, and special-term professor at Fudan University
School of Management. He is also co-director of the Asia-Pacific
Competitiveness Program of Hong Kong Institute of Economics and
Business Strategy.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELESREEABRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Cheng Dickson, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Cheng
is currently the managing director and head of the investment
banking department of Shanggu Securities Limited. He acts as
its responsible officer and holds licences for types 1, 4 and 6 of
regulated activities under the SFO.

Prior thereto, Mr. Cheng worked in J.P. Morgan between August
1994 and February 1996. In December 1995, he was promoted
to TCRM professional in its global markets department. Between
March 1996 and June 2000, Mr. Cheng worked in the securities
lending department of The Bank of New York, Hong Kong Branch.
From July 2000 to August 2002, Mr. Cheng worked as an assistant
vice president in the equity capital markets division of BOCI Asia
Limited. In August 2002, Mr. Cheng joined ICEA Capital Limited
and worked in its investment banking division until October
2005 when he was a senior vice president. Mr. Cheng was an
executive director at the respective capital markets department
in the investment banking division of Mitsubishi UFJ Securities
(HK) Capital, Limited and Mizuho Securities Asia Limited from
November 2005 to October 2016. Mr. Cheng has more than 23
years of experience in investment banking industry. Mr. Cheng
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in arts majoring in economics from
University of Toronto in June 1994 and a master of applied finance
degree majoring in corporate finance from Macquarie University of
Australia in November 2000.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 37, is the chief financial officer of the
Group and is responsible for the Group's overall financial and
accounting affairs. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008.
Prior to this, he worked as a finance manager in The Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006,
and was a sub-branch manager of The Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China, Foshan Shunde Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to
2008. Mr. Liu completed a diploma in finance from Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics in September 2005, a
program in laws at Guangdong University of Business Studies from
March 2007 to January 2010, as well as obtaining a master degree
in engineering from Chongging University upon the completion of
courses for the master degree in software engineering (specialised
in financial informatisation) in June 2014. He is an associate
member of the Association of International Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 41, is the company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 10 years of experience
in accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group
in June 2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants
from March 2000 to November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers
from November 2004 to October 2007 and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from November 2007 to September 2009. The latter
two firms are amongst the biggest international accounting firms.
Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor's degree in Commerce from
Deakin University of Australia in September 2000 and obtained a
master degree in business administration from University of South
Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of the CPA
Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN e S/
ERER|RSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance practices and business ethics of the
Group. The Board believes in good corporate governance practices
and business ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable
development, establishing investors’ confidence in the Company
and safeguarding and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices
of the Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations
of the Shareholders for continual improvement, and fulfill its
commitment of pursuing excellent corporate governance. In
the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the
applicable code provisions of the Code during the year, except that
an independent non-executive director was unable to attend the
annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company held on 25 May
2018 (as provided for under the Code A.6.7) due to other business
engagements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to
other specific senior management of the Company. The directors’
and chief executive's interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on
page 66.

BOARD
THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 10 executive
directors and 5 independent non-executive directors.
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BOARD (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing directors shall hold office only until the next
AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting. In addition, at every AGM of the Company, not less
than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Apart from
retirement by rotation pursuant to the Articles, each non-executive
director has a term of within three years. Therefore, no director
will remain in office for a term of more than three years. For details
relating to any relationship among the members of the Board,
including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship, please refer to the sections headed "“Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” and “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the Directors’ Report.

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND BOARD

COMMITTEES

(A)  Mr. Lin Dewei, a non-executive director of the Company, has
been re-designated as an executive director of the Company
and resigned as member of the Company’s audit committee
with effect from 11 July 2018.

(B) Mr. Fung Pui Cheung has resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company (as well as chairman and
member of each of the Company’s audit committee and
remuneration committee, and a member of the Company's
nomination committee) with effect from 11 July 2018.

(C)  Mr. Cheng Dickson has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company and a member of the
Company’s audit committee with effect from 11 July 2018.

(D) Dr. Tao Zhigang, an independent non-executive director of
the Company has been appointed as chairman and member
of each of the Company’s audit committee and remuneration
committee, and a member of the Company’s nomination
committee with effect from 11 July 2018.
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BOARD (Continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the
post of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong
Luen Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important
duties of the chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board
always acts in the best interests of the Group. The chairman shall
ensure the effective operation of the Board and fully perform his/
her duties and ensure all important issues are discussed at Board
meetings in a timely manner. All directors will be consulted for any
proposed items in the agenda. The chairman has delegated the
drafting of the agenda of each Board meeting to the chief executive
and the company secretary. With the assistance of the chief
executive and the company secretary, the chairman aims to ensure
all directors are adequately briefed on any issues being put forward
at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and reliable information in
a timely manner.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors provide various expertise
and experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in
Board meetings and committee meetings and make independent
judgements on issues related to the Group's strategies,
performance, interest conflicts and management process so as to
ensure the interests of all Shareholders are properly considered.

The Company has received annual confirmation made by each
of the independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules regarding their independence. The Company
regarded all independent non-executive directors are independent
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board
exercises its rights in management decision on the aspects of
the Company's development strategy, management structure,
investment and financing, planning, financial control and personnel
in accordance with the requirements of the Code.
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BOARD (Continued)

DUTIES OF THE BOARD (Continued)

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company's
independent auditor to review the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2018 and to audit the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The directors of the Company
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements included in the annual report and the interim
report. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018, the directors have selected and
applied appropriate accounting policies and have made prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditor of the Company on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages
76 to 85.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including:

(a) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to review of the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control system;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(f)  to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate

Governance Report).

The Board has performed the above activities during 2018.
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board convened eight
meetings to review operating performance, funding requirement
and recent market conditions. The Board also considered and
approved the Group's overall strategy, audited annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and reviewed interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2018.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee, attended the AGM of the Company held on 25 May
2018.

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the
Board at the meetings held in 2018:
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HE2018F12A3MBLEFE EFCHHNKX
5 UEFEERE BT RKE&EMMR -
EZgNCEEMIERER 2 BEERE B2
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220189 6 A30 HIE/NEA MR PEIELE -

BEESTRENERZES REZESRFIE
BeMEFEHUERFEARAN201845 5251
BITHBRERBFERE o

TR#HTN2018FEESEHNENTEFEEE)

Meetings attended/eligible to attend®
HERY/ RERLRENRY

Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
AGM®! Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors E=Z BRREFAEY Exg ENZEE RAZER ¥MzEe
Executive directors HTES
Wong Luen Hei EBE 7 8/8 - 2/2 212
Zuo Manlun Linfa 11 7/8 - 12 12
Zuo Xiaoping ER% 171 6/8 - - -
Lai Zhigiang BER 171 8/8 - - -
Kong Zhaocong Lk "N 8/8 - - -
Chen Guonan PR E n 8/8 - - -
Lin Shaoquan iz 171 8/8 - - -
Huang Guirong BER 171 8/8 - - -
Luo Jianfeng BirE 171 8/8 - - -
Lin Dewei® wiEge n 8/8 "M - -
Independent non-executive directors B H{TES
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan IE% n 4/8 212 22 22
Cheung Man Yu RXF n 8/8 212 - 212
Lan Fang B35 171 6/8 - 12 -
Tao Zhigang® B 0/1 8/8 - - -
Cheng Dickson Hipmo - 212 171 - -
Fung Pui Cheung® BIEE N 5/6 171 2/2 212
Note: PR 5E -
(a) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of  (a) REZERMURT EFHAHRE  FREENEME
video conference in accordance with the Articles. BeERTHERE -
(b)  There was no other general meeting held in 2018. (b)  F2018F AN - HEEMBRE RS RIT -
(c) The changes of the Board and Board Committees are set out under the section (c) EEGRESZEGNNEBEFTHNEISEIEZER

headed “Change in Composition of Board and Board Committees” on page 15.
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meetings to the
directors and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance
with the Articles and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda
and the relevant documents will be provided to all directors in
a timely manner. The chairman will give a proper briefing to all
directors on items to be put forward at a Board meeting. To ensure
compliance with the procedure of Board meetings and all applicable
rules and regulations, all directors may gain a full understanding
of all relevant data in a timely manner and may receive advice
and services from the company secretary. The minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available for
inspection by the directors and the auditor of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive
induction package covering the summary of the responsibilities
and obligations of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the
Company'’s constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Hong Kong Companies Registry to each newly
appointed director to ensure he/she to have sufficient awareness of
good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the directors
with written materials, as well as organises seminars on the
professional knowledge and latest development of regulatory
requirements related to director’s duties and responsibilities.

In 2018, the Company invited The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
to give a seminar on the topic of “Project Management for
Commercial Property” to Board members.

EEg @@
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EERIIRXE
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BOARD (Continued)

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued)
Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on
the training records provided to the Company by the directors, the

EEg @)

EERIRZE (&)

BT LAt AR BRE RSN
NAEREMEIIRE  R2018F EETELR

RBEEFRA

directors also participated in the following trainings during 2018: BRI
Type of trainings

Directors -} EAER
Executive directors HBTESE
Wong Luen Hei e AC
Zuo Manlun Tmte A.C
Zuo Xiaoping X A,C
Lai Zhigiang FA 558 A,C
Kong Zhaocong FLIKEE A,C
Chen Guonan PR El AC
Lin Shaoquan N A.C
Huang Guirong HE K AC
Luo Jianfeng BRI A,C
Lin Dewei iz & AC
Independent non-executive directors BYHITES
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan FE%x A,C
Cheung Man Yu KX F A,C
Lan Fang b A,B,C
Tao Zhigang b 2 A,B.C
Cheng Dickson® B 36 7 @ A,C
Fung Pui Cheung® HEEE R © A,C

Note: ffaE -

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A: HEHFEER SeRkHinE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: MKWk sgzk HmEHEs

C: reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the C: BEEHEEHE &F 28 7Kg BEREARRD

responsibilities of directors, economy, fiscal, financial, investments and
business of the Company

AEBHER  WE  TOREHR

(a) Director who was appointed with effect from 11 July 2018. (a) H2018F7A1NMBREZXTAES -

(b) Director who resigned with effect from 11 July 2018. (b) BH2018F7A 1M BREEESE -
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BOARD (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedures of the Board meeting and
ensure the Board is fully briefed on all legislations, regulations
and corporate governance development and has considered
their opinions when making a decision. The company secretary
is also directly responsible for the Group's compliance with its
continuing obligations under the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, Companies
Ordinance, SFO and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the company secretary
has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to refresh his knowledge and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors
and officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of
trust proven against them.

In accordance with the Articles, subject to the Cayman Island
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time),
every director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
director, auditor or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

EEg @@

DNREWE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain
committees under its supervision, including the Company's
audit committee (“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) (collectively known as “Board
Committees”). Board Committees can engage intermediaries
to provide professional opinions and the reasonable expenses
incurred as a result are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Dr. Tao
Zhigang (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan, Mr. Cheung Man Yu and Mr. Cheng Dickson (all are
independent non-executive directors). The major responsibility
of the Audit Committee is to conduct independent and objective
audit of the truth and accuracy of the Group’s economic operation
and financial activities, financial policies, financial procedures,
risk management, internal control, external audit, internal audit,
financial information reporting and financial data and assist the
Board in discharging its relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each
year. In 2018, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The
attendance record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on
page 18.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2018:

° review of the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2017, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

° review of Ernst & Young’'s confirmation of independence
and its report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2017, with a recommendation to the Board for the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young at the 2018 AGM;

° review of continuing connected transactions;

° review of the Group internal audit reports;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

review of the interim report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2018, with
a recommendation to the Board for approval;

review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2018;

consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

review of the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the corporate governance
disclosures for the six months ended 30 June 2018, with
recommendations to the Board for approval;

review of the corporate social responsibility report for the
year ended 31 December 2017 with a recommendation to the
Board for approval; and

review of the annual report on effectiveness of risk
management, internal control system and internal audit
function under the Code, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the
annual report and annual results announcement for the year ended
31 December 2018 with a recommendation to the Board for
approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the service fees paid or
payable by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

EEZEE )

ERZEEE (R

REERERER BEZEREE

EHEZ 20186 A30H 1L/~ E A B+ HA
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RMB million
AREBET
Annual audit services FEEARS 7.25
Non-audit services IEEET IR
— Interim results review — R EfEE R 1.60
- Others# —H b 3.92
Total @Et 12.77
# “Others” were mainly for providing advice on matters in relation to taxation.  * [Eth | *EFEBRBEHENETREZTR - ERNIMNEZH

BMEY R A - MERHZE RS AR RS Rk -

The provision of these services by external auditors were cost effective and
efficient due to their professional knowledge.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely
Dr. Tao Zhigang (chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and independent non-executive director), Mr. Wong Luen Hei
(executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Wong
Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Cheung Man Yu (both of them are
independent non-executive directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying
and formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company’s directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility
to determine the specific remuneration packages of all directors
and senior management. In order to determine the level of
remuneration and fees paid to members of the Board, market
rates and factors such as each director’s workload, responsibility
and job complexity are taken into account. The following factors
are considered when determining the remuneration packages of
directors and senior management:

o business requirements;

° individual performance and contribution to results;

° company performance and profitability;

° retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

° changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand
fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and

° general economic situation.

During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting
each year. In 2018, the Remuneration Committee convened two
meetings, assessed the performance of the Company's directors
and senior management, reviewed terms of their service contracts,
and made recommendation of the remuneration packages for
directors and senior management to the Board. The attendance
record of the meeting is set out on a named basis on page 18.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the remuneration of the two senior management fell
within the band of less than RMB1 million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (chairman of the Nomination Committee and
executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Wong
Kwok Ho Jonathan, Ms. Lan Fang and Dr. Tao Zhigang (all of them
are independent non-executive directors). The major duty of the
Nomination Committee is to study and make recommendations on
the candidates, selection criteria and procedure in respect of the
Company'’s directors and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifies suitable candidates if necessary and makes
recommendations to the Board. The director nomination policy
sets out the approach and procedures the Board adopts for the
nomination and selection of directors of the Company including the
appointment of additional directors, replacement of directors, and
re-election of directors. Below are details of the selection criteria
and nomination process and procedures as set out in the director
nomination policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the potential contribution
such candidate can bring to the Board in terms of his or her
qualifications, skills, experience, independence, age, culture,
ethnicity and gender diversity etc. The Nomination Committee shall
consider the following selection criteria and such other factors that
it may consider appropriate for a position on the Board, including
but not limited to: (a) attributes complementary to the Board, (b)
business experience, board expertise and skills, (c) availability, (d)
motivation, (e) integrity, (f) independence and (g) diversity (in all
aspects).

For the appointment of new and replacement directors, if the
Board determines that an additional or replacement director is
required, it will deploy multiple channels for identifying suitable
director candidates, including referral from directors, shareholders,
management, advisors of the Company and executive search firms.
Upon compilation and interview of the list of potential candidates,
the Nomination Committee will make recommendation to the
Board based on the selection criteria and such other factors that
it considers appropriate. The Board has the final authority on
determining suitable director candidate for appointment.

For the re-election of directors, where a retiring director, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election, the Board shall consider
and, if consider appropriate, recommend such retiring director to
stand for re-election at a general meeting. A circular containing
the requisite information on such retiring director will be sent to
shareholders prior to a general meeting in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

For directors nominated by shareholders, such nominating
shareholder must follow the “Procedures for shareholder(s) of the
Company proposing a person for election as a director” which is
available on the Company’s website.

In any event, the Board shall ensure that the nomination, re-
election and/or appointment of the directors shall be conducted in
compliance with the Listing Rules, the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company and all other applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

For further details, please refer to the nomination policy that is
available on the Company’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting
each year. In 2018, the Nomination Committee convened two
meetings. The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, recommended the Board on
the list of retiring directors for re-election at the AGM on 25 May
2018, and reviewed the independence of all independent non-
executive directors. The Nomination Committee recommended the
Board on re-designating Mr. Lin Dewei as an executive director and
appointing Mr. Cheng Dickson as an independent non-executive
director in accordance with the director nomination policy and
Board diversity policy of the Company. The attendance record of
the meeting is set out on a named basis on page 18.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Board diversity
policy is available on the website of the Company.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and other qualities. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from
time to time in determining the optimal composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will review the Board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to
time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 15 directors.
Two of them are females. One third of the Board members are
independent non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical
review and control of the management process. The composition
of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills, professional
experience and knowledge for effective leadership of the
Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. The Board is also
responsible for monitoring the design, implementation and review
on the risk management and internal control system as carried
out by management, while management has the responsibility
to provide confirmation on the effectiveness of such system. To
this end, management continues to allocate resources for a risk
management and internal control system compatible with the
COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) standards to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system of
the Group and in achieving business objectives of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously
monitored and annually reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control system, and the Board is of
the view that the existing risk management and internal control
system is sufficient, effective and adequate. The review covered
all material aspects with regard to control, including financial
control, operational control and compliance control. The internal
audit reports submitted to the Audit Committee by the Group
also cover aspects of risk management and internal control. The
Board is not aware of any significant areas of concern which may
affect the Shareholders, and believes that the Group has fully
complied with the code provisions on internal controls, including
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, as set forth
in the Code. The Board, through the appraisal performed by the
Audit Committee, reviewed, ensured and confirmed the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
received by the staff and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function at the Board meeting. In light
of the Group’s nature of business and the recommendations on
the Board’s role in risk management, the Group has developed
risk management system and policies, and established a risk
management project team, which is responsible for the Group's
risk management, to communicate and assess the Group's risk
profile and material risks, and track the progress of mitigation plans
and activities of material risks and report on detailed examinations
of specific risks as required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM EREREA&ER

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation AEEEEY —EXSMAMER YAEEFA
structure to manage the risks encountered by the Group. The MEHHEBEITEIER - FHBEBHEKRESIERE
risk management structure of China Lesso comprised of two key B3R ERESEEZE : &k T 122218 FE b & 1212
factors: risk management structure and risk management program. = °
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
Regulatory Organisation
The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the overall
risk management

determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk
tolerance for corporate risk management, and approve
risk management strategies, major risk mitigation
solutions and risk management measures;

comprehend and manage each major risk faced by the
enterprise and its existing management situations, and
make effective risks management decisions; approve
the decision-making standards and mechanisms
regarding major operating decisions, major risks, major
events and major business processes;

approve risk management report related to major
decisions; and

approve the annual comprehensive risk management
report.

Risk Management Organisation

The Audit Committee, the highest risk management
organisation in the Company which is accountable to the
Board

30

review the establishment and planning of the
comprehensive risk management system;

review the proposal on the structure of the risk
management organisations and their responsibilities;

review the annual comprehensive risk management
report and submit to the Board;

review risk management strategies, major risk
management solutions and risk management measures;

and

review the annual risk management work plan.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A)

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

Leading Risk Management Organisation

Risk management project team, the leading risk management
organisation

responsible for the establishment and amendment
of the Company’s risk management policies and
mechanisms;

formulate and submit annual risk management work plan
to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review;

regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk
management, carry out risk assessment and discuss
major risks as faced by the Company; and

assess the soundness, reasonability and the effectiveness
in implementing the risk management system, and
review the annual comprehensive risk management
report, risk management strategies and day-to-day risk
management solutions.

Risk Implementation Organisation

Each functional department of the Company shall accept
the coordination and monitoring carried out by the risk
management project team

implement the basic process in risk management;

consider and propose decision-making standards or
mechanisms regarding major operating decisions, major
risks, major events and major business processes of the
functional department;

analyse and propose risk assessment report of the
functional department;

properly carry out risk management work of the
functional department; and

establish a comprehensive risk management process of
the functional department.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A)

32

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)
Risk Supporting Organisation
Internal control team

assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal control plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

centrally organise or, together with related functional
departments, design, amend or improve internal control
documents in accordance with risk management
solutions;

assist the risk management project team to inspect,
examine, evaluate and improve the implementation of
risk management in each functional departments and
operating units; and

assist the timely rectification and improvements to
existing deficiencies of each functional department
based on the findings in the internal audit report.

Internal audit department

assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal audit plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

carry out measures including walk-through test and
analytical review to evaluate the effectiveness in risk
management; and

after carrying out internal audit, deliver the auditing

results to internal control team and risk management
project team timely.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

ERERASRER @

(B) RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (B) EREERER
The Group has established a comprehensive risk management AEFEERY —ExERAREERER -
program which is led by the risk management project team ZEANBERERIEE %ﬂ 58 - NEFBAN
and implemented with the assistance of the internal audit WIEABEITT - BfREREXNT -
department and internal control team. The risk management
program is as follows:
(a) to collect first-hand information for risk management; (a) EREEF—FEMKE:
(b)  to analyse and assess risks; (b) R D AT A
(c) to propose risk management strategies and form risk (c) RHEEBREHRLE - WHKERE R
management solutions; and iR TT 5
(d) to supervise the implementation of risk management d) HEEBEBURBREEIIEEHRE
works performed by each business units and verify the ETEERZHERMTE -
overall score.
Key Corporate Risk Management Program FTELERBEERERER
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whole
process of risk management, connecting the channels of
communication of risk management information along the
reporting lines and among various departments and business units
to ensure the timely, accurate and complete communication of
information and this has laid the foundation for the supervision and
enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management
matters and the business flow, supervises the work relating
to the first-hand information collection for risk management,
risk assessment, risk management strategies, critical control
activities and the implementation of risk management solutions.
The risk management project team carries out an annual review
and examination on the implementation of the works on risk
management by different departments and business units and its
effectiveness for the year, assesses risk management strategies
and evaluates inter-departmental risk management solutions and
business units’ risk management solutions, proposes suggestions
for adjustments and improvements and issues evaluation and
recommendation reports which will be sent to the relevant senior
management in a timely manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

In 2018, during the course of business planning, we identified
the material risks that the Group may face which include macro-
economic risks, risks of inappropriate strategies for market
competition, risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price, risks of
adjustments of policies in relation to the environmental protection,
economy and industry.

The potential risks of macro-economic risks arise from the effects
of macro-economy’s volatility and the pressure of inflation. The
Group's corresponding measures on risk management include
reviewing the management strategies and mechanism for macro-
economic risks; reviewing the relevant mechanism on the
collection of intelligence about the changes in the external macro-
economic environment; clearly defining the macro-economic risk
analysis session; analysing, reviewing, adjusting and improving the
strategies for managing macro-economic risks in future.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE (Continued)

The potential risks of inappropriate strategies for market
competition arise from the risks involved in the formulation of
competition strategies and risks involved in the collection of
clients’ information. The Group's risk management measures
include reviewing the management mechanism for market
competition strategies; analysing the Company’s position in market
competition, reviewing the corresponding market competition
strategies; and timely devising and reviewing the management
strategies in response to the changes in the market competition
environment and submitting report thereon to management;
collecting the market competition information of new products and
offering suggestions on competition strategies.

The potential risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price arise
because the price of key raw materials purchased by the Company
is easily affected by the shortfall of refining capabilities, changes
in manufacturers’ power and labour cost structure, changes
in the price of resins made from coal and petrochemicals. The
Group's risk management measures include clearly stating the
risk management strategies and mechanism for the fluctuation of
raw materials price in the relevant systems; collecting information
in relation to the fluctuation of raw materials price and releasing
such information internally through an established channel;
regularly reporting and analysing the fluctuation of raw materials
price; clearly defining the analysis session for the increased
risks of fluctuation of raw materials price; analysing, reviewing,
adjusting and improving the management strategies for the risks of
fluctuation of raw materials price.

The potential risks of adjustments of policies in relation to the
environmental protection, economy and industry arise from the
risks of adjustments of environmental policies; risks of adjustments
of urbanisation policies; risks of adjustments of construction
projects of significant water works including water saving and
water supplies; risks of adjustments of real estate policies.
The Group’s risk management measures include reviewing the
management strategies and mechanism for risks involved in the
adjustments of policies in relation to the environmental protection,
economy and industry; collecting information in relation to changes
in environmental protection, economy and industry policies and
releasing such information internally through an established
channel; reviewing the mechanism for monitoring and collecting
the information on laws and regulations that affect the industry.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing
obligations on information management and disclosure to formally
regulate the monitoring of inside information that arises during the
course of its current business development and has established
the practice of delivering such information to shareholders, the
media and analysts. When the Group handles the relevant matters,
it will comply with “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by Securities and Futures Commission and the related
provisions issued by regulatory organisations and the Group has
clearly stated that the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information is prohibited. The Group has a system of answering
enquiries about the Group’s matters by external parties, and has
appointed and authorised the senior executives of the Group to
act as the Company’s spokesperson in response to enquiries on a
particular area.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has formulated a “whistleblowing policy” whereby
employees can report any matters to the chairman or the Audit
Committee secretly by sending electronic mails to the designated
address or by phone without fear of being accused. Such matters
may include misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud regarding
financial matters and accounting practices. Any Shareholder or
stakeholder can also report similar concerns in writing or verbally in
confidence to the Audit Committee.

DIVIDENDS POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject
to the Company'’s discretion. Dividends may be paid only out of its
distributable reserves as permitted under the relevant laws. The
Company has adopted a general dividend policy since the financial
year ended 31 December 2018 of declaring and paying dividends
on a semi-annual basis of around 30% of its profit attributable
to the owners of the Company. The Board would review the
Company's dividend policy from time to time considering factors
including but not limited to debt covenants, capital investment and
business plan.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time).
However, pursuant to the Articles, the Shareholder(s) may request
for the convening of extraordinary general meetings following the
procedures below:

° Any two or more Shareholder(s) or any one Shareholder
which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) may
request for the convening of extraordinary general meetings
by written requisition deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office. The
requisition shall specify the object of the meeting and be
signed by the requisitionist(s), and such requisitionist(s) must
hold as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at the general meeting of the Company.

° The Board shall proceed to convene the extraordinary general
meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

° If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which the meeting may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS'

MEETING (Continued)

° An extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of
a special resolution shall be called by not less than 21 days’
notice in writing and any other extraordinary general meeting
shall be called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing.
The notice of the meeting shall specify the time, place, and
agenda of the meeting, particulars of the resolutions to be
considered and in the case of special business, the general
nature of that business.

° Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS’
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board at the Company'’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong or by email or through the Company’s investor
relations whose contact details are provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this report. In addition, the Shareholders
can contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
the Company'’s branch share registrar, if they have any enquiries
about their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency
in communication with the Shareholders and investors in general.
Communication between the Company and the Shareholders
is conducted through various channels, including interim and
annual reports, information published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company and general meetings.
The Company encourages the Shareholders to attend the
Company’s general meetings. The Group’s financial and other
information is also published on the website of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.lesso.com).

38 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited A B8 &= EiE ik B R A F)

MRER 2 R (@)

BHRREINAERRBERAE LRHBR (F)

s RBBRNARBEMBRZIERFIAE
EEE NIRRT R E®AAN - MERIE
MEMRRFIAGEREL IR 14KZ
EHAM SHBANATARSOERE
HOBEVNESLEZINRIROFER
WA R RS RIER - AIZBEERAZREFTEN
—RIEE -

s BARBREEFZNEFFBENART
MU T -

MEFEEERREANERF

BRAAARBNEELIZEXMHREBET
BHIERARANREERRAEEEHLE
BARRNENR BEFBEEARARS[RTE
FEE R - s RRWMEEMEREERD K
BB ZEN A ABEARARORDBEELD
BR—BBEPABFELHERAA -

BREENRRIEE

RARERRENR —MRIEEEBBREBRNHEFSK
FRERE ARFERFEBBASTERER
- eRPBkFERE  SRBEZAMAEARRQF
PUWER  URBRERE - ARFSHERED
FBARRFRERE - BEARNEE T ERHME
IR B 22 P48 UE (www.hkexnews.hk) & & 2
A (www.lesso.com) A I & o



RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

The Company’s senior management endeavours to maintain an
open dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they
have a thorough understanding of the Company and its operations
and strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of
the function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent
third party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/
analyst meetings from time to time and led investors and analysts
to visit its plants.

As regards to investor relations, the Group will actively conduct
activities related to investor relations in the future to strengthen
its corporate responsibility so that global investors can have
an adequate knowledge and understanding of the Company's
operating strategy, financial performance and development
prospects. The Company will actively develop and maintain close
relationship with investors, analysts and media to achieve sound
investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company
does not comment on market prospects or factors affecting
business and performance, or engage in discussion on events or
trends related to the reporting period. The Company will not initiate
any meeting or conference call with public in which these matters
are discussed. A quiet period starts at 60 days or 30 days prior to
the disclosure of annual results or interim results respectively, and
lasts until the announcement of the annual results or the interim
results.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no change to
the memorandum of association of the Company and Articles. The
latest memorandum of association of the Company and Articles are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

China Lesso is a leading large-scale industrial group which
produces building materials and interior decoration products in
mainland China. The Group established 23 advanced production
bases in 16 regions within China and foreign countries to support a
nationwide sales network. The Group strives to refine its strategic
planning and sales network, offering a comprehensive range of
diverse industrial products and quality sales services.

The Group continued to reinforce its leading position in the Chinese
market, especially in Southern China, on the strength of its quality
products, advanced technologies in research and development and
a wide sales network. In recent years, the Group has been actively
developing business in other local markets and overseas markets.
While steadily upgrading the core business of plastic piping
systems, the Group has also expanded the business of building
materials and interior decoration products, including systems
of doors and windows, sanitary ware products and integrated
kitchens, thereby providing all-in-one solution that includes cost-
effective building materials, interior decoration products and
services for its customers.

The brand name LESSO of China Lesso represents the key
elements of the Group’s corporate culture: “Link, Easiness, Safety,
Sharing and Openness”, and demonstrates its commitment to
“Creating a Relaxing Life for Dwellers”. Since it was established
over 30 years ago, China Lesso has been consistently consolidating
its strong brand position and reputation, and has received quality
accreditations from many national and professional institutions,
including “The Most Trusted Brand by Consumers in 2018",
“Influential Brand in China’s Interior Decoration Industry”,
“"Annual Innovative Brand in China’s Interior Decoration Industry”,
"Preferred Supplier of Top 500 Chinese Real Estate Development
Enterprises in 2018"”, “China’'s Top 100 Companies Award"”,
“Award for Benchmark Company in Quality Manufacturing in
Foshan”, and “Top 10 Companies Award in China'’s Light Industry
and Plastics Industry”. The Group's leading brand position
reflects its strong capabilities to conduct product research and
development and to ensure excellent product quality. This has laid
a foundation for the Group's strong business presence in mainland
China and overseas markets, and gave the impetus for further
expansion of China Lesso's sales network.
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MARKET REVIEW

In 2018, the global economic environment was clouded by
a number of uncertainties and underwent changes, such as
heightened trade friction between China and the United States
as well as turmoil in the European economy as a result of Brexit.
Meanwhile, China’s economic growth remained stable, and made
continued progress due to policies such as supply side structural
reform. During the year under review, China enhanced financial
deleveraging efforts and adopted stringent macro-control measures
on the real estate market, with an aim to continuously cool down
the overall real estate market. In addition, with the ongoing process
of urbanisation, the Chinese government continued to press
on with its policies on energy conservation and environmental
protection, and speeded up multiple large-scale municipal projects
and urban infrastructure construction. This drove up the demand for
the application of pipes and pipe fittings accordingly.

According to the forecast of the “"Development Proposal on
the PRC's Plastic Industry for the 13th Five-year Plan Period
(2016-2020)", China's production volume of plastic pipes during
the period of “The 13th Five-year Plan” will maintain at an annual
growth rate of approximately 3%. In 2020, it is expected that
China's production volume of plastic pipes will reach 16 million
tonnes. Moreover, under “The Program for Construction of the
National Urban Municipal Infrastructure of the 13th Five-year
Plan”, targets have been set for the development of national water
supply, heating, drainage and waterlogging prevention facilities.
Under this program, China plans to add 93,000 kilometres (“km") of
new pipelines to the water supply network, add 95,000 km of new
pipelines and replace 23,000 km of old pipelines to the drainage
network, build 41,000 km of pipelines to the centralised heating
network, 137,000 km of gas pipelines, and 112,400 km of urban
rainwater pipelines during the period of “The 13th Five-year Plan”.
These large-scale infrastructure projects will give momentum to
urbanisation and regional economic development, and will generate
enormous demand for pipes, thus benefitting the industry.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

The rapid growth of demand for natural gas in China provided a
significant growth driver for the pipeline industry. “The Program
for Natural Gas Development under the 13th Five-Year Plan” stated
that during the period of “The 13th Five-year Plan”, China will
build 40,000 km of new main and branch natural gas pipelines,
which will result in a total distance of 104,000 km in 2020. As the
State Council stated in the “Several Opinions on Promoting the
Coordinated and Stable Development of Natural Gas”, natural gas
infrastructure construction and connectivity among them shall
be enhanced to develop a diversified natural gas supply system.
According to the "Clean Winter Heating Plan for Northern China
(2017-2021)", China plans to add eight new main pipes. After
the completion of construction and commencement of operation,
the supply capacity will increase by approximately 75 billion cubic
meters per year, while there are plans for six provinces and cities
including Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shandong, Henan and Shanxi
to add 4,300 km from 2017 to 2021. In addition, the province of
Heilongjiang has engaged in the construction of the natural gas
pipeline network where the total investment will reach over RMB13
billion and will cover the natural gas pipeline network of 36 main
and branch pipelines with a total distance of 2,800 km. Following
the nationwide implementation of clean heating infrastructure
construction works, it is expected that a stable growth driver will
be provided for the pipeline industry.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

2018 was a year when China made substantial progress of the
“Action Plan for Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.
According to the requirements of the new “Law on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution” and the related planning under the
“13th Five-year Plan” of the country, various local governments of
China have successively promulgated a series of pollution control
policies, which will facilitate sewage control, improve the quality
of water environment, enhance the municipal pipeline network
and sewage disposal equipment, thus generating enormous
market demand for the pipeline industry. In the “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Plan for Major River Basins (2016-2020)",
according to the objective of the “13th Five-year Plan”, the National
Development and Reform Commission estimated investments
in water pollution prevention and control projects in major river
basins totalled around RMB700 billion. In particular, the investment
in municipal sewage disposal and ancillary facilities development
projects was estimated to be RMB316.1 billion. Meanwhile, various
local governments in China have successively engaged in the
pipeline network reformation plan. For instance, in the “Three-
Year Action and Implementation Plan for the Reformation of the
Aged Municipal Pipeline Network of Cities in Hebei Province
(2018-2020)", it is expected that an investment of approximately
RMB11.55 billion will be used to improve the water supply, heat
supply, gas and combined drainage pipeline network. Also, in
the "Action Plan for Safety Operation Enhancement of Municipal
Pipeline Network in Jilin Province”, a full coverage of the
underground pipeline network is targeted and it is expected that a
sizable amount of market demand will be unleashed.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

During the year under review, the State Council promulgated the
“Strategy Plan for Rural Revitalisation (2018-2022)", in which
it is suggested that greater effort shall be made to develop the
construction of rural infrastructure, and to enhance rural irrigation
infrastructure and network development, as well as to promote
the urbanisation development by unifying cities and rural area. In
the “Crucial Action Plan for Pollution Control in Agriculture and
Rural Areas” jointly promulgated by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment and the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs, it
is even expressly stated that pollution control in rural areas is of
major concern. General sewage control in rural areas has been a
top priority. In regions where rural environmental infrastructure
development are lagging behind, there shall be initiation of the
development of infrastructure such as water supply, drainage
gutter, sewage collecting pipeline and sewage disposal networks.
It is expected that by 2020, arbitrary disposal of general sewage in
rural areas will be under control. The progress of rural infrastructure
construction will bring about increasing market drivers for the
pipeline development market.

The “Program for Developing National Marine Economy under the
13th Five-year Plan” was introduced by the Chinese government
to adjust and improve the traditional marine industries, promote
comprehensive regional development of the marine industries
primarily in the form of marine ranch construction, in order to
realise a sustainable development of land-ocean coordination
and people-ocean harmony. Meanwhile, it can further optimise
settings of the oceanic economy, improve the deployment of port
resources, develop integrated and ancillary industry chains, and
promote the oceanic economy transformation from one of speed
and scale to a quality and efficiency model. According to the
“Implementation Plan for Seawater Desalination Works around
Islands”, it is intended to promote the development, upgrade and
transformation of seawater desalination works around 100 islands
in 3 to 5 years in coastal provinces and cities such as Liaoning,
Shandong, Qingdao, Zhejiang, Fujian and Hainan, and actively
promote the application of scaling of seawater desalination. The
move to improve the marine utilisation industries is expected
to enlarge the plastic pipe market and present new business
opportunities for the application of pipes.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

Affected by the external economic environment, the building
materials and interior decoration market entered a reshuffling
period in 2018. During the reporting period, the Chinese
government closely and successively launched a number of
policies to stringently manage the real estate market from
overheating, and the objectives of housing price stabilisation,
rental management, leverage reduction, risk aversion, structural
adjustment and expectation stabilisation were implemented
seriously. According to the “Notification of Inspection and
Reformation Progress of CPC's Unit at the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development” promulgated by the Ministry of Housing
and Urban-Rural Development, the government insisted on its
position of “Housing is for living, not for speculating”. Meanwhile,
it was reiterated in the Central Economic Work Conference that
a specific strategy for specific cities and specific instruction for
specific category orientation will be adopted to develop a long
term and effective mechanism for the healthy development of the
real estate market. The growth pace of the real estate investment
in 2018 slightly slowed down as a result of the policy, which in
turn directly affected the performance of the building materials
and interior decoration industry. The official implementation of
the Environmental Protection Tax Law and the launch of a range
of more stringent standard further standardised standards for the
building materials and interior decoration industry and accelerated
the pace of reshuffling of the industry. However, benefitting from
the upgrade of consumption structure are the development of new
retail sales, further progress in the supply side structural reform,
advances in the new mode of urbanisation and the reorganisation
of real estate industry, it will present new opportunities for the
building materials and interior decoration industry.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

In terms of the development of overseas market, China actively
pursued exchanging development ideas and strengthening strategy
connection with different countries and regions, in order to achieve
cooperation and mutual winning and active promotion of a large
number of Sino-foreign cooperation projects, such as China-
Myanmar Economic Corridor and China-Europe Railway Express
and Hambantota Port, etc. Meanwhile, significant progress has
been made in the “Belt and Road Initiative” as it is continuously
developed by China and cooperation has been commenced with
over 50 countries during the year under review. The Chinese
government continued to increase its support to various industries,
thus resulting in overseas markets becoming solid business
growth drivers for Chinese companies. The continued expansion
of overseas cooperation projects and “Belt and Road Initiative”
provide huge room for infrastructure construction, hence massive
demand for the application of pipes and pipe fittings as well as
building materials and equipment.

RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Group continued its strict
adherence to the national policy to continuously stabilise the
plastic piping systems business, and actively develop the building
materials and interior decoration business as well as environmental
protection business at the same time, in order to broaden the
revenue base for the Group. In 2018, benefitting from the Chinese
economy which maintained medium to high growth rate and a huge
demand for infrastructure construction, the revenue of China Lesso
increased by 16.6% year on year to RMB23,734 million (2017:
RMB20,360 million). During the year, on the back of the Group's
economies of scale, continued enhancement of the production
capacity of plant and the implementation of effective cost control,
the gross profit rose by 17.1% year on year to RMB6,228 million
(2017: RMB5,317 million), with gross profit margin remaining at a
healthy level of 26.2% (2017: 26.1%).
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RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by business
unit for 2018 and 2017:

XBEREA W@

TEREHEHE2018F R 2017 FWALEKE H
S

Revenue % of total revenue
N RN %
2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB million ~ RMB million Change
ARBEERT ARKBETR 25
Plastic piping systems BHREERS 21,343 18,110 17.9% 89.9% 88.9%
Building materials and BMREEM
interior decoration products 1,314 1,356 (3.1)% 5.6% 6.7%
Others* Hit 1,077 894 20.4% 4.5% 4.4%
Total @t 23,734 20,360 16.6% 100.0% 100.0%
# “Others"” include businesses of environmental engineering and other related # [E | BERETRELEMABRSE RS EE

services, financial services and others.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the number of the Group's
independent and exclusive first-tier distributors nationwide
increased to 2,193 (2017: 2,155). Southern China remained the
Group's major revenue contributor, and revenue from Southern
China and other regions accounted for 55.3% and 44.7%
respectively (2017: 56.6% and 43.4%) of the Group's total
revenue.
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RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by region for
2018 and 2017:

ES-E. 3 0¢ )

TREHEHZE2018F % 2017 FW AL M E E] 5
S

Revenue % of total revenue
O R A %

2018 2017 2018 2017

RMB million ~ RMB million Change

Region* WE AR®EERT ARKBETR 25
Southern China 27 13,136 11,621 14.0% 55.3% 56.6%
Southwestern China il 2,541 2,115 20.1% 10.7% 10.4%
Central China B 2,844 2,231 27.5% 12.0% 10.9%
Eastern China ER 1,265 1,224 3.4% 5.3% 6.0%
Northern China #i 1,608 1,341 19.9% 6.8% 6.6%
Northwestern China ficsle 954 746 27.9% 4.0% 3.7%
Northeastern China ®it 582 460 26.6% 2.5% 2.3%
Outside China RS 804 722 11.2% 3.4% 3.5%
Total et 23,734 20,360 16.6% 100.0% 100.0%

# Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to  * EMENBEZHEFBIRNGEMBERERMTS -

consolidated financial statements.

Over the years, the Group reduced the pressure which stemmed
from rising raw materials and production costs by means of
economies of scale, production automation and by increasing the
utilisation rate of production facilities, while actively enhancing
operational efficiency, optimising its product portfolio and
expanding market coverage, which contributed to the sustainable
development and profitability of the Group.

The Group's EBITDA increased by 15.1% year on year to RMB4,409
million during the reporting period (2017: RMB3,831 million),
and the EBITDA ratio was 18.6% (2017: 18.8%). Profit before
tax increased by 9.5% year on year to RMB3,236 million (2017:
RMB2,955 million). Profit attributable to owners of the Company
increased by 8.7% year on year to RMB2,492 million (2017:
RMB2,293 million). Basic earnings per share increased by 8.1%
year on year to RMB0.80 (2017: RMBO0.74). The effective tax rate
stayed at 24.4% (2017: 23.3%).

To express gratitude to the Shareholders for their support and to
share with them the fruits of the Group’s endeavours, the Board
proposed payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK18 cents per share).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS

The Chinese government promoted various energy and
environmental protection policies such as “Coal to Gas” and
“Action Plan for Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”, and
continued to implement piping and pipeline networks planning, in
order to generate a stable market demand for plastic pipes and pipe
fittings. For the year ended 31 December 2018, benefitting from
the stable increase in demand of the Chinese construction industry,
coupled with municipal projects and infrastructure construction,
as well as a smooth development of the overall performance of
the real estate market, all of these generated more orders and
supported a stable growth of the plastic piping systems business
of the Group. During the reporting period, the revenue from the
plastic piping systems business increased by 17.9% year on year to
RMB21,343 million (2017: RMB18,110 million), and accounted for
89.9% of the Group's total revenue (2017: 88.9%).

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic
piping systems business by product application for 2018 and 2017:

EBEOERREE

BHEERS
FREEATHES [ HE R R K5 EERITE R
B ERRERAREE  URFEZEEEER
RE ABREENEMHERTEREBETATSS
Ko EHZE2018F 12 A3 HILFEE - RENFEH
BETEMEREBESEA THRIEBRERE
B UREHEERERRETERAMTRMAIE
HEEM AEENBREERRERERFER
R RMEHRN - BREBRHEFNWAL
FIIMN17.9% E AR 213.4318 7T (20174 -
ARBE181.101E) ' HAEELWAK89.9%
(20174 :88.9%) °

ot

NNy

TREVEE2018F N 2017 FBHE B
WA E RERSE DS -

Revenue % of total revenue
A LA %

2018 2017 2018 2017

RMB million ~ RMB million Change

AREEERT AREBHER 25
Water supply itk 8,274 6,887 20.1% 38.8% 38.0%
Drainage Bk 8,171 6,965 17.3% 38.3% 38.5%

Power supply and BAHRERBR
telecommunications 3,716 3,257 14.1% 17.4% 18.0%
Gas transmission IR m 8 i 459 412 11.3% 2.1% 2.3%
Others® Hin 723 589 22.6% 3.4% 3.2%
Total @t 21,343 18,110 17.9% 100.0% 100.0%
# “Others” include agricultural applications, floor heating and fire services. # [t | RERR - g RE -
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

The Group also continued to boost sales volume of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings such that sales volume of the plastic piping
systems increased by 8.2% vyear on year. In terms of product
materials, sales volume of PVC products increased by 6.3% vyear
on year to 1,682,949 tonnes (2017: 1,582,697 tonnes), while
that of non-PVC products increased by 15.0% year on year to
485,673 tonnes (2017: 422,143 tonnes). Revenue from sales of
PVC products increased by 15.4% year on year to RMB13,660
million (2017: RMB11,840 million) while that of non-PVC products
increased by 22.5% year on year to RMB7,683 million (2017:
RMB6,270 million).

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic
piping systems by region for 2018 and 2017:

(¥XEOEREE @)

BRHEBZRG ()
AEENEEINRSBNEEREFNER
HE BHEERRHERFTIEINE2% - E
WK S E PVCERMBERFEMNE3%
% 1,682,949M8 (20174 : 1,582,697 M) - 3k
PVCE A $H = Bl IR F 12 )N15.0% = 485,673
A (2017 4F : 422,1430F) - 35 EPVCE m K IF
PVCEMATEHWRADBIZFIELMNI5.4% E A
R#136.60187L (2017 F : AR 118.40187T)
K 225%EAREET6.83BIT (20176 « AR
62.70187T) °

TREHNEHZE2018FE N 2017 FBREERHUW
AN e E o S

Revenue % of total revenue
WA LA A %
2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB million ~ RMB million Change
Region & AR¥BBER AREBETR #5
Southern China e 11,743 10,160 15.6% 55.0% 56.1%
Other than Southern EFNIMLE
China 9,223 7,672 20.2% 43.2% 42.4%
Outside China B RS 377 278 35.4% 1.8% 1.5%
Total @at 21,343 18,110 17.9% 100.0% 100.0%
During the reporting period, as affected by global economic RIBEEAN - L2 EIBIE A BUSRAE M
environment, geopolitical factors and exchange rate fluctuation, the  [EZFE) 2 - R E FHMAER L1TE Hi1E

average cost of raw materials posed an increasing upward pressure
on prices. The Group strived to maintain its gross profit margin at a
reasonable and healthy level by effectively controlling the costs of
raw materials and production through economies of scale, massive
procurement from raw materials suppliers and other measures.
As the average cost of sales increased by 8.8% year on year, the
Group lifted the average selling price of its plastic piping systems
by 9.0% year on year to RMB9,842 per tonne (2017: RMB9,033
per tonne). The gross profit margin of this business reached 27.2%
(2017: 27.1%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

The table below sets out the breakdown of average selling price,
sales volume, and revenue from plastic piping systems business by
product material for 2018 and 2017:

XBOEREE #®)

BREEBERASK (F)
TREFNBEE2018F R 2017 FEHEBRAF
BREMMHEDOFHEE - HEMKANIEA

B3

Average selling price Sales volume Revenue
THER #E WA

2018 2017 2017 2018 2017
RMB RMB Change Tonne Tonne Change ~ RMB million  RMB million Change
AEH ARE £5 I £5 ARMEER ARKAEER 25
PVC products PVICER 8,116 7481 8.5% 1,682,949 1,582,697 6.3% 13,660 11,840 15.4%
Non-PVC products® EPVCER® 15,820 14,853 6.5% 485,673 422,143 15.0% 7,683 6,270 22.5%
Total @it 9,842 9,033 9.0% 2,168,622 2,004,840 8.2% 21,343 18,110 17.9%

# “Non-PVC" plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE or # [JEPVCIBREBREHXTELZPEXPP-RE -
PP-R.

The Group actively enhanced its standards in automatic production
and smart production, and strived for full mechanisation in the
production of pipe products, so as to improve the overall production
capacity, quality and efficiency in fulfilling the market demand.
During the year under review, the Group’s annual designed capacity
of plastic pipes and pipe fittings expanded from 2.40 million tonnes
in 2017 to 2.62 million tonnes, with a capacity utilisation rate of
84.8% in the year.

The Group has progressively expanded the capacity with reference
to business development and actual requirement. Looking forward,
the Group will continue to enhance its core competitiveness and
actively develop and update its intelligent plant and equipment, in
order to improve its efficiency. Meanwhile, the Group will continue
to promote a full automation of its production base and further
optimise the mechanic equipment and ancillary facilities in its
existing production base in order to raise the level of automation
and accelerate the production process, so as to expand the capacity
and enhance the production efficiency. In addition, the Group
will also continue to put in effort for innovation and research and
development, with a focus on cutting edge technological research
in the piping and building materials industry, which can ensure the
technology claims an industry leading position and endeavour to
provide diversified and quality products for the public.

AEBERIEFAEEGBEMERIKT - EE
BEMEETFERZEERL  BARSERE
BECBENNE mEMBER -BEFAN K
SEZHEBREMHEENFERE]RH2017
FH240EMEEZ 262 B - FNERFAEXE
84.8% -
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Ko fp s REBE T HRERARMFE  Fx
TRE B R EE S R0 RS BB 9T - REAR I &Y
TRBERMAL  BORASARRER—RZ T &E
EWEmM-°

Annual Report 2018 F#f 51



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W LD

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

With China’s steady progress in its plan for development and
the robust demand in the field of infrastructure construction,
the application of plastic pipes and pipe fittings are further
drivers which have contributed to the opportunities of market
development. As a market leader, the Group will strive to expand
the scope of applications of plastic pipes and pipe fittings to
increase product sales, thereby maintaining its market leadership.
Overall, the management is fully confident on the future
development of the plastic piping systems business segment, and
it is believed that the Group will continue to deliver a solid and
satisfactory business performance.

BUILDING MATERIALS AND INTERIOR DECORATION
PRODUCTS

In 2018, the central government intensively promulgated specific
regulations which exerted downward pressure on the growth in
the real estate market, resulting in decline in the growth rates of
floor area sold and sales value of national commercial housing.
During the year, the Group's business of building materials and
interior decoration products continued to be under pressure due
to external unfavourable factors. Nevertheless, during the year,
the Group successfully acquired several large-scale property
corporate customers and received more new orders from existing
customers. This business steadily developed, and generated
income of RMB1,314 million (2017: RMB1,356 million), accounting
for 5.6% of the Group's total revenue. The Group anticipated that
the regulatory policies for real estate industry in 2019 will turn
more accommodative than last year and believed that the business
of building materials and interior decoration products will benefit
from the positive impacts driven by the less stringent policy
implementation. In 2019, the Group will strive to deliver continuous
growth in revenue of the business of building materials and interior
decoration products, and increase the revenue proportion of this
business to the Group’s total revenue. At the same time, the
Group will strengthen its promotion to existing customers, actively
engage new customers and increase sales by provision of diverse
products.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

OTHERS

Environmental Protection

To cope with the Chinese government’s environmental protection
initiatives, the Group is actively expanding its environmental
protection business. The Group actively capitalised on municipal
projects in various fields, including those of municipal sewerage
system, river treatment, soil restoration, underground pipeline
gallery, sponge city, installation of integrated water purifiers. All
these projects drove up the demand for plastic pipes and pipe
fittings. However, the business development of environmental
protection was slightly slower than expected owing to the
modification to the regulations governing the finance of public-
private partnerships projects by the Chinese government. During
the year, this business maintained a steady growth and realised
a revenue of RMB188 million (2017: RMB180 million). The Group
aspires to become an one-stop environmental protection service
provider and to enable people to live eco-friendly lives. The Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire 70%
equity interest in Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Yongbao”) in October 2018 at a consideration
of RMB392 million. Pursuant to the agreement, the minority
shareholder of Jiangsu Yongbao has the right to sell the remaining
30% equity interest to the Group after three years from the date
of acquisition. Jiangsu Yongbao has been engaging in the provision
of hazardous waste, wastewater and exhaust fumes treatment
services in China. The Group will continue to enhance its own
technology, operation and quality, and fostering new growth drivers
so as to achieve synergy between its environmental protection
business and other businesses, and diversify its source of income.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

OTHERS (Continued)

Lesso Home

To capitalise on the “Belt and Road Initiative”, the Group promoted
a business line named “Lesso Home"” with the aim of bringing
“"One-Stop Specialised Market for Home Furnishing Products” to
the overseas markets. Lesso Home aims to build a multinational
platform for Chinese manufacturers of home furnishings, building
materials and other consumer products to showcase their products
and facilitate the distribution and retailing of such products. Lesso
Home will also provide ancillary services, including marketing and
branding. During the year, “Lesso Home"” business realised a
revenue of RMB371 million (2017: RMB316 million).

The Group has 12 site reserves in the United States, Canada,
Australia, Thailand and United Arab Emirates. All of the sites
are located within close proximity to major metropolitan areas.
Most of the projects are under planning and development, of
which one to two projects are expected to be finalised in 2019.
The Group aims to develop these sites into the largest one-stop
showroom markets specialised for home furnishing products in its
respective local market. Tenants will independently operate their
own showrooms, and sell their products directly to local traders,
retailers and consumers. The Group is confident that the “Lesso
Home" business will become another growth driver for the Group
in the long run.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group's capital expenditure for 2018 was approximately
RMB1,626 million, which was primarily used for improvement of
automated facilities in production bases, expansion of the existing
production bases and acquisition of properties in foreign countries.
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Given the increasing trend in using aluminium profiles as major
construction materials in the PRC, the Group acquired a 26.28%
equity interest in Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa
Aluminium”), the issued shares of which is listed on the Stock
Exchange in 2018 at a consideration of HK$974 million. Xingfa
Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profile manufacturers
in China. The Group considers the acquisition not only serves as a
valuable investment with sustainable returns, but also as a good
strategic investment. With extensive experience in the business of
construction materials and industrial materials, Xingfa Aluminium
has established various kinds of sales channels and a diverse
customer base. The acquisition may create long-term commercial
synergies with the Group's businesses to broaden its sales
channels and expand its customer base, and enrich the Group's
already comprehensive portfolio of products and services. This
can facilitate the Group's business diversification and reinforce its
market leadership. In 2018, Xingfa Aluminium recorded a revenue
of RMB9,925 million, and profit attributable to the shareholders of
Xingfa Aluminium was RMB495 million.

In 2018, the Group acquired 38% of the equity interest in Foshan
Hechuang Yingke Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Hechuang
Yingke") at a consideration of RMB356 million. Hechuang Yingke
is an enterprise that primarily engages in commercial real estate
development and integrates the diverse operations of real estate
development, market development, leasing business, property
management and exhibition management. Hechuang Yingke
focuses on the development and operation of high-quality, large-
scale, multi-format comprehensive commercial real estate projects.
For example, “Asia International Furniture Material Trading Center”
is a furniture industry base with the integration of global furniture
material procurement, information, logistics and exhibition centres.
In 2018, Hechuang Yingke recorded a revenue of RMB230 million
and the profit attributable to the shareholders of Hechuang Yingke
of RMB63 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance,
fund utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject
to effective centralised management and supervision. The Group
keeps reasonable gearing level and adequate liquidity.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total debts (i.e. total
borrowings) of approximately RMB11,731 million, of which 55.1%
was denominated in US dollar, 21.1% was denominated in HK
dollar, 19.2% was denominated in RMB, 3.1% was denominated
in Australian dollar and 1.5% was denominated in Canadian dollar.
The Group's borrowings are subject to effective interest rates
ranging from 3.22% to 5.39% per annum with maturity periods
ranging from within one year to more than five years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities were approximately RMB14,883 million and RMB13,105
million respectively. The Group's Current Ratio decreased to
1.14 from 1.50 as at 31 December 2017, while the Quick Ratio
decreased to 0.87 from 1.10 as at 31 December 2017. The Group's
total equity increased to approximately RMB15,073 million. The
Group’s Gearing Ratio stood at a healthy level of 43.8%.

With cash and bank deposits, including restricted cash, of
approximately RMB6,452 million as well as unutilised banking
facilities, the Board considers that the Group has sufficient working
capital for its operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuation and no hedging had been arranged during the period.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s other financial
assets with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
RMB34 million were pledged to a bank to secure the banking
facility granted, but this banking facility has not been utilised. The
secured bank loans were secured by the concession rights of a
subsidiary and personal guarantee provided by a shareholder of that
subsidiary.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of
approximately 11,700 employees including directors. Total staff
costs were RMB1,018 million during the year. The Group ensures
that the remuneration packages for employees are determined
based on their work performance, professional experience and the
prevailing industry practice. Discretionary year-end bonus may be
paid to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits
to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme and
training programmes.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held long-term and short-
term financial investments of approximately RMB1,853 million
(31 December 2017: RMB1,582 million) and RMB47 million (31
December 2017: nil), respectively. The investment portfolio
comprised of 38.4% listed equity securities (issued by PRC-
based home improvement and furnishings shopping malls
operating company, PRC-based property developer and PRC-based
environmental companies), 13.4% listed debt securities, 1.8%
listed non-cumulative redeemable preference shares, 0.5% listed
perpetual capital securities, 43.4% unlisted securities, and 2.5%
debt instruments. Each of these investments has a carrying amount
accounting to less than 5% of the Group's total assets as at 31
December 2018.

During the reporting period, the Group recognised a realised
disposal gain of approximately RMB90 million, unrealised mark-
to-market valuation loss of approximately RMB273 million due to
volatile global capital market and recognised approximately RMB59
million of exchange gain on translation. Income from the portfolio
amounted to approximately RMB38 million in the reporting period,
representing dividend and interest incomes.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The Group will study the market and information of the prospective
investees cautiously before it makes its investment decisions.
The Group will also monitor the performance of its investees
closely and regularly after purchases and will adjust the investment
strategy in a cautious manner to minimise the impact of market
volatility on the Group as and when necessary.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s investment properties were
approximately RMB4,650 million. Increase in investment properties
was mainly attributable to the capitalisation of construction costs
on certain investment properties under development, gains arising
from changes in the fair values of investment properties were
approximately RMB312 million and the translation effects during
the reporting period.

Among these investment properties, the malls in Toronto, Canada
are existing properties, the malls in Long Island, US and in Auburn
district of Sydney, Australia are under refurbishment and the lands
in Thailand and China are under development. Other properties are
under rezoning or at the planning stage of development.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
investments as at 31 December 2018.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental protection is always a top priority of China
Lesso. The Group has applied the ideas of going green and
environmental protection throughout its product design, research
and development, production and practical operations, and
has adopted a variety of eco-friendly measures to minimise
impact on the environment. On top of that, the Group supports
the development of environmental protection industry and be
committed to water treatment and the construction of sponge
city. In addition, the Group establishes a complete environment
management system, continues to improve criteria and measures
concerning management of environmental protection, adopts a
more simplified operating processes and energy-efficient hardware
to reduce consumption of energy and water resources, increases
benefits from resource consumption, reduces wastes emissions
and enhances recycling.

The Group complies with laws and regulations governing air
pollution, noise emission, solid waste discharge, and other
environmental protection issues in China. The environmental
management and compliance department work together with the
legal department to ensure the Group will keep abreast of the latest
development on environment-related laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

China Lesso takes an active part in community investment and
public welfare and provides care for underprivileged groups in the
society, aiming to apply its influence, bring positive changes to
the communities where it operates, and maintain sound relations
with the communities where it operates. Further, the Group
actively supports the development of education in poverty-stricken
areas and encourages its employees to serve the community as
volunteers.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

EMPLOYEE

China Lesso recognises employees as one of its most important
assets. In strict compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group protects the legitimate rights and interests
of its employees and fixes on its pay system based on the
principles of legality, equity, fairness and encouragement so as to
ensure an equal access to fair treatment and career opportunities.
In addition, the Group has formulated its own health and safety
policies, intensified safety training for employees, carried out
routine safety patrols and actively pushed forward with relevant
management system building for the purpose of creating a safe
working environment for its employees, achieving a work-life
balance for its employees through diverse activities.

With great emphasis on career development of its employees,
the Group is committed to creating diversified and comprehensive
development channels for its employees by offering a series of
training programs and regular lectures on safety and health through
its own Lesso College.

CUSTOMER AND SUPPLIER

China Lesso has strived to maintain uninterrupted communications
with its suppliers for win-win results based on the procurement
principles of fairness, openness and impartiality. The Group has
put in place a Supplier Management Code and conducts regular
performance evaluation of its suppliers. In addition, the Group has
formulated a management system, a reporting process and set up
a management team against malpractices in an effort to oversee
behaviour of all its employees and protect the interests and rights
of the Company and its shareholders. With respect to customer
services and management, the Group upholds the “market-
oriented, customer-centred” principle and adopts strict control over
product quality. The Group is committed to providing its customers
with safe, reliable and quality products.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Set out below is the report presented by the Board together with
the Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 45, 17 and 18 respectively to
consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and analysis
of these activities, including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group's business, the Group's environmental
policies can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
This discussion forms part of the Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 230.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK20 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Proposed Final Dividend”) to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Wednesday,
5 June 2019, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Monday, 27 May 2019 (the “2019 AGM"). It is expected that the
Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on Monday, 17 June 2019.

Including the interim dividend of HK10 cents per share (2017: nil)
for the six months ended 30 June 2018 which was paid to the
Shareholders on 28 September 2018, the total dividend for 2018
amounts to a total of HK30 cents per share (2017: HK18 cents per
share), which represents a payout ratio of 32.7% (2017: 22.6%) of
the profit attributable to the Shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A)

(B)

62

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE 2019 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 22 May 2019 to Monday, 27 May 2019,
both dates inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 May 2019.

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE
PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 3 June 2019 to Wednesday, 5 June 2019,
both dates inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
receive the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Principal corporate governance practices and permitted indemnity
provision adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 14 to 39.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
past five financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is
set out on page 3. The summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group's major properties and property interests
are set out on pages 231 to 233.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company’'s share capital during
the year are set out in note 34 to consolidated financial statements.

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The details of acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries are set out in
notes 36 and 37 respectively to consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB2,523 million (2017: RMB2,387
million). The amount of RMB1,906 million (2017: RMB1,906
million) represented the Company’s share premium which may be
distributable provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers was less than
4.0% of the Group’s total turnover. The total purchase attributable
to the Group's five largest suppliers was 43.2% of the Group's total
purchases and the purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 31.6%.

At no time during the year did the directors, their close associates
or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interests in these suppliers or customers referred to
above.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group's charitable donations were
approximately RMB5.13 million (2017: RMB4.63 million).

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)

Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Mr. Lin Dewei (re-designated from non-
executive director to executive
director on 11 July 2018)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

Mr. Cheng Dickson

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

(appointed on 11 July 2018)
(resigned on 11 July 2018)

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Cheng Dickson shall retire from office at the 2019
AGM and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Wong Luen Hei, Mr. Kong Zhaocong, Dr. Lin
Shaoquan and Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan are subject to
retirement by rotation at the 2019 AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 7 to 12.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

EERITHRARNRKRS  HERORE
EENESERAR

MR2018F 12 A31 8B AR AIEZ RITHAFER
RA B EE R AR (FH RHEKME XV
HAMER) WKL  BEARO RERETES
BIEEH NS EHIE 352 G BARARRBFEN
s  RBEETAABNAQF R
BT R AR T

Number and capacity of shares of the Company interested®

ARAESROHMAEREED

Percentage of
the issued share

Beneficial Interests of capital of the
Name owner spouse Other interests Total Company
¥ NG|
ERTRAMN
A EREEA [TREY: £ HthiE & Ay BAl
Wong Luen Hei - 2,308,000 (L)@ 2,122,485,000 (L) 2,124,793,000 (L) 68.49%
BHE
Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (L)@ - 2,122,485,000 (L) ®"@ 2,124,793,000 (L) 68.49%
EXH
Zuo Manlun 4,642,000 (L) - - 4,642,000 (L) 0.15%
Lite
Luo Jianfeng 1,927,000 (L) - - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
BEE
Note: PEE -
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) FELIEZALTREZEEZSHFHNTERE -
(b)  These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which was wholly-  (b) ZEARARRBMATEENSEE ZARHAAERERE
owned by Xi Xi Development and ultimately owned by UBS Trustees (B.V.I.) &% WL HUBS Trustees (B.V.1) Limited {F

Limited, as trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”), the settlor of which
is Mr. Wong Luen Hei (“Mr. Wong"”). The discretionary beneficiaries of the
Trust included Mr. Wong and his family members. Both Mr. Wong and Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping are taken to be interested in the said shares of the Company held by
the Trust under the SFO.

(c) Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding 2,308,000 shares of the Company. Mr.
Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is deemed
to be interested in such shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

(d) These shares related to the same block of shares in the Company as set out in
note (b) above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS PURSUANT TO SFO

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO:

BREZZRAERAEMRRNVERR
KB

7R2018F 12 A31H  RAR B[R M 87D
FHEBEREBEESMHAERIEIIKETFED
EMPREmEEAEMALT(RARES
RATHABHBRIN 0T -

Percentage of the

Number of issued issued
ordinary shares share capital of the
Name of Shareholders Capacity held @ Company
FENE®&T HARTE BT
B A 51 38 R B E B E S b
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee 2,122,485,000 (L)® 68.41%
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited EFEA
Xi Xi Development Interests of controlled 2,122,485,000 (L)® 68.41%
corporation
PR RE ZEEBEER
New Fortune Beneficial owner 2,122,485,000 (L)® 68.41%
FEe EnlEA A
Note: B 5
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person'’s long position in such securities. (a) FEILIEZATRZEESFNTER -
(b)  These shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company as those set  (b) ZERNER EXEERITERAHNRD - BER K

out in note (b) in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other
than the directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
any interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Scheme”) to recognise the contributions by certain eligible
persons to the Group and to offer suitable incentives to attract and
retain targeted talent and personnel for the continual operation and
future development of the Group. On 29 November 2018, a trust
deed (the "Trust Deed"”) was entered into between the Company
as settlor and Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited as
trustee (the “Trustee”) in relation to the establishment of a trust
(the "Trust”). Pursuant to the rules of the Scheme, Shares will
be purchased by the Trustee from the open market out of cash
contributed by the Company, and shall not exceed HK$750 million
and be held on trust for the selected participants until such Shares
are vested with the relevant selected participants in accordance
with the rules of the Scheme. The Scheme is a discretionary
scheme of the Company and shall be subject to the administration
of the Board and the Trustee in accordance with the rules of the
Scheme and the Trust Deed. The Scheme does not constitute
a share option scheme within the meaning of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years since the date of adoption of the Scheme. Early termination
of the Scheme may be elected by the Board, provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected
participants. For details, please refer to the announcement made
by the Company on 28 August 2018. Since the date of adoption of
the Scheme and up to the date of this report, no shares have been
awarded under the Scheme. As at 31 December 2018, there were
no shares held in the Trust under the Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by resolutions of the Shareholders on 14
May 2010 (the "Adoption Date”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations and the summary of terms
of such Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the Company's
prospectus dated 9 June 2010. No share options have been
granted under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme (“Eligible
Persons”) include (a) any executive director of, manager of, or
other employee holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or
similar position in any member of the Group, any full-time or part-
time employee, or a person for the time being seconded to work
full-time or part-time for any member of the Group; (b) a director
or proposed director (including an independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group; (c) a direct or indirect
shareholder of any member of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant,
business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or
representative of any member of the Group; (f) a person or entity
that provides design, research, development or other support or
any advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of the Group; and (g) an associate of any of the persons
referred to in paragraphs (a) to (c) above.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
300,000,000 Shares, representing 9.67% of the issued Shares as
at 31 December 2018. The maximum number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted to any
Eligible Persons (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period share not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
The subscription price in respect of the any particular option shall
be the price as the Board may in its discretion determine at the
time of grant of the relevant option but the subscription price shall
not be less than whichever is the highest of: (a) the nominal value
of a Share; (b) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and (c) the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. An offer of the
grant of a share option shall remain open for acceptance by the
Eligible Person concerned for a period of 28 days from the date
of the Board approving the grant of the share options (the “Offer
Date”) provided that no such grant of an option may be accepted
after the expiry of the effective period of the Share Option Scheme.
An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by
the Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate
offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly
signed by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof
is received by the Company on or before the date upon which an
offer of an option must be accepted by the relevant Eligible Person,
being a date not later than 28 days after the Offer Date. Such
remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable.

70 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited / Bk ¥8 &£ B2 AR A A

R ER S (m

RIRE R 8] R A& Bl E b 5T &% A AT
BERERTEmMA TEHTNRODAE & HT
15 8 11 300,000,000 & A% 17 + (572 2018F 12 A
31 HEBITIRMNA.67%  E(EM 12 AR -
TERTEANEGERALT ZERE(BEETE
MEATEOBERE) BREETRETFETZR
SRNEE THRBEAQABTEDEITRA 2
1% - BB TEERERATFENEARAENRRE
HBR - E R ENRBEEERESES AR
HEEBRERTIEET  HREBETSENIA
TEEMNTSE  @BROEE: bBROKREL
AEEBIAMBARERMTIOETE: &
ERZHAPITAEEEBARNDRB IS A®R
BRARHFEHUTE -

BRI SN AR R B RA B BE RH 104 -
RERHNBRETHESSHEREBREZ
B((IR2 B8] st 28 RBEAHEBEHE EE
ALTE® BEBRESESNERRERE Al
PAIEAREOERE - EARARNEBAER
AT AZMELEREER (2 AHERN
% 28K) 2 BB AR A EXRZBBAE
MIEE2BBRAENRE N EAER N AR FR
EBFR1ETERRENRER - AIBBERERS
ERENRESERALEMARE LN - LilER
EEMBER TN NERE -



ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director of the Company or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions”, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company and any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with him had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group. New
Fortune (the “Controlling Shareholder”, being a company holding
approximately 68.41% of the issued share capital of the Company,
and is ultimately held by the trust the founder of which is Mr. Wong
Luen Hei, and the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and his family) has entered into a deed of non-competition in
favour of the Group with Mr. Wong Luen Hei dated 14 May 2010
(the “Deed of Non-Competition”).

The directors are of the view that the Group’'s measures adopted
by the Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of
Non-Competition are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness
of the non-competition undertakings. The independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the compliance of the Deed of
Non-Competition. Based on the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholder, the independent non-executive directors are of the
view that the Deed of Non-Competition has been complied with
and has been effectively enforced.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

(A)

72

On 11 August 2016, the Company as guarantor and its
wholly-owned subsidiary as borrower entered into a
facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement |"”) in relation
to syndicated term loan facilities in the amount of US$600
million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.85% per annum
with syndicate lenders which were independent financial
institutions. The loan made thereunder is repayable 42
months after the same has been made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement |, Mr. Wong Luen Hei and
his family (collectively, the “Wong Family”) shall collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the
Company, carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from
any security. Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an
event of default under the Facility Agreement |.

On 15 August 2017, the Company as guarantor (the
“Guarantor”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary as borrower
(the “Borrower”) entered into a facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement I1”) in relation to syndicated term loan
facilities in the amount of HK$800 million at an interest rate
of HIBOR plus 1.55% per annum with syndicate lenders (the
“Facility”). The loan made thereunder is repayable 36 months
after the same has been made.

On 22 September 2017, the Guarantor and the Borrower
entered into a syndication and amendment agreement
in relation to the Facility Agreement Il (the "Amendment
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Amendment Agreement, the
number of syndicate lenders have increased and the total
commitment under the Facility has increased to HK$1,350
million. Save for the aforesaid amendment and supplement,
all other major terms of the Facility Agreement Il remain in full
force and effect.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement |l (as amended by the
Amendment Agreement), the Wong Family shall collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the
Company, carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from
any security. Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an
event of default under the Facility Agreement Il.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, certain of the related
party transactions as disclosed in note 41 to consolidated financial
statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules
and satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of
the non-exempt connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions are summarised below:

PURCHASE OF MACHINERY

Background: On 29 December 2017, the Company
entered into a framework machinery
purchase agreement (the “Framework
Agreement”) with Guangdong Liansu
Machinery for 3 years commencing from 1
January 2018 and ending on 31 December
2020. For details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on 29
December 2017.

Particulars of the Framework Agreement
are disclosed below as required under the
Listing Rules:

Nature of transactions: Purchase of machinery from Guangdong
Liansu Machinery.

Terms: The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed the
prevailing market price.

Annual Cap: RMB145 million (for the year ended 31
December 2018); RMB150 million (for
the year ending 31 December 2019); and
RMB150 million (for the year ending 31
December 2020)

Total consideration
paid for the year: RMB125 million

BEXS
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the connected transactions
during the year. The Company confirms that it has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose
of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing
connected transactions and have confirmed that all continuing
connected transactions have been entered into by the Group (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal
commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance with the terms of
the agreements governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company
provided a copy of the said letter to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 41
to consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the
Company and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
required under in the Listing Rules.

74
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company or any of its

subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s
listed securities.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2019 AGM to re-appoint Ernst
& Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive and Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Lesso Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 86 to 230, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FREXEE @

Key audit matter

REEREHE

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

M EHAREZSE

B 5 YR K SR T (8 5K B 18 1

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables

At 31 December 2018, the Group had trade and bills receivables
of RMB2,379,447,000, net of provision for impairment of
RMB194,493,000, and loan receivables of RMB518,892,000,
net of provision for impairment of RMB159,500,000, which in
aggregate accounted for 8.4% of the total assets. The assessment
of impairment of such trade and bills receivables and loan
receivables was considered to be a matter of most significance
as it required the application of judgement and use of subjective
assumptions by management.

K2018F12A31H - EEENESREFELEERAERAR
#2,379,447,0007T © FZAREE AR EZE A K¥ 194,493,000
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HKFRS 9, the new accounting standards on financial instruments,
has been adopted by the Group on 1 January 2018. HKFRS 9
requires that the measurement of impairment of financial assets
be changed from the “incurred loss” model to the “expected
credit loss” ("ECL") model. In order to measure impairment of
trade and bills receivables and loan receivables under HKFRS 9,
management should use judgement, assumptions and estimation
techniques in aspects such as judging significant increase in
credit risk, estimating the parameters for measuring ECL and
determining the forward-looking adjustments.
EEEER2018F 1 A1 HRABEEMBRELENEIOR (EMIA
BETEEER) - BEEMBRELREIRRTE - ©REENRES
EREEABBRIRANAIENCEEEFREI([BAHEEBED K
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Our audit procedures included among others:

BHWEZEFEE(BTRR)

(i)

(ii)

Evaluated and tested the effectiveness
of the design and implementation of
key controls relating to approval, post
approval monitoring, the credit grading
management, and loan impairment
assessment including the transition
to ECL on adoption of HKFRS 9. We
adopted a risk-based sampling approach
in our tests of the allowances for
impairment of trade and bills receivables
and loan receivables;

RS ERES  BHRER  FEFT
RERREFTREN G (BERAEENY
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Selected samples of performing
loans considering size, risk factors,
industry trends for our tests on the
measurement of impairment;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FREXEE @

Key audit matter

REERER

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

mAmESEREREE
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Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables (Continued)

The accounting policies, the impact of change resulting from
initial adoption of HKFRS 9, disclosures of the allowance for
impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables and
the related credit risk are included in notes 2.4, 3, 20 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FHEgHBE BRARNEBVBREENFITAERNES
2 . G5 EIGRIE R IR FE WE FOR B 8B A KA EE R
BEHN G M BE®RENMT24 -3 -20K%24 -

(iii)

(iv)

Evaluated and tested the important
parameters of the expected credit
loss model, management’'s major
judgements and related assumptions,
mainly focusing on the following
aspects:
AERAATERACEEEERENEEZSR
B EREBEFZHELEERR  TEZF
AT AE :

Assessing the rationality of
the expected credit loss model
methodology and related parameters,
including default probability, default
loss rate, risk exposure, and significant
increase in credit risk;
AETEREEBEEREAAREEZ2E (R
FBENIARE BHBREX RRBREEE
[\ B K R 3 00 ) B9 & BRI

Assessing the management's
consideration of forward-looking
adjustment information when
determining expected credit losses,
including the use of macroeconomic
information, the judgement of
adjustments, and the reasonableness of
reviews; and

A EREENETCHEREEEERYATE
MABREHNNEZER (BEZEEHEERD
A AENHERERNSENL) &

Assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosure of the allowance for
impairment of trade and bills receivables
and loan receivables and the related
credit risk.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FREXEE @

Key audit matter

REEREHE

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

M EHAREZSE

RGERE 1A 7 56 (B

Provision for impairment of manufacturing and trading related inventories

At 31 December 2018, the Group had manufacturing and trading
inventories of RMB3,271,853,000, net of provision for impairment
of RMB190,842,000, which represented 9.4% of the total assets.
The provision for impairment mainly related to certain obsolete
and slow-moving inventories. We focused on this area because
these inventories are material to the Group and the provision for
impairment of inventories involves a high level of management’s
judgement and estimate.

R2018F12A31H ESEERELRESFFERAER/RARK
3,271,853,000 7T * # BREIE A HIKR R E & # A K% 190,842,000 7T
ZHBZHEE (REELENIL% cZRERBEIEENE TBER
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Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 22.
PR BREANNBEREESHNWE2.4 3%22¢

Our audit procedures included among others:

BHNEZEFEE(BETRR)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Evaluated, amongst others, the analyses
and assessments made by management
with respect to obsolete and slow-
moving inventories, including market
values and expected selling prices of
the related inventories and the Group's
future plan of usage or sale;
HAE(EREE EEERBRRAHET
BEEEO DT RAE  BEEREENT
BEREHREE Uk ESXEARKRER
g EFHE

Assessed the reliability of the underlying
data used by management in calculating
the production related inventory
provisions such as the inventory ageing
reports, by re-performing the ageing
calculation generated by the system;
BENFEEASRELANFH(NEFEEFHRK
H)  AAHERERANGTELEERBT
BERBHEEERTEN

Tested the accuracy of the management’s
calculation by assessing the calculation
criteria and recalculating the provision;
and

SRS EITE R E
BEGTENEREN : X

o AOREE

Evaluated, based on a sample of
production related inventories, the
analyses performed by management
regarding the net realisable values of the
production related inventories.
mEREEERBTE  UTHEEESR
HMEEMBEERZRFENDNT -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FREXEE @

Key audit matter

REEZER

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

M EHARERSEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFE1E

At 31 December 2018, the Group had investment properties of
RMB4,650,423,000, which represented 13.4% of the total assets
and were measured at fair value. The valuation of the investment
properties is important to our audit as it represents a significant
judgment area and is an important part of the total assets of the
Group. Management employed independent qualified valuers to
assess the fair value. The valuation of the investment properties
is highly dependent on a range of estimates made by the
management.

R2018F12A31H ESEENREVERBHERARK
4,650,423,000 7T " 1EEEMATEN 13.4% WIRARBEFE - BRI
EMEMESIRERAGES EEEEERAENEEAXNES -
WZEEHBEMERREEN - ERERABE LS EBGERD
HEAREE REVELESEKBEERBIELHN —RINEEH
o

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14.
RERE M BHMERANEEREZEHNWE2.4 - 3%14-

We have performed the following
procedures, among others:

BT ETTIRERRF (BF)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Considered the objectivity,
independence and expertise of the
professional valuers;
ZEMEMOESRE BIERFEMN
#

Assessed the correctness of the
property related data, which have been
used as input for the valuations;
FHEERMER ABIENE ERBEE 2
Rl

Engaged our internal specialists to
assist us in analysing the valuations and
challenging the underlying assumptions,
such as the appropriateness of
comparable lands under the sales
comparison approach; and
ZERNIERBGB B DT ERE 58
R - PN E L BOE T A &AL+
mEa Mt &

Focused on the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures
relating to the valuations of these
investment properties.
BEIRZEREMEGLERBRENTR
MREEM -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A% AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lee Mee Kwan, Helena.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeBEmRkEMZERER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F 12 AN HILFE

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR T ARET T
REVENUE PN 5 23,733,517 20,360,000
Cost of sales & A A (17,505,068)  (15,043,217)
Gross profit EH 6,228,449 5,316,783
Other revenue, income and gains EAab A ~ Yoz K F 2 5 571,430 568,650
Selling and distribution expenses HENMDHEAX (1,111,914) (1,029,222)
Administrative expenses THRZ (1,080,820) (938,241)
Impairment losses on financial TREEHNEENRE
and contract assets &5 18 (233,091) -~
Other expenses H A B 2 (840,531) (732,914)
Finance costs A& KA 6 (415,403) (229,309)
Share of results of associates DIEHE N R EE 116,803 (1,404)
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEEDEREE 18 616 243
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FR B A R 7 3,235,539 2,954,586
Income tax expense Fris®if = 9 (789,315) (688,779)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRamA 2,446,224 2,265,807
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/ H#2® (%)~
INCOME U 2%
ltems that may be reclassified HiEngeEmBEEEEw
subsequently to profit or loss: HH
Available-for-sale investments: AHEEERE
Changes in fair value DRAEEED - 219,589
Reclassification adjustment for gains REBmRRANZ
included in consolidated statement Fe=EFEE
of profit or loss FHE
— gain on disposal —HEMRENE - (1,050)
— gain on early redemption — IR FE DTS &= - (39,071)
Changes in fair value of debt ERAEEFAEAM
instruments at fair value through FTHREMNESTAED
other comprehensive income AREEE (758) -
Share of other comprehensive income of 2k — Bt & A & B H b
an associate, net of tax M E (BiEFR) (800) -
Exchange differences on translation of WEINBERREER
foreign operations E 5 =% (207,018) 197,143
(208,576) 376,611
ltems that will not be reclassified to HEresmBEEEEW
profit or loss: HH :
Changes in fair value of equity BEAnBEEAHEMEZE
instruments at fair value through other W KB4 T A/
comprehensive income DREEED (189,718) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/ SRHEMt2E (X))
INCOME FOR THE YEAR &= (398,294) 376,611
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FRZ2MmHW =
THE YEAR HER 2,047,930 2,642,418
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2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt 5F AR¥T R ARETIT

Profit attributable to: AT AR REF
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE RSN 2,491,774 2,293,055
Non-controlling interests FEE B = (45,550) (27,248)
2,446,224 2,265,807
Total comprehensive income AT EAZ2EK S
attributable to: FEE
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE RSN 2,089,225 2,666,410
Non-controlling interests FEE = (41,295) (23,992)
2,047,930 2,642,418
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ZA2QF#HE AL
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY BRER 11
Basic and diluted AEXLEE RMBO0.80 RMBO0.74

AR#080Tt AR¥0747T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e ISR R

As at 31 December 2018
R2018%F12 A31H

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 12 7,478,765 7,156,134
Prepaid land lease payments AN T HEER 13 1,337,959 1,266,216
Investment properties "EME 14 4,650,423 4,038,900
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, BELTH WX BER
property, plant and equipment BEAENNIES 1,731,202 1,024,497
Goodwill EES 15 363,133 85,309
Other intangible assets HEthimpEE 15 257,787 172,332
Interests in associates REE RN A ERE 17 1,375,567 41,324
Interests in joint ventures REELENER 18 9,303 9,024
Available-for-sale investments AfHERE 19A - 1,582,208
Other financial assets Hih e @& E 198 1,852,511 -
Loan receivables RN 20 163,422 228,710
Other non-current assets H3EnB B E 21 360,097 150,591
Contract assets BHEE 23B 84,651 -
Deferred tax assets RIERIE & E 31 88,130 69,908
Total non-current assets IEREEELTE 19,752,950 15,825,153
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories "7E 22 3,521,214 3,227,742
Amounts due from customers for FBUEFHEHIIE
contract work I8 23A - 269,239
Contract assets BREE 23B 327,279 -
Other financial assets Hih e g & E 19B 47,649 -
Loan receivables JE W & 3R 20 355,470 561,206
Trade and bills receivables B RMFIERRE 24 2,379,447 2,024,608
Prepayments, deposits and AR Ze REMmEY
other receivables RIE 25 1,800,477 1,613,307
Cash and bank deposits e RIRTTHFR 26 6,451,791 4,452,370
Total current assets MEEERLTE 14,883,327 12,148,472
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Amounts due to customers for ERNEPHEHIE
contract work A 23A = 101,555
Contract liabilities AHBE 23B 1,482,994 -
Trade and bills payables BHRMNFERRRE 27 4,277,323 3,021,085
Other payables and accruals HEfEAHEREER 28 927,482 1,892,922
Tax payable FEFRIE 272,780 180,973
Borrowings EEN 29 6,144,492 2,877,256
Total current liabilities mEBBELRE 13,105,071 8,073,791
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 1,778,256 4,074,681
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELERRD
LIABILITIES =i 21,531,206 19,899,834
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2018 2017

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 ARE T ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Borrowings g3 29 5,586,566 5,442,119
Other long-term payables H b £ HA JE T 0B 109,546 92,572
Derivative financial instruments PTAESRIEAE 30 6,592 -
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEEE 31 572,967 444,640
Deferred income I FE W = 32 182,670 137,012
Total non-current liabilities EmBaERRE 6,458,341 6,116,343
Net assets BEER 15,072,865 13,783,491
EQUITY -
Share capital &% A< 33 135,344 135,344
Reserves 1 34 14,667,985 13,354,571
Equity attributable to owners RAEEE AFES
of the Company P 14,803,329 13,489,915
Non-controlling interests FEH7 I 4 2 269,536 293,576
Total equity B RE 15,072,865 13,783,491

Wong Luen Hei
EHE
Director

2

Luo Jianfeng

EEE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F 12 AN HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRREAES
Fairvalue Exchange Non-
Share Share Statutory  Capital ~ Merger revaluation fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve @ reserve®™  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
MAEE Ex
RE  RORE iehkfQ EXERY SURE EAEE  RBEE REERA B kEHEE ERAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2017 R1TETAE 135,344 1,905,618 1,389,851 5,250 515 26235 (149,085 7,912,781 11231509 306,163 11,537,672
Profit for the year EmEH - - - - - - - 220305 2293085  (27,248) 2,265,807
Other comprehensive income ~ FREf 2
for the year e - - - - - 179468 193887 - 373385 3,206 376,611
Total comprehensive income ~ FAZEUE
for the year g% - - - - - 179468 193887 2,293,005 2666410 (23992 2,642,418
Acquisition of non-controlling W FEHE )
interests s - - - 3284 - - - -3 98y (2,700
Capital contrioutions from EEHER
non-controlling interests il - - - - - - - - - 9013 39,073
Non-controling interests arising  £754 & £
from business combination  JHEEIiER - - - - - - - - - 139 1389
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBLT - - - - - - - - -7 @07
Dividends recognised as BAERERA
distributions to owners ARAEE
fnote 10) (RzH10) - - - - - - - (411,288 (411,288) - (41,288
Appropriation to statutory TR
feserve Gk - - 288213 - - - - (288213) - - -
At 31 December 2017 and RNTEANEBR
1 January 2018 N18%F1A18 135,344 1,905,618 1,678,064° 8,534 ba15* 205703 44,802° 9,506,335° 13,489,915 293576 13783491
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - 2491774 2491774 (45,550) 2,446,204
Other comprehensive expense  FAE {127
for the year B - - - - - (190476) (212,073 - (402,549) 4255 (398,294)
Total comprehensive income ~ £M2ERE
for the year 8% - - - - - 90476 Q2073 2490776 2089205 (41295 2,047,930
Acquisition of non-controlling W FEE ]
interests s - - - (59,99 - - - - (69994 (60,346  (120,340)
Capital contributions from FikslEs
non-controlling interests & - - - - - - - - - 18813 16,513
Non-controling interests arising  E754 & £4)
from business combination  JFHEEIIER
(note 36) (i3 36) - - - - - - - - - 4098 49958
Transfer of fair value reserve i ERALEHEGA
upon the disposal of equity  EA2EMREH
instruments at fair value REIERERE
through other comprehensive 24 EE
income e - - - - - (80472 - 04N - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAE
(note 37) (H3t37) - - (381) - - - - -8 1130 10749
Dividends recognised as BAERERA
distributions to owners AROEE
fnote 10) (RzH10) - - - - - - - (715436 (715,436) - (7115,436)
Apprapriation to statutory TR
feserve Gk - - - - - - B30T - - -
At31 Degember 2018 R01BE 124318 1304 1905618 2041860 (14600 S8 (152461 (167271 11002968 14808329 269536 15072866
# These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB14,667,985,000 (2017:  * ZERBEEBRNEBAVYERILERPRBEARE

RMB13,354,571,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Note:

(b)

In accordance with the Company Law of PRC, each of the Company’s
subsidiaries registered in PRC is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) determined
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in PRC to the
statutory reserve until the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses or to increase capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Capital reserve mainly represented the difference between the consideration
and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired in respect of the
acquisition of non-controlling interests.

(b)

BETBERRE ARBRFEEMHZMERRR
BRREPEARGERAEE R F AT RB &S
F (EHMBREBEFEERR) B910% ZEE RE -
EERBOAREDEZMEARNS0% A 1L  JETEF
BABNEHEBEFEBRIEE  EERHENR
THRBETFINREMEARN26% ©

AARHEIREARRBE RGN EREGR
WRFEERAEZHNEE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meERERER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F 12 AN HILFE

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B & ARET R ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before tax B 5% B & A 3,235,539 2,954,586
Adjustments for: HATRBEELAR
Interest income )R 6 5 (111,149) (90,785)
Government grants released ERANBTHD (4,300) (3,982)
Gain on fair value changes of investment KEWMELAEE
properties 2 Fzm 5 (311,809) (327,313)
Gain on fair value changes of financial BARBEFABREN
instruments at fair value through SRIANAAEE
profit or loss R 5 (7,098) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments & At &R E G HIZ 5 - (1,050)
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity investments ~ HEHAZBHZEMREF 5 - (3,315)
Gain on early redemption of available-for-sale REBERAHHE
investments REMEHN = 5 - (39,071)
Investment income RE Mz 5 (32,178) (2,694)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARMEFE 5 (33,273) (2,141)
Interest expenses TS 6 415,403 229,309
Depreciation and amortisation MER#H 7 758,156 646,822
(Write-back)/write-down of inventories to (BE)/ MAGTEETEE
net realisable value, net FEFEE 7 (13,238) 61,843
Loss on disposal of items of other intangible HEEMEREENYE -
assets and property, plant and equipment WiE REEEE MEE 7 40,838 15,144
Loss on fair value changes of derivative TE2MTARRER
financial instruments 23 EE 7 - 31,575
Impairment of property, plant and equipment mE - BEREERE 7 2,711 -
Impairment of goodwill [EENEAE! 7 372 -
Impairment of loan receivables [ U 1& FURE 7 159,500 -
Impairment of contract assets BNEERE 7 21,855 -
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net BORUFERZBRETFH 7 51,736 25,268
Share of results of associates GRL AWNEIE S (116,803) 1,404
Share of results of joint ventures DIERELEEE 18 (616) (243)
4,055,646 3,495,357
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets HEMIERBEERLD/(EM) 92,196 (112,968)
Increase in inventories FEEM (297,192) (597,026)
Increase in amounts due from customers for EREFPHEHIERE
contract work 20 - (105,960)
Increase in contract assets AHBELN (111,955) -
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables FEURIE ZOR A/ (2 10) 111,524 (400,961)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B RWFIER R EE M (387,989) (585,273)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BT Ze REAM
other receivables & U SR IB A0 (437,779) (162,834)
Increase in amounts due to customers for ERNEFPHEHIREZE
contract work 20 - 61,506
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEM 261,270 -
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills ZHENFEREELEM/
payables CRD) 1,327,056 (546,494)
Increase in other payables and accruals HAERNFIEREEREM 234,389 205,350
Increase in other long-term payables H 5= H & 5 SRR AL 3,448 12,164
Increase in deferred income Y s 3 49,958 26,686
Cash generated from operations REEENEE 4,900,572 1,289,547
Bank interest received B IERT A S 105,140 82,378
Corporate income tax paid BENGCEMER (595,975) (444,885)
Net cash flows from operating activities REFHMBREREFHE 4,409,737 927,040
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2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt & AR TR ARETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of items of property, plant and EEWE BELLE
equipment B H (1,309,966) (1,472,510)
Proceeds from disposal of items of other intangible REHEEMEFLEEMYE -
assets and property, plant and equipment BERREEE MFESE 76,306 15,169
Additions to prepaid land lease payments T LA & SR AN (73,510) (26,218)
Additions to investment properties &é‘%%i' pill (829,950) (1,452,169)
Additions to other intangible assets HinEmEEEM (5,739) (5,692)
Additions to associates B A A2 (1,143,325) (42,728)
Additions to joint ventures BEPEEN - (6,787)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W B A A 36 (384,446) (10,103)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries &M B A RIFTS R 37 7,224 23,346
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEUHRDERE - (854,550)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HETHNERE
investments T8 3 E = 30,225
Proceeds from early redemption of REBEOAHELERE
available-for-sale investments FT55UR - 28,073
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments BERAZIEKE - (6,802)
Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity HEBERIBERE
investments FTi55UR - 34,550
Purchases of other financial assets Eﬁ,@\ﬁﬁﬂéﬁ\ REE (860,747) -
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets HEEMEREEMERE 469,627 -
Proceeds from early redemption of EORE AR
convertible notes T8 5 E 141,305 -
Investment income received Bl E e 32,178 2,694
Interest received from other financial assets BUEMSREENT S 8,088 -
Interest received from available-for-sale BT EREDN
investments & - 3,291
Interest received from held-to-maturity investments = UA Z R EHNF & - 3,294
Contingent consideration paid for the acquisition & 1 4R BB A B4
of subsidiaries HIARIE (56,000) (32,000)
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary B E—-FRBA (354,293) -
Proceeds from assignment of rights of receivables & 3 JE iz ZRIB #E F Ffr?:ef?ﬂ - 29,937
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash ZREIBE CEm) R (283,344) 40,614
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEZHIARSREFHE (4,566,592) (3,698,366)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
New bank borrowings raised FTIZIRITIE R 6,446,937 9,777,894
Repayment of bank and other loans BERITRAMER (3,404,925) (5,790,147)
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests 3 £ | # 4 i & 16,513 39,073
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W B SE R 2R (78,897) (2,700)
Interest paid BAFE (397,996) (211,453)
Dividends paid ERBE (715,436) (411,288)
Net cash flows from financing activities REEYMEREREFE 1,866,196 3,401,379
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBELEED
EQUIVALENTS 18 F 58 1,709,341 630,053
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#HNR L LREEE fWJ 3,677,759 3,070,458
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net IIEERSH N EFE 6,736 (22,752)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRANRERAS
END OF THE YEAR ZE8Y 5,393,836 3,677,759
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH HeRHSZEUMNLES
EQUIVALENTS s
Time deposits with original maturity of three months & 217 & (R E B R &
or less when acquired HRAE=ZMEASIUT) 26 8,440 102,539
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHER 26 5,385,396 3,675,220
5,393,836 3,677,759
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRNE

2.1

94

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands. The addresses of its registered office
and principal places of business are disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures are set out in notes 45, 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, other financial assets and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(i)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(iii)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

96

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
standards for the first time for the current year's consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment

Property
Annual improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
2014-2016 Cycle HKAS 28

Other than as further explained below, the application of
these new and revised standards has had no material financial
impact on these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments.: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together two aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement; and
impairment.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, and has
recognised the transition adjustments of nil against the
applicable opening balances in equity at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information was not restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Classification and Measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of adopting
HKFRS 9 on the consolidated statement of financial position,
including the effect of replacing HKAS 39’s incurred credit
loss calculations with HKFRS 9's expected credit losses
(“ECLs").

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under HKAS
39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January
2018 is as follows:
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HKAS 39 Measurement HKFRS 9 Measurement
BASHEAENTHE Re- BB RE RN 2
Category? Amount Classification ECL Category? Amount
Bl Fix ] EifEE  RUGCEEE Bl gz
Note RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
fis ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments TRLERE AFS 1,582,208 (1,582,208) - NA -
Eouity instruments at fair value through other AL BEGFAZH2E fi NA - 1574273 - FVOC! equiy) 1574273
comprehensive income WEHREIE FVOCI (%)
Debt instruments at far value through AR BEFALHRE f NA - 79% - FVOCI debt 79%
other comprehensive income BENEBIA RVOCI (B3%)
Loan receivables EYET L8R 789916 - - AC 789916
Trade and bills receivables BRRMARER i L8R 2,004,608 - - AC 2,004,608
Financial assets included in prepayments,  STAERZ e REk L8R 208,030 - - AC 28,030
deposits and other receivables BUFEhEREE
Cash and bank deposits ReREER L8R 4452370 - - AC 4452370
907712 - - 907712
Total assets EE4E 27,973,625 - - 27,973,625
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
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HKFRS 9 (Continued)
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Classification and Measurement (Continued) PERE (&)
HKAS 39 Measurement HKFRS 9 Measurement
BAEHENENTHE Re- BN BREEAEIRHE
Category? Amount classification ECL Category? Amount
e &% EiEE  EHEEEE e £
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fi ANEETT ANEETT ANEETT ANEEFT
Financial liabilities SHEE
Trade and bills payables BAENFERER AC 3,021,085 - - AC 3,021,085
Financial liabilties included in other ~ 5F AELft JE (T 108 B £F AC 646,765 - - AC 646,765
payables and accruals BRNsRER
Other long-term payables A REENTE AC 9572 - - AC 9,572
Borrowings &R AC 8319375 - - AC 8319375
12,079,797 - - 12,079,797
Total liabilities BELE 14,190,134 - - 14,190,134
Note: BT -
(a) AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost (a) AC: IREHK AV RN eREEISRAE

(if)

(iii)

AFS: Available-for-sale investments

FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

L&R: Loans and receivables

N/A: Not applicable

The Group has elected the option to irrevocably designate all of its
previous available-for-sale equity investments as equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

As of 1 January 2018, the Group has assessed its liquidity portfolio of
debt investments which had previously been classified as AFS debt
investments. The objective of the Group in holding this liquidity portfolio
is to earn interest income and, at the same time, manage everyday
liquidity needs. The Group concluded that these debt investments are
managed within a business model to collect contractual cash flows
and to sell the financial assets. Accordingly, the Group has classified
these investments as debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The gross carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables under the
column “"HKAS 39 measurement — Amount” represent the amounts after
adjustments for the adoption of HKFRS 15 but before the measurement
of ECLs.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are not accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be
recorded based on an expected credit loss model either on a
twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group has applied
the simplified approach and recorded lifetime expected
credit losses that are estimated based on the present value
of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life on trade and
bills receivables and contract assets, and general approach
and recorded twelve-month expected credit losses on
other financial assets, loan receivables and financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables. The
aforesaid transition upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 does not
have material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 9, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to investments
and other financial assets in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and
it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included in
notes 3 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements. As a
result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed
the accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition in
note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption and it elected to apply that
method only to those contracts that were not completed at
the date of initial application. The comparative information for
each of the primary financial statements would be presented
based on the requirements of HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and related
interpretations.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS 15
was immaterial and no opening balance of retained profits as
at 1 January 2018 was adjusted. Therefore, the comparative
information was not restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and related interpretations.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 1 January 2018 as a
result of the adoption of HKFRS 15:

22 S BRRRBEBEBEEDH (@)

EBMBREEDE 155 (H)

AN ABRMAE BT BEmEENE 15581
MR2018F 1A 1BEHBHREEXTE
K $ %8 -

Increase/
(decrease)
#m CRd)
Note RMB'000
{S=a ARETIT
Non-current assets: FERBEE :

Other non-current assets Ha3EReEE 21 (52,591)
Contract assets EHEE 23B 48,709
(3,882)

Current assets: MEEE :
Amounts due from customers for contract work fEW R F & & 4 T2 R IE 23A (269,239)
Contract assets EHEE 23B 273,121
3,882

Current liabilities: MENB A
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEEFRNEHIRRIE 23A (101,555)
Contract liabilities EHaE 23B 1,221,724
Other payables and accruals HthENFIEREFER 28 (1,120,169)

Net assets BEFHE -
Retained profits R -
Non-controlling interests FE T2 Il 4 2 -
Total equity M 4B R -

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 31 December 2018
and for the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no
impact on profit or loss and other comprehensive income or
on the Group's operating, investing and financing cash flows.
The first column shows the amounts recorded under HKFRS
15 and the second column shows what the amounts would
have been had HKFRS 15 not been adopted.

LN ARAE BT HEHREENFE 15581
R2018F 12 A31H REH E 2018412 A
MNBALEFESVWBBRREEXTVENS
B oRMNESYBHRELERE15HEER
FEMmEAMRGEIAEENLE  RERRM
BHRSTREVETAZE - F—HITE
B SRS ERE155RE o E 5 -
FWINTHRENES T R EERE
165 H B o
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 S BRREBEESEEE @)

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

EBKBRELERFE 155 (&)
R2018F 12 A31 HMGE BRI K «

HKFRS 15 (Continued)
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018:

Amounts prepared under

REBUTEAHFER
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
HFBME B
wmEZEA EBME #hn,
%155 wEEA (R )
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARET R ARETR ARETT
Non-current assets: FERDEE
Other non-current assets Hi3EmBEE 21 360,097 444,748 (84,651)
Contract assets SNEE 238 84,651 - 84,651
444,748 444,748 =
Current assets: REEE
Amounts due from customers EWEFHELIRR
for contract work EQE] 23A = 327,279 (327,279)
Contract assets AREE 23B 327,279 = 327,279
327,279 327,279 =
Current liabilities: TEEE:
Amounts due to customers ERBEFHAHIRE
for contract work A 23A = 72,780 (72,780)
Contract liabilities EHAE 23B 1,482,994 = 1,482,994
Other payables and accruals HiENFIEREER 28 927,482 2,337,696 (1,410,214)
2,410,476 2,410,476 =
Net assets EEFH 15,072,865 15,072,865 =
Retained profits R i A 11,002,968 11,002,968 =
Non-controlling interests JEPR R 2 269,536 269,536 =
Total equity R B E 15,072,865 15,072,865 -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 15 (Continued)

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018 and
the reasons for the significant changes in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 are
described below:

(a)

Renovation, Installation and Engineering Services
Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the
Group obtains rights to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance obligations to
transfer goods or provide services to the customers. The
combination of those rights and performance obligations
gives rise to a net asset or a net liability depending on
the relationship between the remaining rights and the
performance obligations.

The excess of cumulative revenue recognised in profit
or loss over the cumulative billings to customers is
recognised as contract assets. Contract assets are rights
to consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer when that right
is conditional on something other than the passage of
time.

The excess of cumulative billings to customers over
the cumulative revenue recognised in profit or loss is
recognised as contract liabilities. Contract liabilities are
obligations to transfer goods or services to customer
for which the Group has received consideration, or
for which an amount of consideration is due from the
customer.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has
reclassified the amounts due from/to customers for
contract work to contract assets/liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

104

HKFRS 15 (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Concession Operating Right

The Group entered into concession agreements with
the local government authorities in PRC. Pursuant to
the concession agreements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain waste
water treatment related project in PRC for a period
of 30 years. The Group recognise the consideration
receivable in exchange for the construction services as
a financial receivable under the concession agreements.
The balance as at the end of each reporting period
represent the amounts are not yet due for payment
and will be settled by revenue to be generated during
the operating periods of the concession agreements.
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified
it to contract assets from other non-current assets and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables for the
current portion.

Consideration Received from Customers in Advance
Advance receipt is normally required for sales to
independent distributors. Prior to the adoption of HKFRS
15, deferred revenue arose from advance receipt was
recognised in the statement of financial position within
other payables and accruals. Upon the adoption of
HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified it to contract liabilities
from other payable and accruals.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

23 EEMERMKRERNEBHBRE

o g

-

AREBERNGAPHHREPHAKRERER
OB B E E R AR R] KB RT

these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

e N -

Leases’
Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’
Definition of Material?

Definition of Business?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Mandatory effective date not yet determined

Al :

BRI BREEA
165

BRI BREEA
F17%

5 BBy BHRERE
ZEE)RBER

ERGHENEIRR
G ENESH
ERTA

B BREEA
EIRBIIR

BB RS ER
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852855 (2011)
EHIEN
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EHEN
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, except HKFRS 16 Leases, the Group
considers that these new and revised HKFRSs may result
in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position.

Further information about HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16, replaces HKAS 17 Leases, (HK)FRIC-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, (HK)
SIC-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and (HK)SIC-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be
required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence
of certain events, such as change in the lease term and
change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Continued)

Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17.

Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group
will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group plans
to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise
the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019
and will not restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group
plans to apply the new requirements to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure
the lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the Group’'s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-
use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement
of financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed
by the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end
within 12 months as of the date of initial application. During
2018, the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the
impact of adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group has estimated
that right-of-use assets of RMB377,450,000 and lease
liabilities of RMB377,450,000 will be recognised at 1 January
2019.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associates
or joint ventures, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group'’s
interests in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the output

arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group will perform its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T -  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract asset, deferred tax assets
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES RAEEAN L

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: RTIEAT BEEATHHEREEAEE

B RAEEA L

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (a) HEEMATHKEBRBRRENES @ Mk
family and that person AANT
(i) has control or joint control of the Group; (i) EHIREREHARER
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEESERZE: 3§
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) AREEFIAEEGARINEE

the Group or of a parent of the Group. BEENE
or %
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) BEATAERAFE THEAIEE:

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEREASEBR—SE 2K
group; =S|

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (il —HMEBAS—EBNEEAF
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow REELE (B —ERENE
subsidiary of the other entity); NE) B ARRE RN B AR

ZEE—F) ;

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZERBEMAEEHAR-F=H
same third party; MEEE:

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) —HEL )\\\%_F‘?’ﬁ%mé%ﬁ
other entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ ME—BRARE=-SETE

H B & A &

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ZERBREBEZEENETE &t
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an FNEBmARAEE R EREE
entity related to the Group; EHNERNES

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) ZEEEH (a) BT A SIS
person identified in (a); HEES

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i R@OEMATHZERS
over the entity or is a member of the key EK%%W%V ER(R%EE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent WERREFEBTEEKE &
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (viii) uxaﬁfiﬁﬁﬁg’ilﬁ’ﬂﬂ—JﬁXE
part, provides key management personnel services NSIEFNS PN S E A SI/N
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. REFEEBEABRY -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

Leasehold improvements

Not depreciated
2.3% to 5%
9% to 19%
9.5% t0 32.3%

9.5% to 32.3%
Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the period the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other
assets under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an

investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date
of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Computer Software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of five years.

Research and Development Costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Patents and Proprietary Technologies

Purchased patents and proprietary technologies acquired are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised
on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5
years to 20 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
(Continued)

Brand Name and Operating Concession Rights

Brand name and operating concession rights with indefinite
useful lives acquired are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are not amortised. The useful life of such an asset
should be reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If
they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite should be accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

The Group is required to test an intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing its
recoverable amount with its carrying amount (a) annually, and
(b) whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired.

LEASES

Finance Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a

financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

Finance Leases (Continued)

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and
initial direct costs is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as loan receivables. Any unguaranteed
residual value is also recognised at the inception of the lease.
The difference between the sum of the minimum lease
payment receivables, initial direct costs, the unguaranteed
residual value and their present value is recognised as
unearned finance income. Unearned finance income is
recognised over the period of the lease using the effective
interest rate method.

Operating Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENT AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(POLICIES UNDER HKFRS 9 APPLICABLE FROM

1 JANUARY 2018)

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"), and fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’'s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade and bills receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade and
bills receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)"
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI"”) on
the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENT AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(POLICIES UNDER HKFRS 9 APPLICABLE FROM

1 JANUARY 2018) (continued)

Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at FVTOCI if both of
the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENT AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(POLICIES UNDER HKFRS 9 APPLICABLE FROM

1 JANUARY 2018) (continued)

Subsequent Measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments) (continued)

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income
is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at FVTOCI when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated
at FVTOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENT AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(POLICIES UNDER HKFRS 9 APPLICABLE FROM

1 JANUARY 2018) (continued)

Subsequent Measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest
are classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at FVTOCI,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated
at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (POLICIES UNDER HKAS 39
APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss. The subsequent
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
depends on their classification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (POLICIES UNDER HKAS 39
APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018) (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument or financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income or expense is recognised on an effective
interest method.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVTPL
when the financial assets are either held for trading or
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited A B8 &= EiE ik B R A F)

24 TESHHEME @)

EMTE (R2018FE1A1HATERANER
S ERFEI9EHEK) (FE)

BRRFIEE
ERFMEED— B EEBEIAKERE
18 2 58 PX 7N I 72 4R B8 B A0 0 B 1) B UK
HEATNTE - BERFEDNIEERIA
SERAG AT (HER) B2 H
- EEERAFT R KBS WA SR (B
TEEKERMENR SR E D 2 —EA
FEWMEEZBER RHINAREMRE
TR EVIRERR ZBREFEZFIE -

MBS T IR B RR R ROERER o

THMEE
TREEFBESUNTARBER HARE
Eff ABZZERMEE FHAZRIHKRE
ERREEFRERATHEESBREE - 1
VIRERE RYeREECHEENREHR
MMOB -MAEABREEEZERMEE -
VIR 5 A EEETHRR LK IR - B
FEENEARTISREREN —RAFT
MERARXNEENEREEES -

BARBEFAANERZEREE
CREENNEBERARFEEERETER
BARBEFABSZADERRANEBE
AABBZEREE -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (POLICIES UNDER HKAS 39
APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018) (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term;

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (POLICIES UNDER HKAS 39
APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018) (continued)
Financial Assets (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity dates that the Group has the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as (a) financial assets at FVTPL, (b) held-to-
maturity investments or (c) loans and receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (POLICIES UNDER HKAS 39
APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018) (continued)
Financial Assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group'’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains
and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined
based on the amortised cost of the monetary assets. Other
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (POLICIES UNDER
HKFRS 9 APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General Approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 5 years past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (POLICIES UNDER
HKFRS 9 APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018)
(Continued)

General Approach (Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general approach
and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade and bills receivables
and contract assets which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified Approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect
of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For trade and bills receivables that contain a significant
financing component, the Group chooses as its accounting
policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs
with policies as described above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (POLICIES UNDER
HKAS 39 APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial Assets Carried at Amortised Cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (POLICIES UNDER
HKAS 39 APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018)
(Continued)

Financial Assets Carried at Amortised Cost (Continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (POLICIES UNDER
HKAS 39 APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018)
(Continued)

Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (POLICIES UNDER
HKAS 39 APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018)
(Continued)

Available-For-Sale Financial Assets (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the
amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Impairment losses
on debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (POLICIES UNDER HKFRS 9
APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 AND HKAS 39
APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018)

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings, payables,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification, as described below:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (POLICIES UNDER HKFRS 9
APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 AND HKAS 39
APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018) (Continued)
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
FVTPL are designated at the date of initial recognition, and
only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not
designated any financial liability as at FVTPL.

Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (“EIR"”) method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (POLICIES
UNDER HKFRS 9 APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018
AND HKAS 39 APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018)
Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded Derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.

DERECOGNITION (POLICIES UNDER HKFRS 9
APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 AND HKAS 39
APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

DERECOGNITION (POLICIES UNDER HKFRS 9
APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 AND HKAS 39
APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018) (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or
loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (POLICIES
UNDER HKFRS 9 APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018
AND HKAS 39 APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2018)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Manufacturing and Trading

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Property Development

Cost comprises land costs, construction costs, borrowing
costs, professional fees and other costs directly attributable
to such properties incurred during the development period.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of cash management.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during
the warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are recognised based on
sales volume and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns, discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the period that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (APPLICABLE FROM

1 JANUARY 2018)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (APPLICABLE FROM
1 JANUARY 2018) (Continued)
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

(a)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced. The input method recognises
revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs for
satisfaction of the construction services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks
to collect from the customers as reimbursement of
costs and margins for scope of works not included in
the original construction contract. Claims are accounted
for as variable consideration and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Group uses
the expected value method to estimate the amounts of
claims because this method best predicts the amount
of variable consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

Provision of sewage, hazardous waste treatment and
related environmental protection services

Revenue from the provision of sewage, hazardous waste
treatment and related environmental protection services
is recognised when the relevant services have been
rendered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (APPLICABLE FROM
1 JANUARY 2018) (Continued)

Revenue from Other Sources

Income from financial services including:

(i)  bhandling fee income from factoring services and supply-
chain financing services which is recognised when the
relevant services have been rendered;

(i) finance lease income which is recognised over the
period of lease, as further explained in the accounting
policy “Leases” above; and

(iii) interest income which is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method as explained below.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other Income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (APPLICABLE BEFORE

1 JANUARY 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b) contract revenue from the renovation and installation
work on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy “Construction
contracts” below;

(c) income from financial service including:

(i) handling fee income from factoring services and
supply-chain financing services, when the relevant
services have been rendered;

(i) finance lease income, over the period of lease, as
further explained in the accounting policy “Leases”
above; and

(iii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method as explained in note (f);
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (APPLICABLE BEFORE

1 JANUARY 2018) (Continued)

(d) income from environmental engineering and related
services including:

(i)  contract revenue from environmental construction
on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy “Construction
contracts (applicable before 1 January 2018)"
below;

(i) income from sewage, hazardous waste treatment
and related environmental protection services,
when the relevant services have been rendered;

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(f)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS (APPLICABLE BEFORE

1 JANUARY 2018)

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and
incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct
materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction
overheads.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue from a fixed price
construction contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the proportion
of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative
to the estimated total cost of the relevant contract, except
where this would not be representative of the stage of
completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be
measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that is probably recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as amounts due from customers for contract work.
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is treated as amounts due to customers for contract
work.

CONTRACT ASSETS (APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY
2018)

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before
the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension Schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group's employees participate in various defined contribution
plans and state-management retirement benefit plans in
the countries in which the Group operates. Payments to
these plans, where the Group’s obligations under them are
equivalent to a defined contribution plan, are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS
Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted
from equity when they are declared and approved by the
Company's shareholders in general meetings. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are

declared and approved, and no longer at the discretion of the
Company.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company’s functional currency is HK dollar while the
Company's presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements is Renminbi. In preparing the financial
statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into Renminbi using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of the operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

JUDGEMENT

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on
certain profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated
and distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider
that the timing of the reversal of the related temporary
differences can be controlled and such temporary differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the
PRC are considered to be repatriated and distributed by way
of dividends, the deferred income tax charge and deferred
income tax liability would have increased by the same amount
of approximately RMB350,709,000 (2017: RMB275,791,000).

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of Goodwill, Brand Name and Operating
Concession Rights

The Group determines whether goodwill, brand name and
operating concession rights with indefinite useful lives
are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which the goodwill, brand name and operating concession
rights are allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimation of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. At the end of the reporting
period, the carrying amounts of goodwill, brand name and
operating concession rights were RMB363,133,000 (2017:
RMB85,309,000), RMB110,520,000 (2017: RMB110,520,000)
and RMB24,550,000 (2017: RMB24,550,000), respectively.
Further details are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECL for Trade and Bills Receivables, Contract
Assets, Other Receivables and Loan Receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade and bills receivables, contract assets, other receivables
and loan receivables. The provision rates are based on the
invoice date for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's contract assets, trade and
bills receivables, other receivables and loan receivables is
disclosed in note 23B, note 24, note 25 and note 20 to the
financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for Obsolete and Slow-Moving Inventories

The Group reviews the aging analysis of its inventories at
the end of each reporting period, and makes provision for
obsolete and slow moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use/sale. Management estimates the
net realisable value for such inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. At
the end of the reporting period, an accumulated provision for
obsolescence of RMB190,842,000 (2017: RMB204,080,000)
has been recognised for inventories.

Fair Value of Investment Properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar leases and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, management determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making
its judgement, management considers information from a
variety of sources, including (i) independent valuations; (ii)
current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition and location (or subject to different leases
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences; (iii)
recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the dates of transactions that occurred at those prices;
and (iv) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible) from
external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

Details of the judgement and assumptions involved in
determining the fair value of the Group’'s investment
properties have been disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of building materials and interior decoration products; the
provision of renovation and installation works, environmental
engineering and other related services, financial services and
property rental and other related services. For management
purposes, the Group's businesses are organised by
geographical areas based on the location of the customers
and assets are attributable to the geographical unit based on

the

location of the assets. The Group has eight reportable

operating segments as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province
and Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

Central China, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi
Province and Henan Province;

Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu
Province and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;

Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, Jilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

(viii) Outside China.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with
the Group's profit before tax except that interest income,
changes in fair value of investment properties, changes in
fair value of financial instruments at FVTPL, loss on fair value
changes of derivative financial instruments, gain on disposal
of available-for-sale investments, gain on disposal of held-to-
maturity investments, gain on early redemption of available-
for-sale investments, investment income, gain on disposal of
subsidiaries, exchange differences, finance costs, share of
results of associates and joint ventures and other unallocated
income and expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interests in associates, interests in
joint ventures, available-for-sale investments, other financial
assets, deferred tax assets, cash and bank deposits and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived
from its operations in mainland China, special administrative
regions of PRC and foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REDIEFR @)
(Continued)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR BHZEZ2018F12A3MBLEEENEE DI
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 &H
Southern  Southwestern Central Eastern Northern  Northwestern  Northeasterm Outside
China China China China China China China China  Eliminations  Consolidated
1 ERHE ] B E31 EHE RIHE RERESD i B4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR  ARETR  ARETz  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETz  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR
Segment revenue: AU
Sale of goods HEER 12,782,004 2,518,896 2,806,527 1,240,391 1,607,400 951,207 581,562 736,285 - 23,224,212
Contact revenue from renovationand B REZETEAN
installation works WA 184,400 - - - - - - - - 184,400
Income from environmental RAIERER
engineering and other ERRE
related services e 125,990 20959 11,659 24594 12 2,937 388 - - 186,539
Financial service income eRkHYE 38,197 1507 5303 - 181 - 184 - - 66,372
Property rentel and otherrelated ~~ MEREREMHAE
sevices i 5793 - - - - - - 67,141 - 72,934
Revenue from external customers ~ JMEBREHA 13,136,384 2,541,362 2,843,489 1,264,985 1,607,593 954,144 582,134 803,426 - 23,733,517
Intersegment revenue AHEUA 3972821 441,559 446,347 317,045 393322 178,059 118,826 760,666 (6,628,651) =
Total At 17109211 2,982,921 3,289,836 1,582,030 2,000915 1,132,203 700,960 1,564,092 (6,628651) 23,733,517
Segment results GRS 3,668,555 744,870 847,805 252,485 43248 218,153 142,826 27,083 105,751) 6,228,449
Reconcilations: 4%
Interest income flghs 111,149
(Gain on fair value changes of RENFALER
investment properties 297l 311,809
(Gain on fai value changes of financial %227 B (B4 A B
instruments at SHIANALE
FVTRL 25l 7098
Investment income RENE 2,178
(ain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBLARMER 3273
Exchange loss EREE (15,874)
Finance costs E EM (415,403)
Share of results of associates MBEDAEE 116,803
Share of resuls of joint ventures 5 15 BERERE 616
Unallocated income and expenses ~ RATMERFR (3,174)559)
Profit before tax Gyl 3,235,539
Segment assets ABEE 13,235,406 1,376,386 1311875 1,518,197 791,056 644,194 487,490 5,446,222 - 24,811,326
Reconcilations: ”}ﬁf
Interests in associates REERANER 1375567
Interests in joint ventures ﬁ“ A ENER 9,303
Other financial assets EpemiE 1,900,160
Deferred tax assets ELRELE 83,130
Cash and bank deposits ReREAER 6,451,791
Total assets EEHE 34,636,217
Other segment information Efpaan
Write-back of inventories to net ﬁ;"@/% EUER
realisable value, net FEEE (31,074) 362 (432) 9521 (1,993) (516) (5,858) 16,752 - (13.238)
Deprecition and amortsation f%&%iﬁ 448,461 67,890 62533 62,639 14 35,381 19,698 17407 - 758,156
Impaiment of property, plantand ~~ #1% - BEREE
equipment HE - - - - - - - 2 - 27
Impaiment of goodwil AERE - - - - - - - 3n - 3
Impairment of loan receivables ERETHE 159,500 - - - - - - - = 159,500
Impaiment of contract assets A%@ﬁé& 21,85 - - - - - - - - 21,85
Impairment of trade and bils BARNERERRE
receivables, net et 22503 8 215 2M 98 1 Kl 26,381 - 51,736
Capital expenditure* EEARS 796,332 96,364 70,824 300,836 59,570 24,742 59,689 232,288 (14,740) 1,625,905
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # ﬁzﬁfﬂﬁfi BIEMNEDE  BELEE BN L

equipment, prepaid land lease payments, investment properties and
other intangible assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REHIEFR #H)
(Continued)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR BZ2017FE12A3MBLEEENKEE DI
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 =g
Southern Southwestemn Central Eastern Northern ~ Northwestern  Northeastem Qutside
China China China China China China China China  Eliminations  Consolidated
g ERHE 24 ER ) EiHE EIHE RSN g Ga
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn ARETR
Segment revenue; AHUA:
Sale of goods HEER 11,104,426 2,104,769 2,209,365 1,216,465 1,335,757 738822 459,715 691,447 - 19,860,766
Contract revenue from renovation B RZETRAN
and installation works WA 206,688 - - - 4979 - - - - 211,667
Income from environmental REIER
engingering and other EfbERRE
related services Wi 142,614 10465 16,531 7047 - 7258 147 - - 184,062
Financial service income SBREAE 1219 29 5010 m - 7 - - . 146722
Property rental and other NEREREHIFE
related sevices 5k 25,69 - - - - - - 31,001 - 56,783
Revenue from extemal customers ~ SNBEREMA 11,620,639 2,115,528 2,230,906 1,023,684 1,340,736 746,107 459,862 722538 - 20,360,000
Intersegment revenue: FHERA 3,204,044 401,203 458,408 251179 277,039 131,722 85,656 769,045 (5,668,296 -
Total Aif 14,814,683 2,516,731 2,689,314 1,474,863 1617,775 877,829 545,518 1,491,583 [5,668,296) 20,360,000
Segment results ABE 3824375 650,157 730,184 253,243 397,662 186,325 126,660 156,614 1,008437) 5,316,783
Reconcllations: HE:
Interest income flgkE 90,785
(Gain on fair value changes of RENEDARE
nvestment properties 297 3271313
Loss on fairvalue changes of fiEeBIANS
derivative financial instruments EEEDER (31575)
(Gain on disposal of avallableforsele i EE L ERE
investments FEflE 1,080
Gain on disposal of helc-tomaturty  EERAZIERE
investments FEflE 3315
(ain on early redemption REEETRLERE
of availablefor-sale investments R 39,071
Investment income RENE 2,64
(ain on disposal of subsiciaries HENBARMERNR 2141
Exchange gain ERfla 23483
Finance costs BERA (229,309)
Share of results of associates MBERAEE (1,404)
Shareof resuts ofjont ventures ~~ HEALLEEE X
Unallocated income and expenses ~ AATMERER (2,590,004
Profit before tax Gyl 2,954,586
Segment assets ABEE 11,826,279 1,308,387 1,292,621 1,003,422 752,991 597,638 427,762 4,609,691 - 21,818,791
Reconcilations: #E:
Interests in associates REERANES 41,34
Interests in joint ventures REERENER 9024
Avalgble-for-sale investments AHIERE 1,582,208
Deferred tax assets EHELE 69908
Cash and bank deposits RERETER 4452370
Total assets BEEE 27,973,625
Other segment information: EfpAHEs:
Writedown of inventories tonet ~ HEFEETER
realisable value, net FESE 57,066 (132) (575) 2191 185 4 (46) 3,150 - 61,843
Deprecition and amortisation EREH 365,901 6293 62,202 46,39 40,186 34230 19092 15,880 - 646,822
Impairment of trade and bils BARNAEREE
receivables, net ERE 12128 - (5,551) 148 509 923 786 11671 - 25,268
Capital expenditure* ERHx* 762,280 140,004 66,433 118,244 34182 24,969 13077 1,373,463 (15,487) 2,517,165

#

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments, investment properties and
other intangible assets.

AR BREAEDE BFEI&E BN

HEX REAMERHEGEVEE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A BTSRRI A

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA HMWKA - WEKkFHE
GAINS
REVENUE PN
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue ATHIAREEKE B P& HHNERADHT
from contracts with customers and the reconciliation of the LREEFPAELOMKARS FER TR
revenue from contracts with customers with the amounts SR -

disclosed in the segment information:

By revenue nature: BWAMEE S -
2018 2017
Goods Goods
transferred Services transferred Services
atapoint  transferred atapoint transferred
in time over time Total intime over time Total
RE-KE HBREES RE-BYE EEEER
EENER EENRE Bt EENER EIORE Bt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®Tn ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARET:R

Revenue from contracts REZEF&SHH

with customers: KA
Sale of goods HEEm 23,224,272 - 23,224,272 19,860,766 - 19,860,766
Contract revenue from  EERZE

renovation and BRE R

installation works A - 184,400 184,400 - 211,667 211,667

Income from environmental 3238 T2 &t
engineering and other HiniAe

related services s lha - 186,539 186,539 - 184,062 184,062
Sub-total et 23,224,272 370,939 23,595,211 19,860,766 395,729 20,256,495
Financial service income & BEFR A Ut zE 65,372 46,722
Property rental and other MEMER

related services it BB R 72,934 56,783
Total At 23,733,517 20,360,000
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REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA -HMKA - RERFZE @)
GAINS (Continued)
REVENUE (Continued) WA (48)
By geographical locations: BB B E S
2018 2017
Goods Goods
transferred Services transferred Services
at apoint  transferred atapoint  transferred
in time over time Total in time over time Total
RE-RE HEEES RE-RE  REREEYS
BENER EEOREK & EENEm  BEORE B
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETRr AR%Tn AR¥Tn ARETT ARETrt ARETR
Revenue from contracts REZFAHH
with customers: KA
Mainland China FEIA 22,487,987 370,939 22,858,926 19,169,319 395,729 19,565,048
Outside China REE SN 736,285 - 736,285 691,447 - 691,447
Sub-total et 23,224,272 370,939 23,595,211 19,860,766 395,729 20,256,495
Financial service income & REIRA Ui 65,372 46,722
Property rental and other MEME R
related services Hi Al RS 72,934 56,783
Total Bt 23,733,517 20,360,000
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRIWRANREEARERR RS BT
recognised in the current reporting period that were included AHBaERERBEE F'EEJJE,%’]fEﬁﬁﬁE o
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting A
period and recognised from performance obligations satisfied
in previous periods:
2018
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Revenue recognised that was included in RS AER
contract liabilities at the beginning of the BEMNDHER
reporting period WA
Sale of goods HEEM 1,120,169
Contract revenue from renovation HERLETIREESEH
and installation works WA 9,091
Income from environmental engineering and RIRTERHMAARE
other related services AR 7% U = 8,896
1,138,156
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REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)

REVENUE (Continued)

Performance Obligations

Information about the Group’'s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 360 days
from delivery, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required.

Renovation, installation and engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days
from the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is
retained by customers until the end of the retention period as
the Group's entitlement to the final payment is conditional on
the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December 2018 are as follows:

5.

WA~ HEbl A - s R A & ()

WA (&)
BREE
ERAREBEHNESENERSANT

HEEm

SERRERETEE HR—REX
E1&30E360 KA EIH - MEHEF —MRA
BRMARK -

Kig  RERTREIRS

B #)BAEBEIR ARG M BERS R HERE /B 7T
ANF—BREEREIORAZH - B
RE-—TFEEDLNNTEEREHER
Ty A A SR [ B S AR N A0 R AR - 10
BEFEAHREN —RBEANEREE X
RNMBRITAEE -

MN2018FE 12831 D EHEATENSE
F(REHNHIEDREL) HZXZERWT

2018
RMB’000
AR®T T

E2 NS
1F M E

Not more than 1 year
Over 1 year

356,315
368,211

724,526

The remaining performance obligations expected to be
recognised in more than one year relate to renovation,
installation and engineering services. All the other remaining
performance obligations are expected to be recognised
within one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include
variable consideration which is constrained.
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA - HMWA - WHE KA E)
GAINS (Continued)
OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND GAINS Hibdg A - SR A=
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREET T
Bank interest income RITH B W= 105,140 82,378
Interest income from available-for-sale AfHERENFE
investments W - 6,822
Interest income from held-to-maturity BFAZIHEED
investments FE M Z= - 1,585
Interest income from other financial assets  E b4 g & & &9 F) 8 U 25 6,009 -
Total interest income FEW BB 111,149 90,785
Government grants and subsidies 8T % B K %8 B 44,628 30,173
Gain on fair value changes of KEWERARBEE
investment properties e 311,809 327,313
Gain on fair value changes of ZARBEFABROSH
financial instruments at FVTPL TENAAEEEHN = 7,098 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale ENHEEREMS
investments e - 1,050
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity HERBZIHRE
investments Fris Fl &= - 3,315
Gain on early redemption of REELRAHEERE
available-for-sale investments FrisF &= = 39,071
Investment income TE W = 32,178 2,694
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR MEF= 33,273 2,141
Exchange gain & 5 F &= - 23,483
Others Hfb 31,295 48,625
571,430 568,650

Government grants and subsidies mainly represent funding
received from government authorities to support certain of
the Group’s research and development activities. There are no

A 68 B K 4l B 3 B4R U AR IR T DA
XRAKEETHREIINES -
o] 2 3% <5 8 BY) K 8 BE B B O OR 22 A MR 1 =X

I AE

unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants LBBEN
and subsidies.
FINANCE COSTS 6. BERAK
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETT
Interest expenses on bank and other loans  $R{TRHEMERNF B 415,725 231,920
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI A (322) (2,611)
415,403 229,309
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7.

164

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

7.

B Bt B % A

AE BB AN A &R GEA) T

(crediting): G| & IEBEN
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR% T ARET T
Cost of inventories sold EEFEAAR 17,177,238 14,653,632
Direct cost of renovation and RERLRITRE
installation works HEKAR 150,595 190,030
Direct cost of environmental IRIETRERHEMEE
engineering and other PR 7 B £ 5 AN
related services 129,008 108,249
Direct cost of financial services SRR EERAR 1,265 2,351
Direct cost of property rental and MEMRERH AR
other related services AR 7% B % Ak A 60,200 27,112
(Write-back)/write-down of inventories  (#[@) /#ipF&E =
to net realisable value, net A EAIR R B R (13,238) 61,843
Depreciation = 12 714,784 603,560
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BT HHEER
payments 37! 13 31,035 26,867
Amortisation of other intangible assets /b 8 JiZ & B # 84 15 12,337 16,395
Total depreciation and amortisation EREHBE 758,156 646,822
Minimum lease payments under T RBFEE
operating leases in respect of HEMRE
land and buildings e 67,546 58,861
Auditor’s remuneration 2% 85 B BN & 7,255 7,131
Employee benefit expense (including EERNAX(BRES
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): EIIGIETDE
Wages and salaries TERES 851,692 740,048
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B R 92,403 74,611
Staff welfare and other expenses BITRMEEMAS 74,225 61,445
1,018,320 876,104
Research and development costs Tt 25 5 AR 758,284 641,354
Loss on disposal of items of other & H b £ 2 & E AN
intangible assets and property, - WEREZE
plant and equipment HEMEE 40,838 15,144
Impairment of property, plant and W - BEREE
equipment A 12 2,711 -
Changes in fair value of investment KEMELNNERE
properties b5y 14 (311,809) (327,313)
Gain on fair value changes of BRARBETAERD
financial instruments at TRITENAREE
FVTPL EEpE (7,098) -
Loss on fair value changes of PTEemIEAREBE
derivative financial instruments 2H)EHia - 31,575
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEK B QRS FE 37 (33,273) (2,141)
Impairment of goodwill EESNAIE 15 372 -
Impairment of loan receivables FEUUE FORE 20 159,500 -
Impairment of contract assets AHEERE 23B 21,855 -
Impairment of trade and B REWFIERRE
bills receivables, net DoRER R 24 51,736 25,268
Net rental income Ha W F5E (3,115) (1,407)
Foreign exchange differences, net EH =2 % 15,874 (23,483)
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8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEVFMIrRAIBERSHFMES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (A) EEHMH
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed RIEEA LR R BB R aHED 5
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong BNFRNESTHMEHIIOT -
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARET T
Fees we 3,105 3,095
Other emoluments: B
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 2R EWET 4,826 5,004
Performance related bonuses FIRERTEAT 5,359 4,990
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 314 323
10,499 10,317
13,604 13,412
Annual Report 2018 & 1 65



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A BTSRRI A

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFHMRIEBSFMES W
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEHFM (E)
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out BEENHFMMEI AT -
below:
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2ZE B U N
we  REWEA HAEA % @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2018 ARET R ARETR ARBTR ARET R N S
Executive directors: BiTES:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BMELE - 609 591 15 1,215
Mr. Zuo Manlun TRfREE - 601 599 31 1,231
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping ST - 609 591 15 1,215
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BERLE - 600 600 4 1,241
Mr. Kong Zhaocong AKBEEE - 600 600 4 1,241
Mr. Chen Guonan BE#EE 609 = 591 27 1,227
Dr. Lin Shaoquan w2t - 1,207 300 17 1,524
Mr. Huang Guirong BEREE - 600 600 112 1,312
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BBt 609 - 591 15 1,215
Mr. Lin Dewei'! WEELEN 518 - 296 - 814
1,736 4,826 5,359 314 12,235
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung® BEEREY 127 - - - 127
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan ~ TEIZ &4 275 - - - 275
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RNFRE 275 - - - 275
Ms. Lan Fang BRuL 275 - - - 275
Dr. Tao Zhigang BEREL 275 = = = 275
Mr. Cheng Dickson® Biasmrgn 142 - - - 142
1,369 - - - 1,369
3,105 4,826 5,359 314 13,604
o Re-designated as an executive director from a non-executive m M2018F7 AN BHIFNITESHER
director on 11 July 2018 WITES
@ Resigned as an independent non-executive director on 11 July @ R2018F 7 A1 HEEBUIERITES
2018
@) Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 11 July @ R2018F7 A1 HEZE BB IERNTT
2018 £
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8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

8. EEX¥FMRIBRBEFMNES (|

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEHM (E)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 28 B  RAE:E
e REDEAN BT 58 o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2017 ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT  AR%ET:
Executive directors: BTEE:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BEEEE - 624 576 16 1216
Mr. Zuo Manlun TRfREE - 614 586 38 1,238
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EERLT - 624 576 16 1216
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BERLE - 600 600 41 1,241
Mr. Kong Zhaocong KBRS - 600 600 41 1,241
Mr. Chen Guonan BEBEE 624 - 576 27 1227
Dr. Lin Shaoguan mhzET - 1,306 300 17 1623
Mr. Huang Guirong HERLYE - 600 600 N 1,311
Mr. Luo Jianfeng ErELE 624 - 576 16 1,216
1,248 4,968 4,990 323 11,529
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Mr. Lin Dewei WEEEE 437 36 - - 473
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTEES:
directors:
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung BEERE 282 - - - 282
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan ~ TE&%E4E 282 - - - 282
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RXFEE 282 - - - 282
Ms. Lan Fang Bruc 282 - - - 282
Dr. Tao Zhigang BEAET 282 - - - 282
1,410 - - - 1,410
3,095 5,004 4,990 323 13,412

No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument
and no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2017: Nil).

MEEENRXAEREEMAME -
MAKENE QS NBAEE AT
MMBAREERS QBB EENRE
EXEAMHE -

FAMBECNRENBLIFNITES
FERE MBS (2017 F « &) o
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The Group’s five highest paid employees during the year
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above.

EEFHREERSHFHES @

(B) ZEEBEHMES
FA - AEELEERFHEEAR
EX -NFARTEFTNFHNFBHR
£ XM FE8(A) ©

INCOME TAX EXPENSE Frig BB X
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBET T
Current tax BV EA %% 18

PRC A 719,197 559,945
Other jurisdictions Hth 7A@ 1,991 5
721,188 559,950

(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFECAE) TRER
PRC A (28,340) (27,709)
Other jurisdictions Hth 7A@ 939 -
(27,401) (27,709)
Deferred tax R IR 95,528 156,538
Total tax charge for the year FABIEZ HBRE 789,315 688,779

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operated.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

The statutory rate of Hong Kong profits tax was 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2017: Nil).

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group's income tax provision in respect of its operations in
mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rates
on the taxable profits for both years, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are qualified as High and
New Technology Enterprises and are entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% during both years.

INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The Group’s tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has
been calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with
the prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.
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EANEGH AR EBELEN G EZRM
SHAMIOEERE16.5% (20174 : 16.5%)
HE - ERALSERFATERETBEL
T ERFEF - AL B IREBFIER
B (20176 - |) o

HEEEREHR

AEBUAEBREZLZZ 2EREMNRE
% o A B A A FE AR B AR B A B R
AAETEANMEROR SN ERE -

AEEETHEMBARNREFEATF
SR EEER  AIF16% WEEDLE
Frem@ENE -

Hit B =B EHE
AEEBREMBEDIERENH ARG RE
REBRERBGRENBDEERIRTED
MERRETH -



9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
majority of the Company's subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Fir 8 B8 X (40

Hit B 2 HENREHRE (8]
RAARBKRE D ERRAERDEER
VR TE TR AT E Y@ AR BR A AT A R B IR
B S BLIR B R L R 5T B Y TR IR B S RO SRR
LN

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR T T
Profit before tax B B B 7 3,235,539 2,954,586
Tax at the PRC corporate income tax BRI EMBHE25%
rate of 25% FTEHBIE 808,885 738,647
Effect of tax concessions for certain ETHBARBERSE
subsidiaries A (258,153) (260,497)
Share of results of associates ARy RN (29,201) 351
Share of results of joint ventures DMEEEDEREE (154) (61)
Income not subject to tax AR S (27,403) (1,654)
Expenses not deductible for tax Ik 83,716 3,906
Tax losses utilised from prior years EOABEFEHRERSE (17,920) (6,468)
Tax losses not recognised RERBIBEIE 131,082 109,641
Adjustments in respect of current tax of HBAEFERENERTL I
prior years E & (27,401) (27,709)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the AN B FEME ARG
distributable profits of the Company’s A] 950K S A 32 5 % R
subsidiaries in PRC FERAEHATE 125,864 132,623
Tax charge at the Group's effective EAREEBEEREBEHE
rate B A1 T8 32 789,315 688,779
10. DIVIDENDS 10. K&
2018 2017
HK$ HK$'000 HK$ HK$'000
BT F&T T FHET
per share per share
R =y
2018 interim dividend paid 2120184 FF HifL & 0.10 310,242 - -
2017 final dividend paid B 2017 F RKERE B
(2017: 2016 final dividend (2017 & : 21
paid) 2016 FREARR B) 0.18 558,435 0.15 465,363
868,677 465,363
Equivalent to ZER RMB715,436,000 RMB411,288,000
A K# 715,436,000 T AR # 411,288,000 7T

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend
of HK20 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: final dividend of HK18 cents in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2017) per ordinary share has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

REERE  EEEAREE 2018612
A 31 BIEFEIRMN KRR EZE @20
B (2017F - B E2017F 12 A318
IEFER AREAI BT BAL 18 781L)
HASRENREEREAF KNG EH#ER
FAEE -
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11.

170

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11.
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of the basic and the diluted earnings per
share are based on:

RKAFAEBEAEBEEBREF

REATSEAESRERAREBERF

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
Earnings 27
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 3t & &% E 2 K #5%
used in the basic and diluted earnings per RIS R = PN/
share calculation e AEE R 2,491,774 2,293,055
Number of Shares
g S 4E|
2018 2017
Shares % 44

Weighted average number of ordinary shares &8 &M E A K #58 & 765
of the Company in issue used in the basic REINARRRIE#ET

and diluted earnings per share calculation B AR InAE T B

3,102,418,400 3,102,418,400

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 includes 3,102,418,400 ordinary shares in issue as at
31 December 2017 (2017: 3,102,418,400 ordinary shares in
issue as at 31 December 2016).

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in

issue during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
respectively.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited / Bk ¥8 &£ B2 AR A A
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. ¥  BERKE
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Plant and and office Motor Leasehold  Construction
buildings machinery equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
FE HE
THRET HERME RELERE RE  HENEEE ERIR @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A18 3,551,590 3,450,646 189,524 171,102 50,377 1,595,599 9,008,838
Additions AE 49,229 327,369 59,362 28,250 23,588 681,609 1,169,407
Interest capitalised BALAE - - - - - 2611 2611
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KENBAF - 985 115 54 - - 1,154
Transfers b 635,987 238,164 805 344 9,986 (885,286) -
Disposals & (9,114) (71,359) (3,600) (6,424) (60) (770) (91,327)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF - (102) - 1,292) (208) - (1,600
Exchange realignment EiRE (1,164) (1452) (1,935) (543) (204) - (5,298)
At 31 December 2017 and R017E12831 B8R
1 January 2018 201851718 4,226,528 3,944,251 244,271 191,491 83,481 1,393,763 10,083,785
Additions RE 70,162 369,228 44,922 17142 10,974 593,466 1,105,894
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WERBAF
(note 36) (Fi5E36) 33,574 13,899 231 4,826 - 160 52,690
Transfers Fobid 443,101 198,904 1,672 214 - (643,791) -
Disposals hE (58,852) (86,543) (8,633 (9,443) (669) (32,790) (196,830)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (408) 262) (565) 6,789) (1,117) (9,141)
Exchange realignment ERiEE 831 948 (50) 396 (1.233) 4,391 5,283
At 31 December 2018 #2018% 124318 4,715,344 4,440,279 282,151 204,061 85,764 1,314,082 11,041,681
Accumulated depreciationand 2 TER
impairment; HE:
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1 /18 (662,228) (1,466,973) (113,627) (111,367) (17,223) (15,467) (2,386,885)
Provided for the year FNEE (182,800) (347,766) (35,196) (21,703) (16,095) - (603,560)
Disposals il 37 52,762 3,083 5,067 - - 61,289
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - - 2 82 - - 84
Exchange realignment EiHE 329 323 103 538 128 - 1421
At 31 December 2017 and R17TE1ENER
1 January 2018 018F1A18 (844,322) (1,761,654) (145,635) (127,383) (33,190) (15,467) (2,927,651)
Provided for the year ENEE (242,033) (394,437) (39,228) (20,233) (18,853) - (714,784)
Disposals hE 13,992 51,638 5,663 7,948 470 - 79,701
Impairment A - 3,677) (241) (31) (1,580 2818 (2,711)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - 46 162 127 2490 - 2,805
Exchange realignment EHB% (285) 203) - (386) b78 - 296)
At 31 December 2018 R2018% 128318 (1,072,648) (2,108,287) (179,289) (139,958) (50,085) (12,649) (3,562,916
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2018 R2018% 128318 3,642,696 2,331,992 102,862 64,103 35,679 1,301,433 1,478,765
At 31 December 2017 R20178128318 3,382,206 2,182,597 98,636 64,108 50,291 1,378,296 7,156,134

Included in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
is a freehold land which had a net carrying amount of
RMB755,000 (2017: RMB719,000). The freehold land is
situated outside Hong Kong.

AAREEME - HE REEN KA EE
T A AR EDF(E A AR 755,000 7T (2017
F: ARBET719,0007T) ° sZ KA EE LM
LR B BTN o
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13. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 13. AL HEAER
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt & AR TR ARETT
At 1 January ®1HATH 1,293,369 1,275,459
Additions NE 99,468 47,627
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W B 1 7] 36 6,093 -
Provided for the year FRERE 7 (31,035) (26,867)
Exchange realignment R 519 (2,850)
At 31 December 12 A31H 1,368,414 1,293,369
Analysed for reporting purpose as: RMEENONA
Non-current assets EMEEE 1,337,959 1,266,216
Current assets included in FFATERHR - Ze Rk
prepayments, deposits and H fth JE W FRIB B
other receivables MBEE 25 30,455 27,153
1,368,414 1,293,369
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REWE
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt &% AR T ARETT
At 1 January ®w1A1H 4,038,900 2,469,488
Additions NE 263,984 1,290,874
Changes in fair value NABEZEH 7 311,809 327,313
Exchange realignment P& H % 35,730 (48,775)
At 31 December W12 A31H 4,650,423 4,038,900
Further summary details of the Group's investment properties AEEEREMERENE —FFBHRA
are set out in the section headed “Summary of Investment WEREMERE] -
Properties” of this report.
VALUATION PROCESSES HERF
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment RIEBRR  NEENRENERAAE
properties were stated at fair value and were revalued by BEY THEVEENESERKGEEME
independent professionally qualified valuers detailed below: iE - FBeT
American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd.: For properties in Thailand American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd. : ~ SLRENEM=
Sydney Metropolitan Valuations: For properties in Australia Sydney Metropolitan Valuations : SEMNDENE
Metropolitan Valuation Services Inc. For properties in United Metropolitan Valuation Services Inc. ~ ZEEMEME
& CBRE Inc.: States & CBRE Inc. :
Colliers International Realty For properties in Canada Colliers International Realty RMEAMENT
Advisors Inc.: Advisors Inc.
ERREEME L T HERAAE: For properties in PRC ERRERHEIHAEBRAR: REENERE
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

VALUATION PROCESSES (Continued)

The valuations performed by the valuers for financial reporting
purposes were reviewed by management. Management also
discussed the valuation processes and results with the valuers.
The fair value gains on revaluation are included in “other
revenue, income and gains” in profit or loss.

Management reviewed the valuation results by verifying
all major inputs and assumptions and assessing the
reasonableness of such valuations.

VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The following table shows the valuation techniques used by
the valuers in the determination of fair values. There were
no significant changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

14.

REWE (8

HERRF (&)

EREEAEEMNLEMMATE2|RE OM
TE(GME - B 12 8 J1 & 8 {4 (B A & i {4 (B 72
FRhagR -BARAEHMGHENQ D EEMND
TEt ABZEAR [ EaBA e kA -

EHECARREMAEIEH AHE LR
BN ERZHELSR YT GHZER
EHMAEME -

HESERAIABERES
TRINREEMEE X AEBERABOMG
BRE - FAMENEREZELEEAEX

4

= °

Fair value Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs
NREE HEF % FTABEERAE

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRE ARETT
Vacant lands and buildings 3,262,555 2,740,844  Direct/sales comparison Premium (discount)
under refurbishment approach in quality of land
ZETHREERYE B /HELEBE B+ 3t & = AE A
18 (4riE)
Vacant lands 377,548 422,683 Residual method Gross development
value and estimated
construction cost
ZE T RFErE BEEEBERMFTEENR
Building 214,875 - Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate
approach and market rent
ES LS - 7~ BERHEERTSHE
Buildings under 795,445 875,373 Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate
refurbishment approach and market rent
EERYE LN 7~ BERHEERTSHE

4,650,423 4,038,900

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties were within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
as their valuations were arrived at by reference to certain
significant unobservable inputs. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during the year (2017: Nil).

RIEHKR  KE2EBETFTEATTHRE
ANE#R  AEENREVEBTAANE
BEREFE=H FAMEXRE=HEA
gEL (2017F : #) -
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15. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

174

15. BERHMERLEE

GOODWILL (A) B2
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt = AR®T T ARETT
At 1 January ®m1A1H 85,309 76,554
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W EEH B A7) 36 278,196 8,755
Impairment VERIE] (372) -
At 31 December 12 A31H 363,133 85,309
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (B) HthEEEE
Trademark Operating Patent and Computer
and brand  concession  proprietary software
name rights  technologies and others Total
AR EREH
BERESR  BELER EER ) 3:0 B3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETTL ARETT AREFT ARETTL
Cost: R
At 1 January 2017 R201751R18 110,520 24,550 27,476 64,060 226,606
Additions NE - - - 5,492 5,492
Disposals HE - - - (918) (918)
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBAHF - - - (33) (33)
Exchange realignment R AE - - - (74) (74)
At 31 December 2017 and 20175128318 R
1 January 2018 201851710 110,520 24,550 27,476 68,527 231,073
Additions NE 144 - - 5,795 5,939
Acquisitions of subsidiaries I
(note 36) (izE36) 39,560 - 52,250 27 91,837
Disposals HE - - - (20) (20)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - (8) (8)
Exchange realignment BEHRE - - - 28 28
At 31 December 2018 720185128318 150,224 24,550 79,726 74,349 328,849
Accumulated amortisation: KB
At 1 January 2017 R201751R18 - - (3,064) (39,927) (42,991)
Provided for the year FREE - - (3,367) (13,028) 16,395)
Disposals HE - - - 643 643
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - - - 1 1
Exchange realignment BN A% - - - 1 1
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12 8318 R
1 January 2018 201851410 - - (6,431) (52,310) (58,741)
Provided for the year FREE (1,302) - 3,637) (7,398) (12,337)
Disposals HE - - - 5 5
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - - - 7 7
Exchange realignment BN A& - - - 4 4
At 31 December 2018 720185124310 (1,302) - (10,068) (59,692) (71,062)
Net carrying amount; RERE:
At 31 December 2018 120185124318 148,922 24,550 69,658 14,657 257,787
At 31 December 2017 R2017512 4318 110,520 24,550 21,045 16,217 172,332
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16.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, brand
name and operating concession rights with indefinite useful
lives set out in note 15 have been allocated to six individual
cash generating units (“CGUs"), comprising one subsidiary
engaging in the provision of environmental engineering
services, one subsidiary engaging in the provision of sewage
treatment services, two subsidiaries engaging in the provision
of hazardous waste treatment services and two subsidiaries
engaging in the provision of product quality inspection and
calibration services for warranty instruments. The carrying
amounts of goodwill, brand name and operating concession
rights at the end of the reporting period allocated to these
units are as follows:

6. FERHMAERITEAFHNE

FREERERNR

SURERIHME - ME15MENEE - &
BERAERFHOBREREFELEEED
R ERNNReELEL(REELE
Bfl)  ZEEUBE-—FRHREREIRE

RIS B LA - —RR A5 KR R IR
H B B 2 )~ R D e A A e B R B IR AR 75

H BT B8 B A AR R B R o B R A B AR
EERRERBONB LR MRHREH
AOEEZFEMUNHE AR LFFLE
SREMNKREENT

Operating
concession
Goodwill Brand name rights
kS [k B E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2018 AR®T T AR TR ARBTR
Guangzhou EP Environmental BMTIRERELRR R
Engineering Ltd. and BERABRREKBARF
its subsidiary* (“GZEP") ([GZEP)) 29,100 110,520 23,230
Foshan Shunde Huifengyuan 1L T IR [ fE 2 RIR IR
Environmental Management THREEBBRAA
Co., Ltd.* ("Huifengyuan”) (MEgR]) 7,457 - 1,320
Hainan Baolai Industrial & BEERIEBRA A
Trading Co., Ltd.* and REWEBQE
its subsidiary (“Baolai") (TEXK]) 39,997 = -
Jianghuai Inspection Corporation BT EE 2 BTE8
Services Co., Ltd.* i Er=l - YN
("Jianghuai inspection”) (IERAD 8,755 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental THXBRABRER
Technology Co., Ltd.* NG
("Jiangsu Yongbao") (I&KED 276,098 = -
Hunan Huaging Testing Technology #m 25 & B BT AR 2 &)
Co., Ltd.* ("Hunan Huaging”) (MBmEED 1,726 = -
363,133 110,520 24,550
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16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND . BERHEMAEERITERAFHNE
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE FEERENR @
USEFUL LIVES (Continued)
Operating
concession
Goodwill Brand name rights
kS 75 50% R e g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2017 ARBT T ARETT ARBTT
GZEP GZEP 29,100 110,520 23,230
Huifengyuan iE 2R 7,457 - 1,320
Baolai K 39,997 - -
Jianghuai inspection ] 8,755 - -
85,309 110,520 24,550
Management regarded brand name and operating concession ERERREBEBEHEENERRE
rights acquired through business combinations having RS EAERRAGEREE - IHER
indefinite useful lives because they are expected to generate HEEHEABERHNRSRAERE -
net cash inflows indefinitely.
At the end of the reporting period, management determines RIERR BEEREEMESHE
that there are no impairments of any of its CGUs containing HERoERAFEAESR RFTEEED

goodwill, brand name and operating concession rights with HeEEBEMBERE -
indefinite useful lives.
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16.

17.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of GZEP, Huifengyuan, Baolai,
Hunan Huaging, Jianghuai Inspection and Jiangsu Yongbao
have been determined based on value in use calculation
using cash flow projections which based on financial budgets
approved by the management covering a five-year period. The
pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
are 16.2%, 14.8%, 13.4%, 13.4%, 20.3% and 15.4%,
respectively. The cash flows beyond the five years period are
extrapolated using 2.0% growth rate. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculation relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the units’ past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the carrying amounts of GZEP, Huifengyuan, Baolai, Hunan
Huaqging, Jiangsu Yongbao and Jianghuai Inspection to exceed
their recoverable amounts respectively.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

16. BERHEMAERTEAFHNE

& ERE R (@)

GZEP- - EZR - B2k - HMmEE - L&
OB /IE?*?%E’JTHSZ@%EEE@EEE@
MEBANAAEREBRTAGFE - ZHE2
//|LE§'E/E\|JNEL/{EEEﬁbﬁmﬂigﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ_
EAEMW B RETEBAEA SRR
AEIR R DRI A16.2% ~ 14.8% ~ 13.4% -
13.4% ~ 20.3% K 15.4% - AF B 1E 018
EREVHA20%EREHEL - TEAFF
REEMEMFrZRLNABREEEHEERE
&%%'J%E@Iﬁuium)\/uwﬁE’ME::‘I’%F‘E]
EBEFTDERBEINEMNBAEREARE
BEHENMSERMBEMEL - B8
EBRE  ERZEREATE ijEE’JEﬂA
BEH I ERGZEP ELR - TR -
EZESEIR /I@*R?%&/I/E$AHUXQE’UEEE
BERHESEMNATKESE -

17. RBE QAT WESR

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T AR®ETT

Share of net assets DR EEFR 1,239,394 41,324
Goodwill on acquisitions WEEEEMEE 136,173 -
1,375,567 41,324
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REEE QTR (&)
Particulars of the associates are as follows: B NAIREEIBIA T
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ FiEEak
Registered registration and Ownership Voting Profit
Name capital business interest power sharing Principal activity
| 2R/ )
£R ZHER HRREEHS fiekRs RER s ER ITER
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited"” RMB3,731,000 Cayman Islands 26 26 26 Manufacture and sale
of aluminium profiles
RERERRERAT" ARE3731,0007 REHS 26 2 2 R REEREAM
Foshan Hechuang Yingke Real Estate RMB80,000,000 PRC 38 38 38 Property development
Development Co., Ltd*? , \
BUmAHBHEERSERAT" AEH80,000,0007 R 38 38 38 NEERE
Guangdong Liancheng Lesso Commercial RMB10,000,000 PRC 40 40 40 Property management
Development Co., Ltd*® ,
ERENEHAERERRAAY AEE10,000,000 7T HE 40 40 40 NEER
Guangdong Lianging environmental RMB100,000,000 PRC 3 35 3 Provision of
Co., Ltd*" Environmental
consulting services
ERBEREERAFV AR 100,000,000 HE 35 35 35 RERRZARE
Guangdong Zlgj information Technology RMB11,236,000 PRC 8 1 il Provision of household
Co., Ltd*® decoration and design
, Services
RREREREENHARAA" ARH11,236,0007C Gl 8 1 1 REFERBR
Rt
Shanghai Banxin loT Tech Co. Ltd* RMB12,027,000 PRC 14 20 4 Provision of loT
‘ solution services
LRATIBANRERAA AEH12027,0007 Gl 14 20 4 REDBRER
FERB
Artaic, LLC USD2,500,000 USA 17 20 11 Manufacture and sale of
‘mosaic tiles
Artaic, LLC 2500,000% T %8 17 2 1 BERKESERAE
m During current year, the Group acquired 26.28% equity interest of Xingfa o RAFERN  KREBMELFE = WERE
Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa Aluminium”) from independent R Hﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ A (& ?é‘f %J) 26.28% &)
third parties at total consideration of HK$973,553,000 (approximate to f&# - # K {8 /&973,553,00 T (AR
RMB778,885,000). 778,885,000 7T) ©
@ During current year, the Group acquired 38% equity interest of Foshan @ RAFERN AEEABLE = FWESLT
Hechuang Yingke Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Hechuang SRIARNMEERBRAERA B ([ARIAE])38%
Yingke"”) from independent third parties at total consideration of BRiE - R (E A AR ¥ 356,440,000 7T ©
RMB356,440,000.
@ This associate was newly set up during the year. @ LB N RN EFE RFTAK L ©
@ On 22 February 2018, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement @ 20182 A22 A - AKBEEI L RHE R -
to transfer 25% equity interest in Guangdong Lianging Environmental WEERBERRERAA (fﬁ%ﬂwﬁJ)ZB%
Co., Ltd (“Guangdong Lianging”) to an independent third party. After the MR ERTEYE = - EERAERE B
share transfer, Guangdong Lianging become an associate of the Group. REERRAEERBE QA -

(5) It is considered that the Group has significant influence over this company s $§IEA§ NAEEEHE —RESF WA E
because the Group has a director in the board of this company. RAERNEBHZABEEEATEN -
Xingfa Aluminium and Hechuang Yingke, which are considered WIRERE gljﬁﬁﬂi’j WHEABARNEENE
material associates of the Group, are engaged in the KEEZNT] DRI BRI LS E 8 A

manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles and property LA&%%%‘*E&%%% C WIRREZREARR
development, respectively, and are accounted for using the
equity method.
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17.

Summarised financial information of the material associates,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements at the end of the reporting period, are as follows:

REEQATWES (@)

BREREE QRN RS RO EER
M2 (ZEEHECRETBRNEMNERE
HABRWEGEVHERENETDERTY
B)mT :

Xingfa Hechuang
Aluminium Yingke
WA ER ERIZR
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Current assets MENEE 4,945,940 1,306,500
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill IRBEE(TBEERE) 2,891,673 43,989
Goodwill on acquisition of the associates WEsE R AR EANEE 124,590 11,583
Current liabilities mENBE (4,190,051) (114,257)
Non-current liabilities FmBEE (451,392) (294,395)
Net assets BEFHE 3,320,760 953,420
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEEFH(TBERE) 3,196,170 941,837
Reconciliation to the Group's interests in B N 2 B A B N B Y
the associates: HEm AR -
Proportion to the Group’s ownership BTG 2~ 5= & i A5 #E L 191 26.28% 38%
Group's share of net assets of the REBD(HHEE D FW
associate, excluding goodwill BEFHE(TEERER) 839,953 357,898
Goodwill on acquisitions WEEENBE 124,590 11,583
Carrying amount of the investments HEREE 964,543 369,481
Revenue N 8,402,846 140,799
Profit for the year F 1A 5 A 422,668 34,317
Other comprehensive expense Hih2EMAXZ (3,042) -
Total comprehensive income for the year FANTENR=BEHE 419,626 34,317
Fair value of the Group's investments rEBKEAAEBE 466,785 Nil =

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's associates that are not individually

material:

TREFANEE O IEE B EKREZE QR
BB ER

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT
Share of associates: DREEE A E]
Loss from continuing operations SFECEEER (7,315) (1,404)
Other comprehensive income H ity 2 Wz - -
Total comprehensive expense 2HEMAS B (7,315) (1,404)
Aggregate carrying amount of AEEKRERN
the Group's investment HRREE 41,543 41,324
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REELEMNER
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETT
Share of net assets DIREEFRE 9,303 9,024
Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows: EEPENFEBUOT -
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ iR
Registered registration and Ownership Voting Profit
Name capital business interest power sharing Principal activity
AR/
a8 ZHER AMREEHS frEkEs REE E &R ITER
Guangdong Lesso EPCO Residential RMB10,000,000 PRC 50 50 50 Provision of
Equipment Design Services Co., Ltd.* household decoration
design work and
maintenance services
ERBEUENETRERAREERLA  AR%10000,0007 hE 50 50 50 REFEEHR:
R BlRis
Eprosity Asset Management Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Ringgit Malaysia b1 50 b1 Sale of building
(Formerly known as Lesso Home Syn Tai 1,000,000 materials and
Hung Sdn. Bhd)* household products
Eprosity Asset Management Sdn. Bhd. (R4 1,000,000 SRESD 51 50 51 HERNRREER
BRRERLFEATRABRAT ) SRBTHER
# The Group acquired a 49% equity interest in Eprosity Asset # AEBEN2018F8A3HMEAEBHIK
Management Sdn. Bhd. (“Eprosity Asset”) from its joint venture partner 8 Eprosity Asset Management Sdn. Bhd.
at a total consideration of RMB1,120,000 on 3 August 2018 and became ([Eprosity Asset])49% Z B A#Ez - ARER
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. AR#1,120,0007T ' WK AAEE2EHRBE R
ET o
The following table illustrates the information of the Group's TEREVNNAEEREELENERNER
interests in joint ventures:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T T
Share of joint ventures: DMEEERE
Profit from continuing operations FEASEET m A 616 243
Other comprehensive income H b 2wl - -
Total comprehensive income NS BRE 616 243
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19A.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 1A ATHEHERE
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt &% AR TR AREBTT
Listed investments: EHRE
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REBLEMERES (i) - 7,935
Equity securities listed in PRC KA ETRAES - 412,318
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REBLETRAES - 1,095,840
Non-cumulative redeemable preference R &EH T 3ER5T
shares listed in Hong Kong A fE B2 % ik - 33,635
Perpetual capital securities listed in REBLEMKAER
Hong Kong &5 - 8,403
- 1,558,131
Unlisted investments: FLEMKE
Equity securities IR A 78 5 (ii) - 24,077
- 1,582,208

Note: B

(i) The debt securities carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 6.35% to (i) ERELSNMNEREETFENENF6.35%F
7.00% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears and will mature from 7.00% 5 E - BEELNRER202081 A E
January 2020 to March 2020. 202043 A E|H -

(i) The unlisted equity securities are issued by private entities established (ii) FELTIRAZARENT B S T2
in PRC. They are measured at cost less any impairment losses at the T -HRAEBNARBEATHEEE BFR2
end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value BZEBFEFNAABHEEZUREASE WRRE
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their HiK a2 EBF NIRKANBERREEEE -
fair values cannot be measured reliably.

(iii) At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s available-for-sale (iii) M2017F12 831 AEFBHEEREAARE
investments with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB33,635,000 were 33,635,000 TH A T aj B ERE D mF1THE
pledged to a bank to secure the banking facility granted. The Group has WIEAERBETHENER AEFENMKREH
not utilised this banking facility. ZIRITRLE ©

(iv) Upon the adoption the HKFRS 9, the Group has reclassified the available- (iv) NERWBE SN BEREELFIH%  AEHD

for-sale investments to other financial assets (note 19B).

BAHEEREENDREEMERMEE (i
19B)
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19B.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

182

19B.HEMtEMEE

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR T ARET T
Non-current: ERE :
Debt instruments at BARBEFAHEMEE
FVTOCI: WHNEBITA : (i)
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REBLMEBES 50,376 -
Debt securities listed in PRC RAAE ETEREH 204,723 -
255,099 -
Equity instruments at BEAnBESAEMEZE
FVTOCI: Was iR AT A : (ii)
Equity securities listed in PRC AR B E TR AR 247,573 -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REBLETRAES 482,293 -
Non-cumulative redeemable preference R &EH F T 3ER5t
shares listed in Hong Kong A fE B8 % X 34,474 -
Perpetual capital securities listed in REBLEMKAER
Hong Kong =5 8,391 -
Unlisted equity securities EEMRATEFH 770,795 -
1,543,526 -
Equity instruments at BAREBEFABZN
FVTPL: AT A : (iii)
Unlisted equity securities FEEMRAES 53,886 -
1,852,511 -
Current: B -
Debt instruments at BARBEFABRN
FVTPL EHLIA 47,649 -
1,900,160 -

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited / Bk ¥8 &£ B2 AR A A



19B.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The debt securities carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 5.65% to
8.40% per annum, payable semi-annually or annually in arrears and will
mature from January 2020 to January 2023. These debt securities were
reclassified from available-for-sale investments to debt instruments at
FVTOCI.

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive income for the
fair value changes of all of its equity instruments previously classified
as available-for-sale investments. These instruments are not held for
trading and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the date
of initial application of HKFRS 9, RMB1,574,273,000 were reclassified
from available-for-sale investments to equity instruments at FVTOCI,
of which RMB24,077,000 related to unquoted equity instruments
previously measured at cost less impairment under HKAS 39. No fair
value change related to those investments previously carried at cost less
impairment was adjusted to equity instruments at FVTOCI and FVTOCI
reserve as at 1 January 2018. Fair value loss of RMB189,718,000
relating to these instruments was recorded in FVTOCI reserve during the
year.

The equity securities contained a puttable option were classified as
equity instruments at FVTPL.

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s other financial
assets with an aggregate net carrying amount of RMB34,474,000 were
pledged to a bank to secure the banking facility granted and the Group
has not utilised this banking facility.

19B.HEMtERMEE (&)

BEE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BEEFFOFNEREAEFHNEN T565%F
8.40%FtH  B¥FHEIF I RKBR2020F
1 AE2023F1 ARH - ZEEHBHLETHT
EREEOPBEERANBESALMEZER
mEEBIA -

AEEREREME2EREF 2 LMD EAT
HHERENMERATENAREBERS - %
STAVIHEBIEES BB EN T LBRE
EoNIREREBMEREENEIORER -
HAHEEREETHREERAABEFAR
tEEKEMRATEAARY1,574,273,000
T EPEBEAMBEEBSSERE 395K
AR RESENFLTRATABARE
24,077,0007T °A20184F 1 A1 8 - fEAE %
RTIRR AN R ERT 2R E N A BEZEH
BAEARBESAELMEZERSHRALA
REARBEFAEMBEZEREFE -FR B
HZSIENAABEEEARY 189,718,000

ZAREEFAEMEE K S EEALR -

A

RBREMR AKSELFEEFERARE
34,474,000 7CH E T HM S B EER MRTE
MERERRTRENERRASEHES A
ZIRITELE -
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20.

184

LOAN RECEIVABLES

20. WA

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT
Non-current: kAE
Finance lease receivables Bh & 0 & R 7% FE W R 163,422 228,710
Current: B
Finance lease receivables Bh & & R 7% pE W R 100,421 109,677
Factoring receivables 1R AR 7% P U SR 1B 334,379 321,929
Receivables from supply-chain H FE 5 @h & BR 7% FE UK
financing services IE 80,170 129,600
514,970 561,206
Less: Provision for impairment B R E R (159,500) -
355,470 561,206
518,892 789,916

(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Minimum lease receivables

(A)

BMEHERKERIIR

Present value of
minimum lease receivables

RIEHE S R%EERRE RERERKERFERE
2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT ARETRT ARETTT
Not more than 1 year PER1E 116,208 117,912 100,421 109,677
Over 1 year but within 1A ERF
5 years AR 182,104 272,151 163,422 228,710
298,312 390,063 263,843 338,387
Less: Unearned finance W REBEERE
income g (34,469) (51,676)
Present value of minimum /K7 & IR 75 FE Uk
lease receivables WIERE 263,843 338,387

The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated
in Renminbi. The effective interest rates of the
receivables ranged from 5.89% to 12.70% (2017: 5.89%
to 12.70%) per annum. There are no unguaranteed
residual values of assets leased under finance leases
and no contingent rent arrangements that needed to be

recognised (2017: Nil).
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20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(A)

(B)

20. FEUfE R (@)

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued) (A) BEHERKEWRNKIE(E)
The following is a credit quality analysis of these finance UTARERERSEINENEER
lease receivables: BEHHN
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARET T
Neither past due nor impaired 7 360 B 78 RO 1B 263,843 338,387
The receivables are secured by assets leased under ZEWBRENREREEENRE &
finance leases and cash deposits (where applicable). & (EA) ERIERE -
Cash deposits from finance lease customers are BEHERBEFASZSIERA
collected upfront based on certain percentage of the BN EENE TE D LTEL W
entire value of the lease contracts. When the lease He-RBEEGHNERMAREPBITH
contracts expires and all related liabilities and obligations EHBEEERERRE ZRSEREE
are fulfilled by the customers, the cash deposit will be 2RISR ERITY BR
returned in full. The balance of the cash deposit can also HEERERES LM ER &R U ER
be used to settle any outstanding lease receivables for HERKERZE B WENERESE
the corresponding lease contract. The collected cash & AR® 25,613,000t (20175 © A
deposits of RMB25,613,000 (2017: RMB22,164,000) K #22,164,0007T) Bt AR E B 1§
have been included in “other long-term payables” in the MR HEEEENSRIEIR -
consolidated statement of financial position.
FACTORING RECEIVABLES (B) #RIE PR FE W FKIE

The Group's factoring receivables arise from the
provision of factoring services to companies located
in PRC. The credit period granted to each customer is
generally within 365 days.

Factoring receivables are secured by receivables and/
or commercial bills originally owned by the customers.
These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from
4.00% to 6.50% (2017: 4.50% to 6.00%) per annum.

7R 52 [ B 1R 72 AR 75 1l W SR IR 2K B ) R
BARHRHRERS BETEEFPH
ERHIR —MBI65KRA -

REREENRBANRKEETFES
R FEUR A ok g 2 TE = - 5%
LERWHEZN T4.00% £6.50%
(20174 : 4.50% £ 6.00% ) B £ 7|
KRG8 o
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20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(B)

(C)

186

20. FEU &R (@)

FACTORING RECEIVABLES (Continued) (B) {REBRREEWFIE (&)
The maturity profile of the factoring receivables at the RBERR - RERSERFIAENED
end of the reporting period is as follows: BB R ¢
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
With a residual maturity of: e &R HAPR -
Not more than 3 months %R 31E A 65,079 44,700
Over 3 months to 6 months AN E=6MEA 109,800 125,000
Over 6 months to 12 months 61E AL L= 1216 A - 152,229
Overdue i %61 B 159,500 -
334,379 321,929
At the end of the reporting period, RMB159,500,000 of Rk EH R - ARM 159,500,000
the Group's factoring receivables was impaired (2017: AR E B AR RIE RIS EWZIEE RE
Nil). (20174 : f®) »
RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN FINANCING (C) fLPEgERLE AR 75 FE W S 1E

SERVICES

The Group's receivables from supply-chain financing
services arise from the provision of supply-chain
financing services to companies located in PRC. The
credit period for each customer is generally within 365
days.

These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from
5.40% to 10.80% per annum (2017: 5.40% to 7.20%).

Certain receivables from supply-chain financing services,
amounting to RMB80,170,000 (2017: RMB50,000,000)
are secured by certain interests of companies and
personal guarantees.
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20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(C) RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN FINANCING
SERVICES (Continued)
The maturity profile of the receivables from supply-chain
financing services at the end of the reporting period is as

20. FEUfE R (@)

(C) HIEsERE MR EWRIR (&)

RS HR - (58 B & 7% 18 Wk
BB

follows:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARET T

With a residual maturity of: &) B4 B IR
Not more than 3 months %R 31E A 57,050 95,600
Over 3 months to 6 months 3EAMNU E=61EA 19,900 34,000
Over 6 months to 12 months 61 A =121 A 3,220 -
80,170 129,600

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's
receivables from supply-chain financing services was
either past due or impaired (2017: Nil).

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by considering the probability of default of those companies
with financial conditions, historical loss experience, coverage
by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance. At
the end of the reporting period, the loss given default for
the remaining balance of loan receivables was not material
and has no impact on the Group's consolidated financial

RMEIR  AEEHEEERER
T 1Y JiE Uk SR IE W 42 e HR SUR(E (2017
o) o

BRMBHRR BELEBLER EAEX
HEANEARBRERZSEATANEN
FRE  REREBRETREDT - R
BREBRR SRTHERKEFEONEERYL
TEZREAEENGREVBERRITEY
.

statements.

21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 21. HhERBEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT ARBTT
Other long-term receivables (note) H b = BB W SRR (B 3E) 5,804 52,591
Long-term rental prepayments REHESEMNRE - 98,000
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary TE{H e B — R B B & R 3IE 354,293 -
360,097 150,591

Note:

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has reclassified the other long-term
receivables arising from concession operating right to contract assets.

CEE
NERBEBHBREEAE 155 - ARBEHES

AEERMEENEMRAEBUGRRENDREEH
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. + N
RE U IF MR
22. INVENTORIES 22. &
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT
Manufacturing and trading HERES 3,271,853 3,099,969
Property development g 249,361 127,773
3,521,214 3,227,742
(A) MANUFACTURING AND TRADING (A) HERES
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARET T
Raw materials R 1,401,893 1,445,320
Work in progress £ fm 327,273 297,190
Finished goods ZEFX i 1,542,687 1,357,459
3,271,853 3,099,969
(B) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (B) M=#RE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARET T
Property under development BERPYE 249,361 127,773
The property under development is expected to be ZERTVEBRTNRERRESZR
completed and available for sale in more than twelve + {8 A FER I AT o

months after the end of the reporting period.
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23A.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR  23A.FBly "FEREFMEHN IR IR
CONTRACT WORK

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Contracts in progress at the end of the REBEEHRNER

reporting period &%
Contract costs incurred plus recognised S EEEE KA
profits less recognised losses to date B R m R B R E 1R - 1,292,781
Less: Progress billings W HEEETE - (1,125,097)
- 167,684
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BHREENDNA
Amounts due from customers for BREFNEHTIRE
contract work IR = 269,239
Amounts due to customers for ERNEPHEHIE
contract work I8 - (101,555)
- 167,684
Note: B 5E
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has reclassified the amounts due RIERME B ERELELE16571% - AEBEC BRI
from/to contract customers for contract work to contract assets/liabilities. ENEEPHNANIRREBEEN N EEANEE,/BFE -
23B.CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23B.EHNEE EHEE
31 December 1 January 31 December
12A318 1A1H 12 A31H
2018 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBEFIT ARET T
Contract assets AWEE
Non-current FERE
Concession operating right R 84,651 48,709 -
Current mE
Renovation and installation works ~ EERZE T 258,812 193,481 -
Environmental engineering services ¥R T2 IR 86,440 75,758 -
Concession operating right R e 3,882 3,882 -
349,134 273,121
Impairment WA (21,855) - -
327,279 273,121 -
411,930 321,830 -
Contract liabilities EHEE
Current B
Renovation and installation works ~ ZE{ERZHE T2 50,094 79,614 -
Environmental engineering services 3R3E T2 R 75 22,686 21,941 -
Advances from customers HE#H% 1,410,214 1,120,169 -
1,482,994 1,221,724 -
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23B.

190

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

The Group’s contract assets represent the Group's rights
to consideration for work completed but not yet billed to
customers at the end of reporting period. The contract assets
will be transferred to trade and bills receivables when the
rights become unconditional, that is, when the Group issue
progress billings to customers based on the certified amount
agreed with customers.

At the end of reporting period, RMB21,855,000 was
recognised as an allowance for expected credit losses on
contract assets. The Group’s trading terms and credit policy
with customers are disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s contract liabilities represent the Group's
obligations to transfer goods or services to customers for
which the Group has received consideration, or for which an
amount of consideration is due from the customers.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract
assets at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

23B.ENEE EHERB @

AEENARNEEEAKRERRSHRE
FTELEMRMEF 7 TRZKEREETR -
ERRENKASEGER  ANEERSE
BEESRERELREE AAKEER
HEFHENZECRATF E L EE
£ o

RBERR - AR% 21,855,000 THER A
BHEEBRHEEREREE T~5EEHEK
FREZEAREERREERGAET
WERMIFE24 -

AEENANABEREAKRERTEFEERA
SEHOUWBRKEBEIXEEREFRESENE
m R EAE -

RIS R R E A A A E TS
RefE AT

2018

RMB’000

AR TR

Not more than 1 year DEI K 327,279
Over 1 year 1A E 84,651
411,930

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
contract assets are as follows:

BHEERENERREESWT

2018

RMB’000

AR T

At 1 January R1A1H -
Impairment losses recognised BRI EE B 21,855
At 31 December ®12H31H 21,855
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23B.CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(Continued)

For the contract assets arising from renovation and
installation works and environmental engineering services,
an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates for the measurement of the expected
credit losses of the contract assets are based on those of
the trade and bills receivables as the contract assets and
the trade and bills receivables are from the same customer
bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based on
the invoice date of trade and bills receivables for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.,e., by geographical region, product type, customer type
and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms
of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s contract assets using a provision

matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

23B.ENEE EHNERBE®@

RERERLZRKRIREAMRRTIERBERE
EMENEEMS  AKERSHREE B
ERBREREETRED T A ERMIE
ERE-FfEaNEEMNTEHMEEBREN
BEBXDRESHEREFERERNAMIE
EEREE DHARANEENE HEWR
RERZBXRER-—EEFER - ANE
ENBEEXRARUBBERANZELE
SHRBEMEBENTF D EBAR (ARt
EmBL BFRFREULIE  URERE
REMPZANERRR) OBERHHEE -
ZATERRAAERNENER  BERRE
BUAMRBSERAIESERBESMN
BRRARLERRBANNEEFE
£t e

AT#IERAEEFERRERESEN
BHEENEERREN

720185 12A31H

RMB’000

AR TR

Expected credit loss rate EHEEEEX 6.33%
Gross carrying amount FREMRE 345,252
Expected credit losses JEEEEEE 21,855

For the contract assets arising from concession operating
right, since the party to concession agreements are local
government authorities in PRC, the Group considers the credit
risk is low as at 31 December 2018. The Group does not hold
any collateral over the balance.

MEFCEEMEENEGNEENS @ &
RS HET BPE T BUTKE K&
BRAEHE2018F 12 A31HWNEERR
BIE - REBWERESRT A TMERS -
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24.

192

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

24. EZRURERREE

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARET T

Trade receivables H 5 e FIE 2,036,323 1,981,994
Bills receivable e R & 537,617 187,675
Less: Provision for impairment B R E R (194,493) (145,061)
2,379,447 2,024,608

The Group’s major customers are independent distributors,
civil contractors, property developers, utility companies and
municipalities in mainland China. Depending on the market
condition, marketing tactics and relationships with the
customers, the Group's trading terms with its independent
distributors may change from settlement on an advance
receipt basis to giving a credit period of generally one
month or more, if appropriate. The Group does not have a
standardised and universal credit period granted to the non-
distributor customers. The credit period of an individual non-
distributor customer is considered on a case-by-case basis
and is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate. Sales to
small, new, or short-term customers are normally expected
to be settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly after the
goods delivery. No credit term period is set by the Group for
small, new and short-term customers.

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An aging analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

EZRBFRERREE @

RMERR AEENEFERFERE
B ZH Y MBEEEERNERED
Mo

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARET T

Not more than 3 months TZH3E A 1,326,856 1,063,621
Over 3 months to 6 months 3EAMN -=61EA 339,304 438,828
Over 6 months to 12 months 6E AL EZ=121EA 347,898 248,608
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FUNEE2F 314,239 173,230
Over 2 years to 3 years 2F N EEIF 42,684 90,318
Over 3 years 3FELE 8,466 10,003
2,379,447 2,024,608

TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE NOT
DERECOGNISED IN THEIR ENTIRETY

At the end of the reporting period, the Group entered into
a factoring arrangement (the “Arrangement”) to transfer a
bill receivable (the “Factoring Bill") to a third-party factoring
company in PRC with a carrying amount in aggregate of
RMB250,000,000 (2017: Nil). Under the Arrangement, the
Group may be required to reimburse the third-party factoring
company for loss of principal and interest if any trade debtors
have late payment up to 30 days. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks and
rewards, which include default risks relating to such Factoring
Bill, and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the Factoring Bill. Subsequent to the transfer, the
Group did not retain any rights on the use of the Factoring Bill,
including the sale, transfer or pledge of the Factoring Bill to
any other third parties. The associated liabilities recognised
relating to the Factoring Bill at the end of the reporting period
were RMB250,000,000 (2017: Nil).

AEZRUEBANCERERMEE

RMEHAR AEBFTVRELZHE([ZL
D) m—EPEE=FREQREEE
M4 E A A R ¥ 250,000,000 7T H f& U 2=
BREBEZRE]) (20174F &) - BRIEZL
B WM E SEEALERMNREIOK
BIAEEAEBRZE - REQREER
HASRABEBX -EERAE AEER
BEARABRKEOFR (BERZREZEEH
MENRR) MEEETIERREZE
WIRAEE - REEE AEBTEREE
AREZE (BEATMNEME=FTHE
ol IR R IE ) MEMAER - RIRs
HX EREZEFHEMNEERIEBERE
/% AR # 250,000,000 7T (2017 4 « ££) -
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24. ESREWREREE (@)
TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE ERERIEIANCEECREE
DERECOGNISED IN THEIR ENTIRETY
At the end of the reporting period, the Group entered into RmERR AEEFTIREBZH - m—
a factoring arrangement to transfer a bill receivable (the MABEALE = FREAREZRmMAE
“Derecognised Bill”) to a third-party factoring company A ANER#241,083,000 T EWEE (B
in mainland China with a carrying amount in aggregate of WIEERZRE]) (2017 F  £) - DR IEHE
RMB241,083,000 (2017: Nil). The Derecognised Bill had a REBRBMERRE T —FEAZH - RIE
maturity of twelve months at the end of the reporting period. FEZREE WESHEBHAEL  AIE&LE
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in HREBRFEABEANAERER ([FE
the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bill have a right 28] FERA AKEDHEBHEEK
of recourse against the Group if the trade debtors default ILEREEBREAB R @ & E R -
(the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the A HEEBHALULEERERIEERER
directors, the Group has transferred substantially all risks and REREE AEERFTESLHEKIFER
rewards relating to the Derecognised Bill. Accordingly, it has fﬂ?ﬁ&@Eﬁa%@tﬁ@%%%%ﬂi?ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised MEMAZBIANESRBRAESHNEERT
Bill. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group's B-ZEERE AEERELHEBKILRE
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bill and the REBHARLBELTERK -
undiscounted cash flow to repurchase the Derecognised Bill
is equal to its carrying amount. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair value of the Group's Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bill is not significant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not RMERAR AEBTEBEREMNRE K
recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the IHERZEEZH PO FREIE - $E
Derecognised Bill. No gain or loss was recognised from the BRFALERFESBERT AR S
Continuing Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. BE NERFEL2HER Tf’cﬂf%aﬂﬁlm
The factoring business has been made sporadically. AR (RIBEBBAEE -
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the AEEESEWFIERZEERENEIER
Group's trade and bills receivables are as follows: wHENT -
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR TR AR®ETT
At 1 January ®1A1H 145,061 121,030
Impairment losses recognised ERRRIEEE 7 51,736 25,268
Amounts written off as uncollectible i §5 & 0] Y [0 7 & 58 (2,304) (1,237)
At 31 December »12 A31H 194,493 145,061

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited / Bk ¥8 &£ B2 AR A A



24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24. ESEWREREE (®)
IMPAIRMENT UNDER HKFRS 9 FOR THE YEAR ENDED BHZEZ2018F12A3MBLEETBUER
31 DECEMBER 2018 HERAEIFEHRE
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting AEERESHMELHFERABREBEETHR
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit BEMAG2RHEESE BEENBE
losses. The provision rates are based on the invoice date UEBEBEANSERESHAR (Bl E -
for groupings of various customer segments with similar EmER RXPEMRFL  URERAFE
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, FHEMEXNERRK) WEZHBET -
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or R ERBRAAENERNER - BB R
other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the BEAERBEBRIESERATSMH
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and BRAEARREERRATBEANNEELEE
reasonable and supportable information that is available at o
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk ATENEEAEBERREEETED
exposure on the Group's trade and bills receivables using a ZoORBFEREENEERBRER
provision matrix:
2018
Within Over
1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 years Total
15/ 1228 2E3% 3ENL @zt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®TR AR®TT ARETT AR®TTR
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERER 0.67% 7.62% 19.67% 94.46% 7.56%
Gross carrying amount FRgE 2,027,713 340,168 53,135 152,924 2,573,940
Expected credit losses BHEERE (13,655) (25,929) (10,451) (144,458) (194,493)
2,014,058 314,239 42,684 8,466 2,379,441
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24. EZERWFEREE &)

196

IMPAIRMENT UNDER HKAS 39 FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2017

The above provision of RMB145,061,000, which was
measured based on incurred credit losses under HKAS 39, as
at 31 December 2017 was for individually impaired trade and
bills receivables with their aggregate carrying amount before
provision of RMB226,233,000. The individually impaired trade
and bills receivables relate to customers that are in default or
delinquency in payments.

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables
as at 31 December 2017 that were neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 is as
follows:

HZE2017F12831BLEEEFBEE
Bl 553955 R &

R2017F 1243185 BREF B EEL
FIVFHMEEAEEEET=EN Ll EE
AR® 145,061,000 U b B 2 RIBR A 428
A ARE 226,233,000 THEBIEEREZ
SEBREREETIR - BERREEZ S E
WHEBEREEHENXBRANRNERFE

N2017FE 128310 AEBREET S
SHAERIZE 39 57 IE BB 08 sl 2L A 4 AR VB R (B AY
ZHRERFTBREZEOERESTOT

2017

RMB'000

ARET T

Neither past due nor impaired SR8 B R R R (B 1,340,594
Past due but not impaired: B8 B KRR E

Not more than 3 months %R 3EA 226,904

Over 3 months to 6 months 3EALA E=61EA 89,021

Over 6 months to 12 months 61 ALA E=12E A 143,032

Over 1 year to 2 years 1TFANEE2F 84,746

Over 2 years to 3 years 2F N LEEIF 52,994

Over 3 years 3FMNE 6,145

1,943,436

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired related to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there is no
recent history of default.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired related to
a number of independent customers that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors believe that no provision for impairment under
HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as there
had not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25 AR EHEeEREMERFE
RECEIVABLES

2018 2017

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5 AR TR ARETT

Prepayments SEENEN 1,048,696 1,020,050

Current portion of prepaid land lease  FEft + i E A

payments mENE D 13 30,455 27,153

Value-added tax recoverable RN ER 332,344 259,512

Corporate income tax recoverable FENPEMEH 1,188 182

Deposits i) 85,743 78,380
Receivable from early redemption of K 12 F & @l Al # %

convertible notes FEEEWERIE - 145,508

Other receivables oAb E U 5RIB 131,551 82,522

Loan receivables from third parties KEE=HER 170,500 -

1,800,477 1,613,307

The financial assets included in the above balances are
unsecured, interest-free and receivable on demand.

AAALMESRNEREEDEER 28
Ko ESRUR

26. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 26. HERB|ITEFEX
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT
Restricted cash: ZRHRE
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities ERRITHEMERER 1,057,955 774,611
Cash and cash equivalents: ReRREeEFEY :
Time deposits with original maturity of FHER(RERKRE
three months or less when acquired HRA=@AKUT) 8,440 102,539
Cash and bank balances Re RIBTTHE R 5,385,396 3,575,220
5,393,836 3,677,759
Cash and bank deposits We MBTHER 6,451,791 4,452,370

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
varying periods between one day and twelve months and
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates.
The bank balances and restricted cash are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

FRURBITNRSEE BRITERMEEH
F BN R EREUA B - 52 B TE HI T A BARR
NF—RE+_BEANTFARZEHEH
7 SN R BREUA B o SRITRERR R X R BIIR
EHEMNOMEENCEAEERFHR
1T
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27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27. ESEAGRERERE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
Trade payables =Y AR 889,123 918,375
Bills payable JEf~ E & 3,388,200 2,102,710
4,277,323 3,021,085
The trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled EoENZIEIRE  S£EHBARES A30
on terms of 30 to 90 days. 290K °
An aging analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables at the RIPERKR  NEFHNESZENTELE
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BREZAHOERINOT
follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARET T
Not more than 3 months %R 31E A 2,568,152 1,914,118
Over 3 months to 6 months 3EANE=6MEA 1,527,285 357,082
Over 6 months to 12 months 61 A= 12188 132,857 702,632
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FUEE2F 13,300 20,587
Over 2 years to 3 years 2FNLEEIF 11,287 5,465
Over 3 years 3FELE 24,442 21,201
4,277,323 3,021,085
28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HthtERNREREFER
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T T
Advances from customers (note) BEE SR (ME) - 1,120,169
Accruals et & A 75,422 63,933
Salaries and welfare payables e e kR 118,856 125,988
Other payables H b JE T 5RI8 733,204 582,832
927,482 1,892,922
The financial liabilities included in the above balances are AL EHRNEREBEDNEBRIEEK
interest-free and repayable on demand. B e
Note: B 5T
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, advances from customers were reclassified to RERNEBHERELNEI5HE  EREAREHTH
contract liabilities. HEANEE-
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29. BORROWINGS

29. B

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETIT
Current B
Unsecured bank loans EIERRITER 5,800,738 2,698,795
Current portion of long-term unsecured RHEEBRTERD
bank loans mENE D 340,568 70,624
Current portion of long-term secured RHBERBRITERD
bank loans mENEE 3,186 -
Secured bank loans BEHEMAIEITER = 105,500
Secured other loans EERAHEMER = 2,337
6,144,492 2,877,256
Non-current ERE
Unsecured bank loans ERFIEITER 280,845 422,168
Unsecured syndicated loans mIKHIREE X 5,246,043 4,988,151
Secured bank loans BHEMIEITER 59,678 19,800
Loans from non-controlling interests EIEFIERE K - 12,000
5,586,566 5,442,119
11,731,058 8,319,375
Analysed into borrowings repayable: HEREBR:
Within one year or on demand —F A IR E KK 6,144,492 2,877,256
In the second year EF-FNRA 5,355,245 338,236
In the third to fifth years, EF-FEFRAFNKN
inclusive (BEEEMSF) 201,462 5,092,722
More than five years SR AEF 29,859 11,161
11,731,058 8,319,375

Note:

GEE

(a)

(c)

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings range from 3.22%
10 5.39% (2017: 1.60% to 6.00%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans were secured
by the concession rights of a subsidiary and personal guarantee provided
by a shareholder of that subsidiary.

At 31 December 2017, the secured bank loans were secured by: (i) the
concession rights of a subsidiary and personal guarantee provided by
a shareholder of that subsidiary; (i) certain commercial bills received
by the Group during its provision of factoring services; and (iii) certain
receivables from supply-chain financing services.

The loans from non-controlling interests were unsecured, interest-free
and would mature in September 2019. During the year, the loans from
non-controlling interests were disposed through the disposal of the
subsidiary of the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's borrowings are
denominated in US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi, Australian dollar
and Canadian dollar are equivalent to RMB6,466,723,000 (2017:
RMB5,213,421,000), RMB2,477,101,000 (2017: RMB1,254,263,000),
RMB2,251,568,000 (2017: RMB1,108,835,000), RMB364,372,000 (2017:
RMB537,423,000), and RMB171,294,000 (2017: RMB205,433,000)
respectively.

(a)

(c)

NEBEROBEEFEN T3.22%E5.39%
TE (20174 : 1.60% £6.00%) °

RIBEHR - FEMRITERTIAMB AR
FAFE SR EREE R BRRMEAER -

H2017F 128318  HEMRITERIIL « ()
MEARMBFEEERE —BREMNEAE
R (NAEEBRREHRERERKEGE T
ERE (i) B T FE 5 R A AR 7S FE R IB 1
A -

FEEGIE R E R AEEM 2B KN201949
AEE - FR 0 SEESREEREHERREN
MEARLE -

RBEER RE@BMUET B ARKE
BT RMITAENERDEERARKE
6,466,723,0007T (2017 4F : AR¥5,213,421,000
JL) ~ AR #2,477,101,0007T (20174 : AR
#%1,254,263,0007T) + A R#2,251,568,000 7T
(20174 : AR #1,108,835,0007T) * AR¥
364,372,000 7 (20174 : A R ¥ 537,423,000
JL) B AE®171,294,0007T (20176 : AR
205,433,0007T) °

Annual Report 2018 F#f 199



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

A M ERR IR

30.

200

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. FTHES@ T A
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETT
Put option Roh B 6,592 -

The Group's derivative financial instruments are managed
and the performances are evaluated on fair value basis. Any
changes in fair value was recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of the put option has been estimated using
valuation technique with unobservable inputs. Management
has reviewed the valuation result by verifying all major inputs
and assumptions as well as assessing the reasonableness of
such valuation.

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire 70% equity interest in Jiangsu Yongbao during the
year. Pursuant to the agreement, the minority shareholder
has the right to sell the remaining 30% equity interest to the
Group after three years from the date of acquisition.
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31. DEFERRED TAX

31.

The major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and their
movements during the current and prior years are as follows:

i 3E B 1/

RAFER E—FECHEIANTIERER
HEE/(ABE) RHEEHNT :

Fair value  Withholding

Fair value adjustments tax on
adjustments arising from  distributable
arising from  Provisionfor  Accelerated  acquisitions profits of
investment  impairment tax of  subsidiaries Deferred
properties of assets  depreciation  subsidiaries in the PRC income Total
REN% KEREAR SEARBAR
FEER BEN MEH A FEEN TARENH
MEERE HERE & OLABEHRE  BRASH BEWE &3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETRE  ARETT AREfR ARETRE  ARETT  AR%ETR
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1H (8,540) 47210 473 (48,569) (215,459) 6,186 (218,699
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEME A 7] - - - - - - -
Credited/(charged to profit 3 A/ (H1E) &
or loss for the year B& (73,656 4,701 (162) sl (99,162)% 1,500 (156,538)
Exchange realignment  E % 505 - - - - - 505
At 31 December 2017and  K2017512 431 B )
1 January 2018 0181718 (81,691) 61,911 311 (48,328) (314,621) 7,686 (374,732)
Acquisition of subsidiaries MM BA A
(note 36 (M3t 36) - 229 19 (14,803) - - (14,380)
Credited/charged to profit 3 A/ (H18)EE
or loss for the year & (66,585) 9,516 3,745 1,742 (48 484)" 4,538 95,528)
Exchange realignment  [E 3 5% (197) - - - - - (197)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12A31H (148,473) 71,656 4,250 (61,389) (363,105) 12,224 (484,837)
# The amount represented the deferred tax provision of RMB125,864,000 # AR R AP BME AR A 5k F

(2017: RMB132,623,000) on the distributable profits of the Company's
subsidiaries in the PRC after offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities
of RMB77,380,000 (2017: RMB33,461,000) arising from dividends
declared by these subsidiaries to their foreign investors during the year.

HF A 3 S T T8 2 5 A R 5 125,864,000 7T (2017
£ AR 132,623,0007T) I &K 3% 5 W B
RAIRFERNMBIIMNEEES KREMELENT
HEIRELERBEE AR 77,380,000t (2017
F: AR¥33,461,0007T) °

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

Gross deferred tax assets recognised in A MBI ER A
the consolidated statement of ﬁEE REEE R IH & B
financial position %@ 5] 88,130 69,908
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in A VBRI ERA
the consolidated statement of RERELEHRIBEEE
financial position ek (572,967) (444,640)
(484,837) (374,732)
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31.

32.

202

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdictions of the
foreign investors. The applicable rate for the Group is 5%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland
China in respect of their earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax liabilities of RMB350,709,000 (2017:
RMB275,791,000) in respect of temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries, amounting
to RMB7,014,180,000 (2017: RMB5,515,812,000), that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it is probable that these profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by
the Group as financial subsidies for the construction of new
factory premises in Changchun, Daging, Hubei and Hunan and
rental income received in advance from certain of the Group's
employees for leasing the staff quarters.

The government grants are released to profit or loss over
the expected useful lives of the relevant premises by equal
annual instalments, while rental income received in advance
is recognised on the straight-line basis over the respective
lease terms.
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31.

32.

iE FE B IE (@)

BIEBEFREPEMSHE  EFRBERMA L
RINE R ERINEIEEETIRAOREAEM
#10% HYTEIRFTISHL © 5% #7E B 2008 F 1
R1B®BER #EANRB 2007412 H31H
RESAET o W B A EZINEEE
EAREREREBEEFIHBEKL - BTk
BREMEGNTERAEN - XEEMNERB
HEE5% - At - tZER B L
KM B AR FL2008FE1 A1 BB AT
MORNBREME - AEBEAMMIBIRA
138 o

RBERR BRARFIEHZENE
RAEWBRERE  BZSHANRTREB
Rk B AT BE MK 0 AN £ B 4 RE
REEMBRAADKENERZE R
AR ®7,014,180,0007T (2017 F = A
R #5,515,812,00070) WIELEF B A E
BEARDPEZERBEINRXMN) A
R #350,709,00070 (2017 F : AR
275,791,0007C) °

EEW s iE A S BRI BT /B - 1B
HERS KE i R BEH TH
WMENMBRER AR ARNEERE TR
BEERBHEEEIBEEEHS KA -

BFMBRNAREERGAERFRAR
FUFEBAER AR - I8 K WEH
MW ARZEBNHBAEREER -



33.

SHARE CAPITAL 33. BA&
Shares B 2018 2017
Authorised: EE
20,000,000,000 (2017: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000 (2017 £ : 20,000,000,000) & HK$1,000,000,000 HK$1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SIRMEE0.05 B AL AR 1,000,000,000% 7T 1,000,000,0007 7
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
3,102,418,400 (2017: 3,102,418,400) 3,102,418,400 (20174 : 3,102,418,400) & HK$155,120,920 HK$155,120,920
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BRMEEC.SETHL AR 155,120,920 # 7T 155,120,920/ 7T
Equivalent to ZER RMB135,344,000 RMB135,344,000
AK¥135,344,000t  AR™135,344,0007C

34. RESERVES

35.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the
Group's subsidiaries which are established in PRC has been
transferred to reserve funds which are restricted for use.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 14
May 2010 (the “Share Option Scheme") for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations.

No share options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since the adoption.

34.

35.

(ER]

AEEARFELBEFENFBERRE
EHONGARSEHRAES -

RBEARTING BREOEBERIOX
B ANEBEPEKZIONEBRRNE D
HEMNOBEEREYRINFEERES

BRAEEAN

BB RS E

R2010F5 14 8 - A8 E & EENEHRE
EMRNEEERERMNEERSEA K
NN — TR B ([ AEETEl ) -

RAF BRNERAES SAK > A EARE
AT B B A AE
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35.

204

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share Award Scheme

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons to the Group and
to offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted
talent and personnel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group.

The total amount of the funds contributed to the Scheme by
the Company shall not exceed HK$750,000,000 and the Board
shall at its absolute discretions to determine the amount
of fund contributed to the Share Award Scheme for each
financial year of the Company.

The Company shall not make any further grant of award which
will result in the aggregate number of Shares underlying all
grants made pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (excluding
award shares that have been forfeited in accordance with
the Share Award Scheme) to exceed 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company without shareholders’ approval.
The total number of non-vested award shares granted to a
selected participant under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares at all time.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no shares held
in the trust under the Share Award Scheme.

No shares have been awarded under the Share Award
Scheme since the adoption.
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AAFF 20184 8 A 28 HERR MR 15 12BN 5T
2 (TR ERE])  UBETEETAER
ATHAEBEMELRNER RS THEE X
B EUHWSIRBEEBEEATRABRE
REENFESE R RARER -

AAREZTEHENE BB T EBA
750,000,000 - MEEZHE2EMIEE
EARRESHREE YR M EETE
EMES L -

fi AR BAR B 00 BB St IR VP A AR
B (M EIERIE D 2R 8 2R K
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BEBRE -
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION 36. ¥k &t
During the year, the Group entered into sale and purchase FA AEBFTCEERZ  WELTA
agreements to acquire equity interests in the following AW AR AN fE 25
companies:
Percentage  Consideration
Acquisition date Company name of share RMB Principal activities
KE
WA AR ER HEL=E ARY FEXER
3 August 2018 Eprosity Asset* 100% 1,120,000  Provision of rental services
20188 A3H Eprosity Asset 100% 1,120,000 REBERH
31 August 2018 Guangdong Yugao Enterprise 100% 18,540,000  Provision of management
Management Co., Ltd.* consulting services
("Guangdong Yugao")
201848 HA31H ERASLEERERAF 100% 18,540,000 RHLEIRAAMRY
O30
31 October 2018 Jiangsu Yongbao 70% 391,692,000  Provision of hazardous waste
treatment services
2018%F 10 A 31 H L& KR 70% 391,592,000 1R fE e R A IR AR 75
30 November 2018 Hunan Huaging 70% 2,800,000  Product quality inspection and
calibration
2018% 11 A30H MEEE 70% 2,800,000 EmEERBMRE

The above acquisitions allow the Group to further diversify its
businesses.

# On 3 August 2018, the non-controlling shareholder has transferred a
49% equity interest of Eprosity Asset to the Group (note 18), of which
the controlling right has also been transferred to the Group. Accordingly,
the investment in the joint venture is remeasured to fair value at the
date when the Group obtained the control and is deemed to have been
disposed of in exchange with the consolidation of the subsidiary.

bR EEA R B - IR E X o

# R2018F8 A3 H « FEIZ IR AR 3R A 7/ & B o 2%
Eprosity Asset 49% x4 (Fiz£18) + EHRIi[A
REBERERE -Ft - 2 CENRERAE
CERSEHEERIENFEEANEE L
BAREHENABGAHERBAR -
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the above companies acquired at the dates of acquisitions
assumed by the Group are as follows:

36. ¥4 6t @\

RRER - AEBEUE L2 & /A 5

EENRBENARBENT

Eprosity ~ Guangdong Jiangsu Hunan
Asset Yugao Yongbao* Huaqing Total
Eprosity
Asset BRES TEKE: HEEE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Property, plant and equipment I ER N S 4 - 51,644 1,042 52,690
Prepaid land lease payments BRLHEER - - 6,093 - 6,093
Other intangible assets HhEFEE - - 91,837 - 91,837
Deposits paid for purchase of land, BE LTI 9% BEL
property, plant and equipment REREAOES - - 998 - 998
Investment in an associate R—EBEATNERE - 22,341 - - 22,341
Other financial assets HwemEE - - 52,000 - 52,000
Deferred tax assets EXRBEE - - 423 - 423
Inventories 7& - - 3,345 - 3,345
Trade and bills receivables BHREKFERRE 205 - 31,997 491 32,693
Prepayments, deposits and BEH - Be REM
other receivables [E Y 5r8 - - 2,517 154 2,671
Cash and bank deposits Re RBIER 561 5 21,916 150 22,632
Trade and bills payables EORNFERER - - (4,753) - (4,753)
Other payables and accruals HwENTERESER (22) (3,806) (11,705) (303) (15,836)
Other long-term payables Hin REEMFUE - - (66,517) - (66,517)
Deferred tax liabilities EXERBEEE - - (14,803) - (14,803)
Total identifiable net assets at HAEEFERS
fair value (RRAEE) 748 18,540 164,992 1,634 185,814
Non-controlling interests IR - - (49,498) (460) (49,958)
Goodwill arising on acquisitions WEEENEE 372 - 276,098 1,726 278,196
Total consideration REEHE 1,120 18,540 391,592 2,800 414,052
Satisfied by: il
Cash Be 738 18,540 385,000 2,800 407,078
Put option (note 30) SR EAHE (P 3E30) - - 6,592 - 6,592
Fair value of the Group's AEERAEDEN
interests in joint ventures BEZARERE 382 - - - 382
1,120 18,540 391,692 2,800 414,052
# The assessments of the fair values of the identifiable assets and # IEHKENAHNEERBENRABENT

BNEETH  AHENEERABENEERE
5 89 o

liabilities of Jiangsu Yongbao are still in process and the information of
the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities is provisional.
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Acquisition-related cost incurred in relation to the above
acquisition is insignificant and have been excluded from the
cost of acquisition and have been recognised directly as
expense for the year and are included in “other expenses” in
profit or loss.

The aggregate fair values of the trade and bills receivables
and other receivables at the date of acquisition amounted
to RMB32,693,000 and RMB2,671,000 respectively, which
approximate to the gross contractual amounts of the
corresponding balances acquired by the Group. At the dates
of acquisitions, management considered that the contractual
cash flows not expected to be collected were insignificant.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as
follows:

36. ¥4 6t \)

LW EENKEHEBR AL TEX
REHRIIGHEBRAZIN BEREFR
HEERERSAX LT ARG EME]
A o

REER BHREBKEREEME A
ERRENAABERLBES I AARE
32,693,000t X AR® 2,671,0007T « AR
SEKBEZERELERNE O EREN
HonrWiEH BEEERAEHEEZKE
MNEHNBRERELTERK ©

BLABFIEHME - TECERNEEE
TR0 o

BRZBENRSRESNAOT

RMB'000

AR®ETT

Cash consideration paid BENBESRE 407,078

Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B BEWERENASEEY (22,632)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents RERIBRENRSLES

Included in investing activities ZEYRLFE 384,446

Since the acquisitions, these subsidiaries contributed
RMB24,015,000 to the Group's revenue and recognised a
profit of RMB15,736,000 in profit or loss for the year.

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the
year, the Group's revenue and profit for the year would
have been RMB23,833,544,000 and RMB2,497,215,000,
respectively.

BURHELE  ZEMBAR BAREBIRA
BRI AR 24,015,0007T ' WRAKRFEEHR
BHENER G AR 15,736,000 7T °

ez B HFR FEVETT - AEBRAF R

A BCa A 5 Bl A AR 23,833,544,000 70
M AR¥2,497,215,000 7T °
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37.

38.

208

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group entered into share transfer
agreements to transfer its 60% equity interest in Guangdong
Lesso Home Corporate Planning Co., Ltd*., 100% equity
interest in Guangdong Lesso Home Building Material China
Co., Ltd*., 100% equity interest in Wuhan Lesso Mall Co.,
Ltd*. and 25% equity interest in Guangdong Lianging to
several independent third parties respectively. Pursuant to
the share transfer agreements, the Group no longer has the
control over these companies.

37. HEMBAT

TR ARETIRBEEREGE RET
BIUYE=N0HBEERARNREZRD
EREBRAAIE0%E  ERBLERE
EMEFHKERR QT 00% A& - 5OZE
BB R B PR A B 100% A 1 Ko B R Bt 7B
25% it - RIBZ SR EERH R A K
BHZE R THAEEGE -

2018
Note RMB’000
B 5 AR TR
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFRE:
Property, plant and equipment W% - WENEE 12 6,316
Other intangible assets Hithimp&E 15 1
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, BELTH ¥ BERREE
property, plant and equipment Iz Wiz e 5,374
Inventories 58 9,500
Trade and bills receivables g5 RWFIEREE 11,626
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BN He RH M ERRIE 101,698
Other financial assets Hih e @& E 900
Cash and bank deposits & RIRITIFR 14,096
Trade and bills payables 5 RENFBEREERE (74,705)
Other payables and accruals Hib N FIEREFER (78,498)
Tax payable e BEIE (7,010)
Borrowing B (12,000)
Statutory reserve VETE W (381)
Non-controlling interests FE 2= Il 4 2w 11,130
(11,953)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR MEF= 33,273
Total consideration RERFE 21,320
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the ERLENBRARMNIRSRE
disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: DITEAE -
Cash consideration ReRE 21,320
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHERSRIRITER (14,096)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEWNBARNE & ES
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries EEBYRNFHE 7,224

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2017: Nil).
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. KEHEZH
(A) AS LESSOR (A) EREMEA
The Group leases certain office premises under AEBERBLEHELEHBEE T
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated NE HHBER—ET=F1%F-
for terms ranging from one to thirteen years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total RE|ERR - RIBFEBFET LT A
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable s EEY - AEE D AERA R
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: RxEHSERNAT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETT
Not more than 1 year 2NN 26,187 31,491
Over 1 year to 5 years 1A EESF 76,978 57,839
Over 5 years 5HLA E 38,648 50,344
141,813 139,674
(B) AS LESSEE (B) fERFEMBEA
The Group leases certain of its office premises, AREBRBELKEHEZH  HRAET
production plants, warehouses and equipment under WBAE -LEME BENERE -
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for HEEas &2 +HE1T%E-
terms ranging from one to seventeen years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total PREREHR - RIBNAIBEEELHL
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable RNREFDEPEMNHRKZERBESELE
operating leases falling due as follows: N
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBTT
Not more than 1 year E2 NN 95,461 183,362
Over 1 year to 5 years 1A EESF 220,608 754,465
Over b5 years 5 F 33,792 583,922
349,861 1,521,749
40. COMMITMENTS 40. &IE
The Group hgd the following capital commitments at the end MIEPEHIK  AEEEL T EARIE
of the reporting period:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: EETHE ) R
Land, property, plant and equipment and TH - WE - BRE RFEEN
investment properties "EWE 982,063 636,381
Investment in a joint venture R—HEEETENEE 23,520 23,520
1,005,583 659,901
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41.

BALANCES

(A) THE GROUP’'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR

(A)

BB ALTRE RERR

FRALEEEBBRALHNEARARS

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR T AR T T
Connected transactions BEXS
Transactions with companies REBERS
under the common control FEEEHNATIN
of a director: R
Sales of goods and services HEERK&RB (i)* 8,642 2,626
Consumption of utilities HRAAREXE (ii)* 1,044 1,033
Rental expenses He X (iii)# 4,421 3,907
Purchase of materials HEME (iv)* 13,773 5,195
Purchase of machinery and/or FERERS
equipment R (v) 124,592 122,993
Purchase of electronic KEET
accessories fic 44 (v)* 69 28
Purchase of other intangible assets R H fih E & & (v)* 2,678 -
Licensing trademarks KTHER (vi)* 303 404
Hotel expenses B IE & A (vii)* 4,392 -
Disposal of Guangdong Lesso HEBRREHRAS
Hardware & Building Materials EMAERR A
Co., Ltd* (“Lesso Hardware") ([BEHAE]) (viii) - 25,000
Assignment of rights of B E W SRR
receivables HE 7| (ix) - 29,937
Agency services from companies ~ RAE — I & E L H 1Y
under the control of a ZEARATIRER
director RIBIRE (x)* - 4,468
Rental expenses paid to directors AEEXNHHE SR (xi)* 2,068 1,613
Non-connected transactions FBEEXRS
Advisory services from a company REZASZSAFEHH
under the significant influence of ~ —M A AIFF IR AY
directors & AR (x) 1,887 1,859
Design and maintenance services A& MNERMEHNRTR
from a joint venture SR (xii) 3,600 3,600
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(A)

THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

Sale of goods and services to related companies were made with
reference to the prices and conditions offered by the Group to
third-party customers.

Utilities were provided by related companies at cost.
Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchase of materials from related companies were made based
on mutually agreed terms.

Purchase of machinery, equipment and electronic accessories
and other intangible assets from related companies were made
with reference to the prices and conditions offered by the related
companies to their third-party customers.

Licensing trademarks to related companies were conducted
based on mutually agreed terms.

Hotel expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

The consideration was agreed after arm’s length negotiations with
reference to the fair value of net assets of Lesso Hardware of
approximately RMB25,000,000 as at 7 July 2017.

The consideration was equivalent to the amount due from Lesso
Hardware of the Group as at 7 July 2017.

Agency services and advisory services were provided by related
companies based on mutually agreed terms.

Properties including office premises, cafeteria, workshops,
warehouses and yacht were leased to the Group based on
mutually agreed terms.

Services were provided by a joint venture based on mutually
agreed terms.

These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempted from
complying with the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules.

41. A TR E K& @)

(A)
(%)
MisE -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

FAXRKEEEABRATINEARS

GEEPNGETSEY e Y]
ME=HEF LN EEREE SR
17

RAEETIEKA BB A RRE -
HERAXTIRE HENGRE -

F R TSR B 77 1 T Y 16K A B I 2 R R

=

B RBEREFRANMEMETEE
TS EMBARRE=EPRHN
BERIGEEOBEBARBE -

BPBBARMNEIENIEE 511G TR
LT o

B IE B B TIRE 59 AR KETE -
REDIZBEHAER2017F7878
HFEERAEENAREE25000,000
TL o EAFHEEERE -

REDHEER2017F7A7HAEEHE
B RS RE -

BAEE N R Ty IR T 15 E MY IRGIR KR
PR 795 B w5 ) AR 755

MEBERAE RE BHRE BERE
B HIRETHEMGETETALE -

BEDETIRETT I E M RBIR IR -

HEMBA LR P IMER LT RBIE 14A
EMRENBERSRBERERS
MEFRET EHRAUNBERTE
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(B)

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41. BEBAIRIRER @)
BALANCES (Continued)
BALANCES WITH RELATED PARITIES (B) EREEEEA LHIAER
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR¥T T ARET T
Balances with companies under REBHERAZ—NUES
the common control of a 7 ) B N B A A
director arising from: xA
Deposits paid for the purchases of B E#EKL &
machinery and/or equipment Frz iz e (i) 109,415 92,660
Purchase of machinery and/or REBHER R
equipment Bd (ii) 59,192 31,454

212

(C)

Note:

(i) The balances are included in the Group's deposits paid for the
purchase of land, property, plant and equipment.

The balances are included in the Group's other payables and
accruals.

COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into
lease agreements with a director and a company under
the common control of a director to lease properties
for operations, and sale and purchase agreements with
a company under the common control of a director to
purchase machinery and/or equipment for production.
The operating lease commitments of RMB8,842,000
(2017: RMB13,263,000) with lease terms of three years
and the capital commitments of RMB70,720,000 (2017:
RMB23,727,000) have been included in notes 39(B) and
40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(C)

BERTAREBBE L WX BER
REHAILNTORE -

AEERET AN SR [ B A B 5 SRR K e A
2R

(ii)

EHEBMALTHNARZSE
AEEBETHBRA ATHEMEE
KERApE-—FREEN—BHERAT
—UEERHNRARF I HE R
WABEMWE HREEEER
pE-BEART —UNESTHOHAQ
R EE R - ARYS,842,000
7t (2017 4% + AR #13,263,0007T)
MEEAERERRA=F  HHEHA
R #70,720,0007C (2017 F : AR
23,727,0007T) M E R EED BB S
RERE BB HREM FE39(B) 240 o



41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41.

BALANCES (Continued)

(D)

COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of the Company's directors and the
senior management was as follows:

BB AR5 RA&RR )

(D) AEBMETEEEASHMH

ARTEERBREREOFHNT :

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T ARET T

Short-term employee benefits o Hi R B 12 A 14,335 14,102
Post-employment benefits RIK1E BT 396 399
14,731 14,501

Included in the above were the compensation paid to
the Company’s directors and the chief executive as
set out in note 8 to the financial statements and the
compensation paid to senior management personnel of
the Group is as follows:

LA BEAIER &M KM ST
ENARREERITRAEARNFTH Mo
NAREESREZASNHMOT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE TR ARETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & 2B REWEF 5,684 5,825
Employee retirement benefits and 1B BRREF K& A Ath

other staff welfare BTI&A 396 399

6,080 6,224
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 42. ¢RTENAAEBEE

INSTRUMENTS

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) €®mTEEHR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RmESHR SESRTENKREE

214

financial instruments at the end of the reporting period O
are as follows:
2018
Note RMB’000
B £ ARET T
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: A R 2 B EE
Loans receivables FE IR 15 3k 20 518,892
Contract assets ABHEE 23B 411,930
Trade and bills receivables EH5RRFEREE 24 2,379,447
Other receivables H th JE W FRIB 302,051
Other long-term receivables H b &= HA fE W3R IE 5,804
Cash and bank deposits e RIRITHER 26 6,451,791
Financial assets at BRI BIEGTAR M2 E K
FVTOCI: THEE -
Debt instruments at BARBEETAEMEZERED
FVTOCI BT A 19B 255,099
Equity instruments at BARBETAEMEEWZED
FVTOCI AT A 19B 1,543,526
11,868,540
Financial assets at BRI EBEGA Bz
FVTPL: EEEE -
Debt instruments at BAREBETABEDN
FVTPL BEITA 19B 47,649
Equity instruments at BEARBEFAERN
FVTPL AT A 19B 53,886
101,535
11,970,075
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(A)

42. €@

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A)
(Continued)

TENQREEE @

TR EER (&)

2017
Note RMB'000
M 7E ARET T
Financial assets EWMEE
Investments: ”RE :
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 19A 1,582,208
Loans and receivables: EREWE -
Loan receivables FE W FE R 20 789,916
Other long-term receivables H b = B W R IR 21 52,591
Trade and bills receivables B REWIEREE 24 2,024,608
Other receivables H b fE W R IR 228,030
Cash and bank deposits & RIRTTFR 26 4,452,370
7,547,515
9,129,723
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B o ARET T ARETIT
Financial liabilities EtHMmas
Financial liabilities at FE 1 5 K K 51 AR B
amortised cost: THEE -
Trade and bills payables B RAFIERER 27 4,277,323 3,021,085
Financial liabilities included in FTAE M FE T FRIB R
other payables and accruals EirERANERAE 808,626 646,765
Borrowings EEN 29 11,731,058 8,319,375
Other long-term payables H b &= HAFE 5T 0B 109,546 92,572
16,926,553 12,079,797
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIT A 30 6,592 -
16,933,145 12,079,797
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a

42. TRTEPN LA AEETE @)

(B) BRAARBEFENEMIANLA

|

UTRiRHREBRe TAKENE
APAI =G ABEER T EHRE

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at the end of reporting DITHRE -
period:
Significant Sensitivity of
Valuation unobservable fair value to
technique input Rate the input
EXAFABE AABEHBASE
AR AR kE HHERE
Debt instruments at FVTPL Discounted cash flow Discount rate 5.23% 1% increase in discount
BRARBEFABENERTIA model 8RR % rate would result in
BB eRERA decrease in fair value
by RMB155,000
BRE EA 1% BB
AREBERDARY
155,000 7T
1% decrease in discount
rate would result in
increase in fair value
by RMB157,000
BRETHR1% KER
AAEEEMARE
157,000 7T
Equity instruments at FVTPL Black-Scholes model and  Discount rate 20.00% 1% increase in discount

BARBEFABENRATA discounted cash flow
model
MR- ATRETER LA
BeReiEn

A%

rate would result in
decrease in fair value
by RMB2,208,000

BRRE FFH1% B EHK
AABERLARE
2,208,000 7T

1% decrease in discount
rate would result in
increase in fair value by
RMB2,570,000

BRIRET B 1% BEH
AREEEAARE
2,570,000 7T

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the
Group that market participants would take into account
when pricing the investments.
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 42. EeMITENAREBESR
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

feio
i

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) MAABEFENEHRIAENAIAE
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued) B (&)
Assets measured at fair value: BAREBEFENEE:
2018
Fair value hierarchy
DNAEEERE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B—& BR E=8 w
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFRT ARBTR ARBTR ARETxR

Other financial assets Hitt &£ @MEE

Debt instruments BARBETAEM

at FVTOC] PHKBGENEBLA - 255,099 - 255,099
Equity instruments BAREERAEM

at FVTOCI 2EREHBRATA 729,866 797,665 15,995 1,543,526
Debt instruments at BAREEFABRRN

FVTPL BT A - 21,000 26,649 47,649
Equity instruments at AR EEFTABRK

FVTPL AT E - - 53,886 53,886

729,866 1,073,764 96,530 1,900,160
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 42.

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)

TRITANDIAEBENE @

SFENERIANARE

(=]
(=l
BARBEFENEE : (H)

2017
Fair value hierarchy
RNABEERE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

EF—& FE_M BE=& it

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Available-for sale s

investments BE

Listed investments EmERE 1,508,158 49,973 - 1,558,131

The movements in fair value measurements within Level

3 during the year are as follows:

FRNEZRANAABEIESHE
T

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR% T AREBTT
At 1 January R1A1H - 156,390
Effect of adoption of RWBE BT RS 2R
HKFRS 9 FIORNTE 13,577 -
At 1 January (restated) M1 ATB (&) 13,577 156,390
Additions NE 113,976 -
Unrealised gain/(loss) recognised in RIEZEABRORER
profit or loss Mz (&) 7,098 (31,575)
Unrealised gain recognised in other REMEE KR AERK
comprehensive income REBRM = - 29,819
Early redemption REEMD - (149,876)
Disposal k= (40,000) -
Exchange realignment b 3 & 1,879 (4,758)
At 31 December R12A31H 96,530 -
Total gain reclassified from other A 12 F 08 [0 m Aty
comprehensive income upon FHERZEHNHED
early redemption B - (37,665)
Total gain included in profit or loss HiRFER M AERH
upon early redemption B = = 37,771
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued)
Liabilities Measured at Fair Value:

it

42. TRTEPN LA AEEE &)

feio

(B) BAABEFENERMIANAAE

18 (4
BERARBEGENRE:

2018
Fair value hierarchy
ARBEEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-& EoR E=R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T AR¥T R AR®T T
Derivative financial PTHE S Bl
instruments TA - - 6,592 6,592

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2017.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2017: Nil).

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
borrowings and cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

M2017F12 8318 "EEBET
AR EBEFENEHEE -

FAN - peBEEREBRBEANE
BitEms  F—REF _H2HEL
EAEMER AYEEARELE=
W(20174  4E) -

43. cREAKREEEEREEK

AEENTIZSRIABEERARRS
MEREFER ZEFcRMTANTIZREIR
AEENEEBERES - AKETAEM
HEBEREENTREREEREE -
BIan & 5 FE Wk R K Bt B UGRIA M E 5
&< SRR B B A A BROR o
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43.

220

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK
In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group
is subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the
fixed interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair
value interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax by
assuming the floating rate borrowings outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.

43. TRIEREE B EREBUR (&)

AEEBSHMTIEEENTEZRKR AT ER
ke NERR C-EERBETBESRR -
AR AEEAAENZERBAZTNHE
K ANEEWEEREAMITETARR
T EAEE R 2 A o REB W EIFH
BOTAESRMTIANEEE 2 A 52
EEBTYREZZRAREEMNEE &L
WM o

RSN
IHFRTAKERALBEGERSHE
FEER  METHET A EHAEE
EE A B EF KRR -

TRETERNBEPRRDREENTD
MEEBFREFNRER  BMAEME
BRFIAE AREBRBAENEAEA
REM N R EBNBURE

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in basis in profit

points before tax

HED R Bt Al &

#wm, Ohd)  #in, G )

RMB’000

AR%ET T

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE2018F 12 A31BILFE 50 (50,898)
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31BIEFE (50) 50,898
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017F12A831MBILFE 50 (37,377)
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017F12A31BILEE (50) 37,377
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's main businesses are located in mainland China
and most of the transactions are conducted in Renminbi.
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, except for certain cash and bank deposits, trade
and bills receivables and borrowings denominated in HK dollar

3. EREREE R EREEK @)

S R B

AEENEBEXEHBAVRTEAM - MA
BORHHAARBET - KAEBEAXE D
BENMABUAARESE EETHER
RITER - B RUIARFZEAE R
A IT R ETTAHE o AR B &S HE KA

and US dollar. The Group has not hedged its foreign exchange BRETH o

rate risk.

TRETRBEHKR - A HEME R
FAEMBERT  AREBRBAEFEA
REAEMAREREZTNSEA L
(HRNEBEUHEENEFN AR EBERZIR
BOMBRRE -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the Renminbi against the relevant currencies, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and loans).

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in HK$/US$ in profit
rate before tax
BT ER
ERLEH R %t Al % R
(&) #in, &)
RMB’000
% ARET T
2018
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARMHETRE 5 14,987
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ M AR HETHE (5) (14,987)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MAREEELERE 5 (71,141)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ WMAREEETLHE (5) 71,141
2017
If the RMB weakens against the US$ WMAREHETRE 5 8,375
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ AR EETHE (5) (8,375)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ M AREHBTRE 5 (28,377)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ i AREHABTAE (5) 28,377
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
in relation to its trade and bills receivables, contract assets,
loan receivables, other receivables, debt instruments at
FVTOCI and cash and bank deposits.

The concession operating right of the Group represent
sewage treatment service concession financial receivables
in respect of Build-operate-transfer (“"BOT") arrangements.
Since the parties to BOT arrangements are local government
authorities in the PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is
low at the end of reporting period. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

In relation to the Group's financial services business,
the Group has a credit team which is responsible for the
evaluation of customers’ credit ratings, financial background
and repayment abilities. The Group only provides credit to
customers with creditworthiness and collateral is normally
required. The risk of default in payment by these customers is
considered not significant.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to purchasers with an appropriate financial strength and
appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
regularly the recoverable amount of each individual trade and
bills receivables and contract assets to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers.

For other receivables, an impairment analysis is performed
by management at the end of each reporting period by
considering historical settlement records, past experience
and future economic conditions. The directors of the
Company believe that there is no material credit risk inherent
in the Group's outstanding balance of other receivables.
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43. TRIEREE B S RBEK (#)

FERR

EERAREARSHFEEZBITEN SR
TEAFEFANETEEIMXZMBEER
AR - AEEFMEENEERRELE
HEBFARERE ANEE  BYMER -
Hib WA BARBEFAREMER
W B TAANRRE RIRTTIFRER -

AEENBFRERERAAZE 2ER
B R LB RIS KEE B IR & Bl R WO
HoRBERR ENEE EERBER
(M2E 2ERBR]) ZHNFTNTHR
R BRFHEE  MAKERSEER
RIFE - NEBIENRERGEHRTETM
HHm -

BRASENESRREEY  ~ASEHE
FEEGARNRAERPNEENN UK
BERREEREN AREEREERIN
EPRUEGER —RARHKERR - ZF
EENNFERRARLENEK -

AR E T R TR ) B R G B
K 7 S A48 8 B ) b B B e B O
S - TR R B R BRI
1T B UG R B RS o 5 - NS
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI comprised solely
of quoted bonds that are graded in the top investment
category and, therefore, are considered to be low credit risk
investments.

Bank deposits are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of financial assets and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging at the end of the
reporting period.

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on invoice date unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification at the end of the reporting
period. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the
financial guarantee contracts.

43. TRIEREE B S REBEK (&)

FERR (&)
AEBRARBEFARMEERSENE
BTRAERRTIRRSRERFNW LHE
HAK AMEESEEERBRKE

ROTIGFREIZERAREESREBRES
RFMIFT(WREAAREEEZNSAK
) -

AEERNEEREREEREBEOX
AR - UEREREHANEERRES
FEBRZIEN  AFAEERARETRE
B AEBESREERMEERLED
B R B R0 ) 4 e 52 H B A B O LR AE 1T
LB - AREE BRI EFNAE LR

RBESHRNES AR RFRERDE -

TREJERAEEEERRNEEER
ks EERBAE  BRIFBEMND TS
ERAKEZHAAESEMBER  THE
BUEZAMEBRERRNERERS R
REE - FFE2INSBEREREENARR
H{E &M BRERENOEERRAE

o

12-month
ECLs
128 R Lifetime ECLs
EHEESR EECEDRNEERSR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-ER EZRE e {5 % st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETIL

Contract assets* RMEE" - - - 411,930 411,930
Loan receivables e U fE 3R 518,892 - - - 518,892
Trade and bills receivables* ZOERFTEARER - - 2,379,447 2,379,447

518,892 - - 2,791,377 3,310,269

# For contract assets and trade and bills receivables to which the Group # MAEBEFEBBLETEGEERENANEEM
ESRKRELREEMNS  ERBEHEENE

BRI TR MR M T 23B K 24

applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 23B and 24 to the financial

statements, respectively.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  43.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and available funding through various sources of
finances to meet its commitments.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the
end of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

TRl AR EE B S RBUR (8

REBE SRR
AEEHNERARNRE MRS EEY -
VEBTARBREARESES -

UNBATHNARTENRBEE  NEERZ
BEHRNERBEIHBERET

2018
Within 1to 2 Over
1 year years 2 years Total
16 R 12245 2F Bk F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR¥TR AR®BTR AR%®TR
Trade and bills payables ZHRNRERRRE 4,277,323 - - 4,277,323
Financial liabilities included &t A ftb &+ Z0 8 K
in other payables and R B R R
accruals cREE 808,626 - - 808,626
Borrowings B 6,440,277 5,446,254 240,599 12,127,130
Other long-term payables EMREIENZE - 15,847 93,699 109,546
11,526,226 5,462,101 334,298 17,322,625
2017
Within 1102 Over
1 year years 2 years Total
1R 1824 2F M E et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARETT ARETT
Trade and bills payables B S EMNZIEBENZE 3,021,085 - - 3,021,085
Financial liabilities 5K b FE TR IE &
included in other JEEHE R
payables and accruals  &RIAE 646,765 - - 646,765
Borrowings BN 3,057,639 485,020 5,138,454 8,681,113
Other long-term payables £ ftb & 2 & (+ 7118 - 67,800 24,772 92,572
6,725,489 552,820 5,163,226 12,441,535
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern
and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
In order to optimise the debt and equity balance, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or new debts or the
redemption of existing debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes
borrowings less cash and bank deposits. Capital represents
the total equity.

The Group’'s strategy is to maintain the net debt to equity
ratio at a healthy level in order to support its businesses. The
principal strategies adopted by the Group include, without
limitation, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of
capital to support its business. The net debt to equity ratios,
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

43. TRIEREE B S RBEK #)

EXEE

AEBEEAEERMNIEARAREAEE
BEVBEEQENRE N UREFA
BEMEARLRZFEER  ARKBERS

BERENEERS °

74 90 B 1R RO 5 B 2 L KA
AR R « BELEGRERES A%
ETBEEATFREGRE  ARRED
ER TR B B R A
Fpy ERERME R HE BT E
2 -

AEBNAEHFEL AL RERELR
AU ERBERFERAER - BB FEE
EERRRE RRTER - BRI E#ES
AR

AEBENRESEFER FRYEaLL X
FEREKF  UXFHEER - AREERN
MEIBREEEEIRNEAARKREZR
EFLEINAMEHNEN  RIFAH
RITMEEAENKFRARKRET S KAt
B g (WBRE)  URREAKEEESGSE
IKFREARATIHEER - RMEHRNE
R RR R

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR ARETT

Borrowings Ef7N 11,731,058 8,319,375
Less: Cash and bank deposits B Re RIRTTIFR (6,451,791) (4,452,370)
Net debt B 7% %58 5,279,267 3,867,005

Total equity AR 15,072,865 13,783,491

Net debt to equity ratio B FREE R E 35% 28%
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44. RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

226

The table below details changes in the Group’'s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,

44,

BERHEENABHK

TRALAEERELDAELABNE
H(ERATKIFRSEE) -BETDHN
EXRENRERECKIBENAEE
HFERERERADEABELTIRER

classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows =i
as cash flows from financing activities.
2018
Non-cash changes
FREEH
Amortisation
of borrowings Foreign
arrangement exchange Other
1 January Cash flow fee  movement changes 31 December
S
1A1H BeRE EREH HEZE Htt®#8 125318
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR¥Tn ARETxn
Borrowings &5 8,319,375 3,042,012 17,407 364,264 (12,0000 11,731,058
Interest payable ERHE 6,149 (397,996) = = 396,583 4,736
Dividends payable FEAT AR B - (715,436) - - 715,436 -
Payables for acquisition 5 A E i ELS
of non-controlling Bl g
interests included in FiEHEE
other payables FER R - (78,898) - - 98,000 19,102
Total liabilities from BEEHN
financing activities BEAH 8,325,524 1,849,682 17,407 364,264 1,198,019 11,754,896
2017
Non-cash changes
¥Re %
Amortisation
of borrowings Foreign
arrangement exchange Other
1 January Cash flow fee movement changes 31 December
BT HE
1A18 Rene EREH HNEZ A2 12R318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETTL AREFT AREFTT AREFTL
Borrowings &% 4,694,561 3,987,747 20,467 (383,400) - 8319375
Interest payable ERFIE 2,780 (211,453) - - 214,822 6,149
Dividends payable ERRE - (411,288) - - 411,288 -
Total liabilities from REERDH
financing activities BiERE 4,697,341 3,365,006 20,467 (383,400) 626,110 8,325,524
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

45. T EMBLATMNFE

RAREEMBARINFBAT

follows:
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration and registered  to the Company
Name business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
SRR BRALER/ AAREGEZLE
g REXMH iR A =k BE FEER
Starcorp Investment Holdings Ltd. BVI Us$1 100% - Investment holding
ERREBRERAR ARABRER 1% 100% - REER
Great China International Holdings Ltd. ~ BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
ERERERBERRR RESBREE 1% 100% - REER
China Liansu Investment Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
PEBEREBRLF RESBREE 1% 100% - REER
Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100% Investment holding and sale of
building materials and interior
decoration products
BREEERAR 'R 13,000,000 7T - 100% REZRRHEERMR
REEM
Guangdong Liansu Technology PRC HK$2,800,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
Industrial Co., Ltd.*® pipes and pipe fittings
BEREENREXBERAA i 2,800,000,000 % 7¢ - 100% HEREEEHEEREN
Heshan Lesso Industrial Development PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
Co., Ltd.*® pipes and pipe fittings
BUBZEXZRBRAAY hE 269,930,000 7T - 100% HEREEEHEEREN
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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(Continued)

45. T EMB QA NFE @)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration and registered  to the Company
Name business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
HMAL/ R BRTLER,/ AROAEGERNLE
4% REEME atfit i A B BE FTEER
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$111,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd.*® pipes and pipe fittings
HERRER(VE)BRRAY hE 111,000,000 7 - 100% HERHEEHEBREN
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$115,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
(Guiyang) Co.,Ltd.*®! pipes and pipe fittings
BENRER (BG)BERARY HhE 115,000,000 7% 7¢ - 100% HERKEEHEBREN
Nanjing Lesso Technology Industrial PRC US$26,750,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
Co., Ltd.*® pipes and pipe fittings
MRBENREZERAAY HE 26,750,000 % 1 - 100% HERHELHEEREN
Lesso Municipal Pipe (Hebei) PRC US$32,790,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
Co., Ltd.*® pipes and pipe fittings
BETHEE (L) BRARY hE 32,790,000 T - 100% HERHEEHEBREN
Henan Lesso Industrial Co., Ltd.*" PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings
MEBEEEBERAR HhE AR 200,000,000 7 - 100% HERKEEHEBREN
@ Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of PRC @ REPEEZEMA—RIIEBEERE
b Registered as equity joint ventures under the laws of PRC (o) RIBFEZEIMAEERE
(e Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of PRC @ BEFEEZFMA—BBRAA

The above table lists the Company’s subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the Group’s net assets.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. KA R M B AR N &
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the R EER EEARRTBHBRAEXRNE
Company at the end of the reporting period as follows: e (N
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETEBRARIHRE 7,410,742 7,819,079
Available-for-sale investments AIEEHERE = 87,551
Other financial assets EMemEE 273,532 -
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 7,684,274 7,906,630
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables H 4th p W 08 963,785 468,298
Cash and bank deposits Re RIBITHER 10,452 98,908
Total current assets M EEERE 974,237 567,206
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Other payables and accruals Hih A HEREFER 5,125 2,676
Amount due to subsidiaries JET B B A R 3R B 5,766,663 5,323,579
Borrowings BN 210,836 708,374
Total current liabilities mEBBEARE 5,982,624 6,034,629
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEETFE (5,008,387) (5,467,423)
Net assets BEFM 2,675,887 2,439,207
EQUITY R
Share capital fig A% 135,344 135,344
Reserves (note) s (FaE) 2,540,543 2,303,863
Total equity ek 2,675,887 2,439,207
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. 722 7] Bt # AR & (@)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B3
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AATWFEEREZNT -
Fair value Exchange
Share  revaluation fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
DAREE EXRD
& 47 5 8 BEhRE f#E REBEF Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARBTR ARBT:R
At 1 January 2017 »W2017F1A1H 1,905,618 2,612 76,000 442,723 2,426,953
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2ENZBE - (17,595) (158,947) 464,740 288,198
Dividends recognised as distributions BRBREAEADIK
to owners B8 - - - (411,288) (411,288)
At 31 December 2017 and MW2017F 128318
1 January 2018 20181 A1H 1,905,618 (14,983) (82,947) 496,175 2,303,863
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERZEE - (21,400) 100,616 872,900 952,116
Dividends recognised as distributions BRAMEAADIK
to owners fi% & - - - (715,436) (715,436)
At 31 December 2018 #2018F 12831 H 1,905,618 (36,383) 17,669 653,639 2,540,543
47. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 47. HEFREMBRR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and RABIEHRERN2019F3 A6 HEESRS
authorised for issue by the Board on 26 March 2019. e R PR T3 o
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BREVEBE

As at 31 December 2018
R20184F12 A31H

Details of the Group's investment properties at the end of the RBEHKR  AEBREYWENFBFOT -
reporting period are as follows:

Site area/
gross floor Group's Stage of
Location Type area Lease term interest completion
wBRmE
B R AEEER HAS AKENED 7 B R
Sq. ft.
FER
120-122, 202, 204, 847, 848,1413,1425-1430, Thailand CX 3,657,955 Freehold 75% Under
Tambol Bang Sao Thong, development
Amphoe Bang Sao Thong, and
375,

Tambol Bang Bo,

Amphoe Bang Bo,

Samut Prakarn Province

120-122, 202, 204, 847, 848,1413,1425-1430, EEd CX 3,557,955 KA KR 75% BEEA
Tambol Bang Sao Thong,

Amphoe Bang Sao Thong, &

375,

Tambol Bang Bo,

Amphoe Bang Bo,

Samut Prakarn Province

SWC of Highway 380 & FM 26, United CX 3,347,896 Freehold 100% Planning stage
South side of Highway 380 States

West of FM 26,

Frisco, Texas

SWC of Highway 380 & FM 26, xH CX 3,347,896 KAERE 100% 2R
South side of Highway 380

West of FM 26,

Frisco, Texas

12071 Bellegrave Avenue, United CX 4,755,918 Freehold 100% Planning stage
Jurupa Valley, California States
12071 Bellegrave Avenue, xH CX 4,755,918 KAER 100% g2ER

Jurupa Valley, California

1300 and 1504 Old Country Road, United CB 723,302* Freehold 100% Under
Westbury, Nassau County, States refurbishment
Long Island, New York

1300 and 1504 Old Country Road, XH CB 723,302 KAERE 100% @ Li2ETH

Westbury, Nassau County,
Long Island, New York

Part of lots 23 & 24, Canada IL 1,994,351 Freehold 100% Planning stage
Markham, Concession 3,
Part 1 on Plan 65R-30576
Part of lots 23 & 24, nex IL 1,994,351 KAERE 100% EE

Markham, Concession 3,
Part 1 on Plan 65R-30576
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REMEME

As at 31 December 2018
R2018%F12 A31H

Site area/

gross floor Group's Stage of

Location Type area Lease term interest completion
WEREE

i B Bp AEEEE HRY FEEMER e FR B R
Sq. ft.
FAR

5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951 Canada CL 1,750,241 Freehold 100% Planning stage

Steeles Avenue East,

Toronto, Ontario

5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951 MER cL 1,750,241 KA 100% BEBR
Steeles Avenue East,

Toronto, Ontario

5631-6671 Steeles Avenue East, Canada CB 139,046* Freehold 100% Existing
Toronto, Ontario
5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East, nex CB 139,046¢ KAERE 100% BE

Toronto, Ontario

Lots 50, 51 & 52 in Deposited Plan 1144623, Australia IL 2,320,699 Freehold 100% Planning stage
Lots 6-10 in Deposited Plan 801210,

Lots 163, 168-182 & 216 DP8716,

Lots 4, 5 & 6 in Deposited Plan 226294,
Lots 2 in Deposited Plan 516449,

Lots 218 & 219 in Deposited Plan 457024,
Lot 2151 in Deposited Plan 135859,

Lot 1 in Deposited Plan 119616 and

Lot 7 in Deposited Plan 803359,

Augusta Street, Huntingwood East,

New South Wales

Lots 50, 51 & 52 in Deposited Plan 1144623, BN IL 2,320,699 KAERE 100% R
Lots 6-10 in Deposited Plan 801210,

Lots 163, 168-182 & 216 DP8716,

Lots 4, 5 & 6 in Deposited Plan 226294,
Lots 2 in Deposited Plan 516449,

Lots 218 & 219 in Deposited Plan 457024,
Lot 2151 in Deposited Plan 135859,

Lot 1in Deposited Plan 119616 and

Lot 7 in Deposited Plan 803359,

Augusta Street, Huntingwood East,

New South Wales
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Site area/

gross floor Group's Stage of
Location Type area Lease term interest completion
WEEE
it B R AEEER HAE SEEHES 52 B B B
Sq. ft.
FER
79-99 St Hilliers Road, Australia IB 298,191# Freehold 100% Under
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney, refurbishment
New South Wales
79-99 St Hilliers Road, M B 298,191 KAKERE 100% BFIRETT
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,
New South Wales
West of Foshan-Kaiping highway, China CcL 1,392,982 Leasehold 100% Under
North of Longgao Road, development
Longjiang town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong
BEREBLTIEERETE i CL 1,392,982 REE 100% ZRET
BRERAT - ERE AL
South of Longzhou West Road, China CL 221,825 Leasehold 100% Under
East of Dengdong Road, development
Longjiang town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong
EREGUTIEEREETHE ki cL 221,825 e 100% BRT
ENEREAEERERAR XA
Note: CL Commercial land EmER
B EE - CcX Complex land 4RE At
IL Industrial land TR
CB Commercial building GEI:ES
1B Industrial building IT¥8F
# Represents gross floor area EZYE B EEE
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GLOSSARY
ki

“Board”

-

“BVI”
[(RBEERES]

“China” or "PRC"
[ B
“Code”
[~ 81

“Company” or “China Lesso”

VNGRS AR Ry

“Current Ratio”
[ Eh bt =& |

"EBITDA"
[BR S BE3  A & 5

“Gearing Ratio”

[EEREX]

“Group”
[ A& E ]

“Guangdong Liansu Machinery”

[ SR

“HK$”

&)

“Hong Kong" or “HK"
[ & ]

“loT"
[ B 48 |

“Listing Rules”

[ Al

the board of directors of the Company
RAREEE

the British Virgin Islands
REBERRES

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluding Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARAME  BAREMNS A TREDE  BRFIREE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

FRRIME 14 RE B RE R TR

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
e E 1 98 o 0 A R

the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

MEEERARE A FEAILL R

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation

MRS~ BIR -~ T E R EHA AT

the total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity
REBEERAESATEN RS EEEMN

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARAREME QA

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*, a company indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the
Company as defined under the Listing Rules

BRI EREARAT  ERELEME2ERENAT W AKXR AN
BEAL(EER EWHREAD

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BRZAEER BT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
I E S ATHE

Internet of things

WA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

BRES LR
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“Macau”
[EF ]

“Model Code”

EE BTN

“New Fortune”
(¥ 2

“pE"

[PE]

“PP-R"
[PP-R]

“PVC”
[PVC]

“Quick Ratio”
[ 3R &) bt & |

“RMB"
[AR#]

“SFO"
% RS D]

“Share(s)”
[R5

“Shareholder(s)”
[ %2R |

“Shunde Liansu Industrial”

BB T X

“sq.ft.”
[SFHR]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 32 Frr J

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B PR BT R =

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as

set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EHRAIM S 10FEN EMBITAEZETESFXFHNIRETE

New Fortune Star Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
New Fortune Star Limited * —fRA R B4R R B MK L2 A A

polyethylene
BIE

polypropylene random
ERABRBRNG

polyvinyl chloride
BRLE

the ratio of current assets less inventories to current liabilities

RBEERFERTRARBBENL X

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FRZOEEEBE-ARE

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
EREDIFEBT BE 75 KAEKD

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company

AR AP A E E 0.06 /8 TR A (D

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
ARNBRDEFEA

Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.*

BLUMIEERBEZEXARAA

square feet
FHFER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBMERHMBERRAA

Annual Report 2018 F#f 23b



GLOSSARY

=

AR =

“Taiwan” the Republic of China

B e PERE

“tonne(s)” a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms

[ 18 2 EEEEMNEL - HEN1,00027

"uUs” the United States of America

[ | ¥ ENBERE

"US$” US dollar, the lawful currency of US

= B ZBZEEE¥ %7

“Xi Xi Development” Xi Xi Development Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
[FREE] ¥ BEZREBRAQAR —HREBEMABESTMK L ZAF
“%" per cent

[ %] B Bt

* The English or Chinese translations in this report, where indicated, denote for identification purposes only.

* AR B B S P B R (AR ) AR -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

Mr. Cheng Dickson

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Cheung Man Yu
Mr. Cheng Dickson

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Cheung Man Yu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

BEEg
HITES
sHELE(FE)

/ﬁﬁhf‘ii(ﬁﬁ?,é@ﬁ)
R
RE SR A
FLIKER L A&
FeR 2 B o A
w2
ES-
BB A
MIEE L E

BYKHTES
FTEREL
RXFRE
WL

Fe 5 M8 £
Epim e sE L

BERERY
AR B (Em)
ES=E Ft S
RXFEE

B8 36 54 5

FHERS
AR B (Em)
BB L
TR E
THEZEE
RXF &

REZEES
mMELRE (ZE)
TimtmkE
ITEZAE

[ PsRs=

P W18 £

EEMR R

rimfm k&

ASEEE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309, Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman lIslands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN CHINA

Liansu Industrial Estate
Longjiang Town

Shunde District

Foshan City

Guangdong Province 528318
China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2

South Seas Centre
75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION
Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

A i SR
PO Box 309, Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman lIslands

PREANREEERME

F

ERA (H4  528318)
Gl

g7 &

BE/LSA

IR T 3 A

ERTELEME
FENE

KR bIE 3R

JEE 1,38 75 9%

[EZDES=NN
FE_FE12E3=E

LtHEHR
L
BEBMAERIIERA A

Stock code: f& 5 RS
2128 2128
SHARE INFORMATION B 0 & B
As at 31 December 2018: 2018412 A31H :
Share issued 3,102,418,400 shares BEITROEE 3,102,418,400 f%

Market capitalisation HK$12,161 million m{E 121.61 88T

Board lot size 1,000 shares BFEEEM 1,000 A%
2018 DIVIDENDS 2018 F IR &

Interim dividend HK10 cents per share R ERRR B R 108110
Proposed final dividend HK20 cents per share R R EAR B A% 20711
Dividend payout ratio 32.7% K B b & 32.7%
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual results announcement:
26 March 2019

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:

- for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at annual
general meeting from 22 to 27 May 2019 (both dates
inclusive)

- for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend
from 3 to 5 June 2019 (both dates inclusive)

2019 annual general meeting:
27 May 2019

Payment of 2018 proposed final dividend+:
on or around 17 June 2019

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093
Queensgate House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman lIslands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS
iPR Ogilvy & Mather

23rd Floor, The Centre

99 Queen's Road, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Email: ir@lesso.com

Bt 3% B &
FEEGERS:
201943 A26

EENEROBFETFE

- WBrEEERRAFASIRNE EREMNE
BH2019F5A22%278 (BEEEMm

x)

— HETWEEIRERHREMNEKRH 201946

A3E5R (BHEEREMX)

2019 F EHBEF K :
201945 A 278

IR 2018 FHER AR HIM S - ¢
201946 A17 Hs#E:m B+

ROBFETEE
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093
Queensgate House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

RODBFELTDE
EREPRBLELERAF
B

B 2R KBR1835%
&ML
17181712-1716

REEBE
iPRELE LB
FEER KBTI

IR 2318

55 1 (852) 2136 6185
EH : (852) 3170 6606
FH : ir@lesso.com

Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2019 annual general meeting to be held on 27 May 2019.

HEAFRRN 20195 427 BRITHN 2019 FRFEF ARG LHER - TAER -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEER

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong

SOLICITOR
Ropes & Gray

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

http://www.lesso.com
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73 401
X G AR E AT
BREREGEHED

(E3:1]
T A% R B0 = 5 T

FEERRIT
hERERITBHERD A
R ERT (BB) BERA A
RERITRHBRD A

FEERBRRITROBRRABDEENT

BLIEREN EHERITROABRAA]
BAERTERAA

RETERT (EMN BRQF
TEIERITROERAA

= HERRTT

AILEBPMRBITROHDARRAEFTEDT

FELBESRITERAR

48 1t
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Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements
include, without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings. The words
“believe”, "“intend”, "expect”, "anticipate”, “forecast”, “estimate”, “predict”, "is
confident”, “has confidence"” and similar expressions are also intended to represent
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts.
Rather, the forward-looking statements are based on the current beliefs, assumptions,
expectations, estimates and projections of the directors and management of China
Lesso about the businesses, industries and markets in which China Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the
Company's control and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could
differ materially from those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking
statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect only
the views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of this report
only. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of this
report.

ATEES

RRERBARENR - WEAEERBEETRIEBEAR
EFRE - mI4aE] - [5H81) - (8] - [TRE) - (388
[EEr) -~ TR -~ DRE] - TREEL] RALRSE T RER
AR - AR BAR UhEM P EREREREREEY 17
ERPEBPEENTEMARELOBEAER K&
HE et RRUAEE MUFELEE-

SERERATIERARROEBRAELRE T2EER
BB THRBAELEMARMEZE AR ELRRERA
REFTRERG] - BEEATREL o MUkt - B AR TS B AT E 2 8
AR - BREFERNBERBEERER -

FRFEEAERRPEREIEEREEENAREHRE
BARFREE  AAALT BT EEBLFMERA - AQA
WEEERFRER Lt pTHE e - DRI S iR 1R P 3
EREFHIFR

* R E WP EINA E A AR R R



LESSO Hx %3

Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB IRESD IR AR E 7557 B 058 — 12183 %

L (852) 2712 8405 MIX
[ www.lesso.com waseoy  FSC™ C102904
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